## The Proceedings and Papers

of the

# GREENVILLE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY

1965 - 1968



ALBERT N. SANDERS

Editor

The Greenville County Historical Society Greenville, South Carolina 1968 Notes The papers included in the Proceedings and Papers vary widely as to the degree of documentation. The editor has accepted both the documentation and the style of the author responsible and has considered hissaid only a compiler concerned with accuracy and form. A "sipé sheef" for use by those prayering papers for presentation before the Society is available from the editor upon recuest.

The Greenville County Historical Society supplies the Proceedings and Fuguer to all its members. The Board of Director-celests the Editor. The price of the Proceedings and Papers to person not members of the Society is \$2.50 per copy. Orders should be sent to the Editor, 441 Longuiew Terraco, Greenville, S. C. SAREN.

## CONTENTS

Sara Cossett Crigler

Hattie Choice Schroder
Officers of the Society
Proceedings of the Society 9
Dedication of the Joel Roberts Poinsett Marker
Papers of the Society
Furman University Moves Its Campus
The Creenville County Postal System, 1795-1967
A Nineteenth Century Diary of Greenville, South Carolina 52 Laura Smith Ebaugh
The History of Fairview Presbyterian Church 67 Mrs. David Garrett
History of Travelers Rest
The Spanish American War and Greenville
Greenville: A Base of Botanical Activity
Early Greenville Fire Departments
Appendices
Register of Historical Records In The Greenville, S. C. Area
Index of Names
Members of The Greenville County Historical Society 147



## SARA GOSSETT CRIGLER

#### 1886-1966

The Greenville County Historical Society withes to pay grateful tribute to Sara Gouset Crigler. She was not only familiar with much of the history of our community but she was also keenly aware of its significance and of the importance of preserving ft.

She was a valued member of the original committee which brought about the reorganization of the Historical Society in April, 1862. She was a member of the committee of sixteen which formulated its early policies.

We owe much to her generous financial aid, to her vision of what the Society could accomplish and to her ability to inspire others.

We loved her for her lively wit, her contagious enthusiam, her gracious hospitality, and her dynamic personality.

We shall miss her,



# HATTIE CHOICE SCHRODER

The Creenville County Historical Society wishes to pay tribute to the late Hattle Choice Schroder.

She was one of the sixteen-member Historical Records Committee which developed into this Society. During this period, she rendered valuant service in helping prepare a wonderful exhibit at the Greenville Art Museum of many portraits of old Greenville familles. This event created great interest and gave tremendous impetus to the Society. Especially was this so very helpful, when she carefully catalogued the portraits, had them photographed, and sold coptes, enabling many families to secure these pictures.

On April 29, 1962, at the organization meeting of this Society, she was elected its first corresponding secretary.

In the Society's production of the most successful pageant, "A Nineteenth Century Diary of Creenville, S. C.," she chaired a committee to produce one of the five tableaux. It was a taxing job, and done well.

She worked long and faithfully to the Society's project to make detailed, accurate records of Creeaville County's old cometeries. This documentation entailed many field trips, accurate records, skilled typing, patient and timiess labor. Her great hope was to get this valuable material in print. At the last board meeting this action was recommended to the Society for its approval.

For these outstanding efforts the Society is deeply grateful and thankful. The members are thankful too to have known and loved such a one as Hattis Choice Schroder.

#### OFFICERS OF THE GREENVILLE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY

#### 1965-1968

President	Romayne A. Barnes (1965-1966)
	Albert N. Sanders (1986-1968)
First Vice-President	Mrs. R. N. Daniel (1965-1966)
	Mrs. Claude Goodlett (1986-1968)
Second Vice-President	Miss Laura Smith Ebengh
Recording Secretary	. Joseph H. Earle, Jr. (1965-1968)
	Andrew B. Marion (1988- )
Corresponding Secretory	Mrs. Francis Withington
Tregeurer	Abner D. Asbury

Committee Chairmen
Exhibition Committee Mr. and Mrs. T. Charles Gower (1965-1968) Mrs. Josie B. Weeks (1968-1968)
Collection Committee Henry B. McKoy
Liaison Committee Mrs. A. D. Oliphant
Historical Records Committee Dixon D. Davis
Publicity Committee Miss Laura Ebaugh
Historical Buildings Committee John S. Taylor
Membership Committee Miss Laura Ebaugh
Program Committee Mrs. R. N. Dazziel (1965-1968)
Mrs. Claude Goodlett (1986-1986)
Catolog Committee Miss Katherine Jones
Resource Committee Marion M. Hewell
Publications Committee Albert N. Sanders

#### Directors-at-Large

Mrs. John W. Arrington, Jr., Romayne Barnes (1966—), William
 H. Beattie, Mrs. Heavy T. Origier (1965-1966), Joseph H. Earle, Jr. (1966—), Mrs. Bobert N. Daniel (1966), Jon., Mrs. E. T. Whitmire (1965-1966), Mrs. E. C. Schroder (1965-1966), 197-1966).

# PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY

#### FALL MERCENC, 1965

The Greenville County Historical Society met in the Community Room of the Citizens and Southern National Bank with voterans of the Spanish-American War and their wives as special guests. The president announced two gifts to the Society:

- By Mrs. Claude Goodlett, a copy of her book, Links in the Goodlett Chain.
- By Mrs. Arthur J. Smith, several old and rare insurance maps.

The Society unanimously passed a motion supporting the move for a new library building for Greenville County and directed a committee composed of Romayne Barnes, Mrs. A. D. Oliphans, and William H. Beattie to prepare an appropriate resolution to be presented to the Greenville County Legislative Delegation.

In addition to the normal reports, Secretary Joseph H. Earle, for the Board of Directors, gave notice of the following proposed amendments to the By-Laws which would be voted on at the spring meeting:

 The following Section to be added to Article IV, Officers and Directors, to be designated Section 10 of that Article:

Section 10, In addition to the officers the Society may alect at any summal meeting not more than at Directors-st-Large to novve for one-year terms. In addition to 8s nonshores for Officers, the Nominating Committee shall report to the nonshormals at each amount meeting its nonshorms for Directors-at-Large, the number of which shall have been eletimated by the President

Article IV, Officers and Directors, Section 9, shall be amended to read as follows:

Section D. Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall be composed of the Offices, the Director-st-Large, see the observemen of the standing committees. It shall meet at the call of the Persident, or at each time as at roasy by resolution presents are such that the standard present preserved to the combornity, the Board of Directors all the Cockyt, Eight semplers of the Board of Directors at any case of the Cockyt, Eight semplers of the Board of Directors at any case of the Cockyt, Eight semplers of the Board of Directors at any case of the Cockyt, Eight semplers of the Board of Directors at any

 Article VI, Dues, as amended, shall be amended further to read as follows:

The sexual does of the Society shall be Two Dollars (85.00) for Rapilar Members, Tresulty-Free Dollars (85.00) for Society Soc

President Barnes introduced Henry B. McKoy who read his paper, "The Spanish-American War and Greenville: Remember the Maine!"

#### **WINTER MEETING, 1966**

The Bodshy's Winter Meeting was an open meeting hald on january 16, 1906, in the parts house of Christ Church which was filled to standing room only. The Society's pageant, "A Nineteenth Century Diary of Greevulle, South Carolina," written by Miss Laurs Smith Ebugh was presented. The pageant, carefully compiled from letter, flaties, and say invenor's featured five tebleaux and was nurrated by the suthor, Miss Xatherine Jones was historical consultants, Robert C. Joh was directory. Smit J. Francis was man-saging director, and Mrs. Clifford S. Hackett was contume and muste consultants. Tableaux chairmen were Mrs. H. C. Schroder, Mrs. Josle B. Weeks, Mrs. Alestre C. Furman, III, Mrs. T. V. Ferrow, and Miss Einkabeth Makino.

The careful casting of the tableaux enhanced the excellence of the production as many of the actors were portraying actual angestors.

#### Spanies Minerarc, 1986

The Society met on March 20, 1966, in the Civic Room of the Citizens and Southern National Bank. Mr. Charles Wilson, Assistant Fire Chief of the City of Greenville presented his paper, "Early Greenville Fire Departments."

In the annual meeting which followed the Society heard reports of its officers, unanimously adopted the amendments to its By-Laws proposed at the fall meeting and elected the following officers and Directors-at-Large:

President Albe	ert N. Sanders
Pirst Vice-President Mrs. Cl	aude Goodlett
Recording Secretary And	rew B. Marian
Directors-at-Large Mrs. John W.	Arrington, Jr.
Romayne Barnes, William H. Beattie, Mrs. Rob	ert N. Daniel,
and Joseph H. Earle, Ir.	

#### FALL MEETING, 1986

The Greenville County Historical Society were the guests of the Fairview Presbyterian Church at its fall meeting on October 16, 1966.

Mrs. R. N. Deanel, for the committee consisting of bereaft, Romayne Barnes, and Mrs. H. C. Schnoder presented a moreling tribute to the late Sam Consett (Mrs. Henry T.) Crigler, a valued member and one of the organizars of the Society. On the motion of Miss Laura: Ebungth the Society discreted that the tribute be published in the Proceedings and Papers of the Society and that copies be sent to the family.

Mirs. David Garrett, the former Mary Strewnt and a member of a family long prominent in the history of the Fairview conmunity, presented an able paper, "Fairview Church: Its Origin and Development." A display of religious artifact connected with the church had been arranged by the local committee. Refreshments and a social hour followed the meeting and many of the members witside the historically important cemetery of the old church.

The Society is indebted to the members of Fairview Church and to the local committee consisting of Mrs. J. C. Buford, Mrs. H. L. Brockman, Mrs. Caroline Coleman, Mrs. J. C. Sprouse, Miss Lizzie Pedan, and Miss Myrtle Nesbitt for their interest, cooperation, and horsystality.

#### WINTER MEETING, 1967

The winter meeting of the Greenville County Historical Society was beld at the Wattine Student Center, Furman University, on January 15, 1967. Two members whose books had been recently published were recognized: Mrs. Claude Goodlett for Travelors Rest at Mountain's Foot and Miss Laura Ebaugh for Bridging the Gap.

Dr. Winston C. Babb, historian of Furman University, delivered his paper, "Furman University Moves Its Campus." An exhibit of items from the Baptist Historical Collection was arranged by Mrs. Ollin Owens. Curator.

#### **SPIENC Минтик**, 1967

The Society returned to Watkins Student Center, Furman University, for its spring meeting on March 12, 1967.

The following gifts to the Society were announced:

- By William H. Beattle, a volume of letters of Governor Benjamin F. Perry to his wife.
- By Mrs. Hattie Finley Jones, a framed pointing of the Lexusel Alston House.
- By the South Carolina National Bank, a framed sketch of the Old Record Building.

The feature of the unceting was a slide lecture by A. D. Asbury entitled "Generalite—Then and Now." The speaker coterationingly presented slides made from add photographs and prints of scenes in and around Generalite, particularly from early days, followed by handsome coloured slides which he had photographed of the same sites at the present time. The slide showing was accompanied by able commendately by the speaker.

The Society then chose the following officers for two-year terms:

Second Vice-President Miss Laure Ebaugh
Corresponding Secretary Mrs. C. C. Wikhington
Treasures A. D. Aabury
Directors-at-Large (one year term): Mrs. John W. Arrington,

Directors-at-Large (one year term): Mrs. John W. Arrington, Jr., Romayne Barnes, William H. Beattie, Mrs. R. N. Daniel, Joseph H. Earle, Jr., and Mrs. H. C. Schroder.

The Society passed resolutions recording its opposition to a suggested plan to turn the State Library, housed in the State House,

into offices and directed the Corresponding Secretary to advise the Creenville County Legislative Delegation of the Society's opposition.

#### FALL MEETING, 1987

For the fall meeting, October 15, 1987, the Society met at the Reedy River Baptist Church. After the invocation by Rev. Hester, paster of the Church, Mayor J. L. Barnette welcomed the Society on behalf of the Town of Travelers Rest.

Congratulations and appreciation were extended to the Christ Church Guild for the erection of a historical marker on the grounds of the Christ Church and to the Bebethland Butler Chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution for the erection of a historical marker commemorating Elius Earle at the junction of Rutherford Road and the Poinsett Highway.

Mrs. Claude Goodlett, author of Travelers Rest at Mountain's Foot, presented her paper, "History of Travelers Rest," a thorough and informative study.

The Society then adjourned to tour the old church yand of Reedy River Baptist Church and to wist the Robert W. Anderson house where the local committee had arranged exhibits of historical importance relating to the Travelers Rest community. The accellent exhibits placed in the setting of the interesting and beautifully restored old house made for a memorable experience for the members of the Society.

The Society is indebted to Mr. and Mrs. R. L. Anderson, present owners, for opening their historic home and to Mrs. Claude Goodlett and her local committee for arranging this meeting.

### WINTER MEETING, 1968

The Society met in the Court Room of the Federal Building (until recently the main Greenville Post Office Building) on January 21, 1988.

The following gifts to the Society were amounced:

 By Romeyne Barnes, a volume of the registry of the Commercial Hotel, once a leading local bostehy. 1. By Mrs. Collins, an autographed volume of the works of Governor Bestamin F. Perry.

The paper of the day, 'The Grezoville County Postal System, ITS-1987' based upon the research of Dixon D. Davis, long-time local postmaster, prepared and read by Dixon E. Durham, traced the origin and growth of postal service in the county. Mr. Davis spoke height yo the puper and showed the post office location may which he developed in connection with his meticalous research on the nordest.

An interesting exhibit of old photographs and postal documents, arranged by Mrs. Josie B. Weeles, added much to this meeting.

#### SPRING MEETING, 1968

The spring meeting of the Society was held in a lecture room of the John L. Pivler Science Building of Furman University.

Dr. C. Leland Rodgers presented his paper, "Greenville: A Base of Botanical Activity." An informal discussion followed this interesting study.

The Society elected the following officers for two year terms:
President Brown Mahon
First Vice-President William H. Beattle
Recording Secretary Andrew B. Marion
Directors-at-Large (one-year terms): Mrs. John W. Arrington, Jr., Romayne Baruss, Mrs. Robert N. Daniel, Joseph H. Earle,
Jr., Mrs. Claude Goodlett, Mrs. H. C. Schroder, Mrs. Josie B.
Weeks, Mrs. Boverly T. Whitmire.

On exhibit were the two volumes of scrap books concerning the activities of the Society maintained by the Committee on Scrap Books under the chairmanship of Miss Mary Seyle.

#### DEDICATION OF THE IOEL ROBERTS POINSETT MARKER

On Sunday, May S, 1988, the Society unveiled a historical marker honoring Joel Robert Poinsest in the pleas at the crossing of Main and Court streets in front of the hotel which bears his name. Speaker pro tem of the South Carolina House of Representatives, Rox L. Cartier, made the dedicatory address, entolling Poinsett as a leader of his times: "Flanter, Writer, Botanist, Diplomast, Statesman." Rev. Dennis L. Smith, associate pastor of Christ Episcopal Church where Foinzett was one of the original members of the vestry, rendered the prayer.

John S. Taylor, Chairman of the Historical Buildings Committee of the Society, wrote the original inscriptions, secured their approval by the South Carolina Commission of Archives and History, and secured the aid of Greenville County and Highway Department officials in pushing the project to successful conclusion.

The dedication of the Poinsett marker marked the completion of the first stage of the Society's project to places markers in each of the four plazas that remain, vestiges of the original town square, at the crossing of Main and Court streets. A marker to Robert Mills and the Old Record Building was erceted in the northeast plaza in 1938 by the Greenville Life Underwriters Association. The Poinsett marker is in the northwest plaza. Markers honoring Lemael J. Altson and Vardry McBee are projected for the two plazas south of Court street.

# FURMAN UNIVERSITY MOVES ITS CAMPUS

WINSTON CHAMDLER BARR

The end of World Wor II brought sudden, far-reaching changes to Furman University which nades it apparent that the purchasing of government surplus buildings and the remodeling of the older structures could only temporarily take care of the need for more adequate facilities. Even before the war zome planning for new construction had been done. The will of Dr. Sydney Krnest Bradaw, longtime professor of Modern Languages, left in 1998 to the university a sum of \$100,000 to be used for a new library building. Prelimbrary settlers had been prepared for the proposed building and some additional funds were naised for use as soon as the end of the war made the resumption of colless construction feasible.

Metarobile, plata were discussed for the errection of five new buildings and some attentive remodeling and expansion of existing structures, which in 1943 was estimated would require an outlay of \$1,175,000. The trustees had even genes to far at to employ 1, E. Sirrine and Co., Greenville engineering firm, to make a survey to prepare plana for the future development of the exampsat. At the same time a policy was adopted of buying real estate adjacent to the campus as the opportunity might arise. A month before the each of the war as tasse of the Furman Bulletin was released containting pictures of the develope of the proposed new buildings to be creeded with the \$2,000,000 which it was anticipated would be raised in a three-year campaign to be inaugarated as soon as the war exided. However, these plans proved prematures and a number of people became convisced that a move to a completely new site was the best asswere to the problem of Furman's future growth.

Behind the decision to move there were a number of new developments: the Seavies Marke? Readjustment. Act of 1944 brought so many new students that the buildings were strained beyond capacity; the arrival of the automobile on the ratio of almost one per student made the parking problem insolvable; the avalanche of paper work for the administration means that for a time the

<sup>1&</sup>quot;Minotes of Ferman University Treatmen, Executive Committee," February I, 1944.

personnel of the administration grew at a more rapid rate than either students or faculty.

A report to the Board of Trustees in May, 1948, listed other reasons which led to the final decision to seek a new location where all operations of the university could be consolidated; a cost of at least \$30,000 per year for the maintaining of duplicate facilities on the two campuses: the fact that the Woman's College campus was so near the center of the city that additional development would not be wise: that the men's camous was not large enough to provide space for the necessary buildings and that it would cost at least \$750,000 to purchase the additional twenty-five acres to provide for current needs, allowing no room for later expansion: and that a projected four lane highway through the men's campus would actually divide the property into two portions.2 Additional arguments presented for the move were summed up as: it would provide for adequate expansion in the future; it would provide for a location away from the noise, smog and distractions of the city and would be more conducive to the academic life; and finally, a proposed new campus might become so exciting as to inspire large new gifts to the university.

The decision to move made, early in 1949 the Furnan University Board of Trustees began a carrful study of matters dealing with the future development of the school. Dr. J. Dean Crain became clairman of the site committee and was perbaps most influential in the decision to seek a new location where all students could be brought together on one campus. After a year of study during which more than twenty possible sites were considered, the university purchased 973 acres on the Poinsett Highway for the sum of \$342,531.00. One interesting feature of this area was that it contained some of the headwaters of the Reedy River which Tawed the feet" of the old campus, in the Alma Matter at least.<sup>1</sup>

Late in 1951 committees composed of faculty and students beto consider plans for building on the new campus, so that their suggestions could be presented to the architects. Some months later a contract was signed with Perry, Shaw and Hepburn, Keboe and Dean of Boston, Marsachusetts, to draw up the plans for the new

<sup>2&</sup>quot;Minutes of Furman University Traction," May 11, 1948. (Hereinafter cited as

<sup>3&</sup>quot;76(purm." Aways \$9, 1950.

campus.<sup>6</sup> This firm designed in 1953 the master plan which has been followed with some minor modifications since that time. Upon their recommendation R. K. Webel of New York was retained as the landscape architect.<sup>2</sup>

To facilitate solicitation of funds, it was decided to go ahead as non a possible with the construction of two major buildings, as non as possible with the construction of two major buildings, even though the unct optimistic hopes placed September, 1959, as the natifiest date the campus could be occupied. Estimates of the ultitasts cost of the project had been revised upward within two years from the originally amounted \$7,000.000 to 68,000.000. Actually, the first courses for a building on the new compuse was let at 80,000 to the Duniel Construction. On Corenville for the controction of a numery and greenhouse on five acres of land fronting on Dunce Chard Board.

In the middle of an old corn field on October 6, 1853, the symbolic ground breaking occumenty was held, with the elighty-six year old Abster C. Furnan, great grandson of the founder and himmil a former trustee who had served for fifty years, turning the first showl. Dr. Charlis F. Sims, Executive Secretary of the South Carollos Baptist Corrections, speaking for the 610,000 Baptists of the state, headded the occasion as pointing "to greater things for Furnan, greater benefits and opportunities to students." Dr. John Lacoy Flyke, President of the university, commented "We build not for personal glory but for the yourh of greatest and future generations" and amounced that he had just received an annow-mou densation of \$155,000 for the building fund. This brought the amount of moory represented by oash and pledgas for construction of the new sampus to about \$500,0000.

Supporting the effort of the trustees and officials of the school in the new undertaking was the South Carolina Baptist Convention. In order to inform the ministers of the state of the ald the convention was griving the school, Alester C. Purman, Jr., Chaltman of the Furman Trusteer, each to them a letter shortly before meeting of the 1986 convention is which he traced the events leading up

<sup>4&</sup>quot;Minster, Erecutive Committee," July 99, 1662.

<sup>6&</sup>quot;Minsten," April 14, 1985.

aConsorthy Norm, April 15, 1955.

FPerson University Resear, September 55, 1953. (Hardonites vised as "Hornest") FFarmen University Bellipta, September-Outsine, 1965.

to the new campus. Included in the letter were these two paragraphs:

When plans were completed, the whole program was submitted to the General Board of the State Convention of the Baptist Denomination in South Carolina. Upon receiving their approval it was then submitted to the entire South Carolina State Convention and unanimously adopted. This program included the purchasing of an entire new campus site, the planning of new buildings, and provision for financing and the activation of the program. The Convention authorized, empowered and directed the duly constituted officers of the said convention: "to cooperate in every way with the Board of Trustees of Furman University and its properly constituted officers in pledging the good faith and credit of the Baptist Denomination in South Carolina by executing notes or other written in-struments to the end that the principles, purposes and terms of this resolution be made effective and to do any and all other necessary acts to the end that the building and enlargement program of Furman University may become a reality at the earliest possible moment."

Work began in earnest in January, 1954, on the 200-acre area which was to become the center of the new campus, when Sloan Construction Company started moving the first of the 400,000 cubic yards of dirt in a grading operation which took about six months. The most interesting feature was the construction of a dam to impound a lake covering about twenty-five acres, which was stocked in the fall with bass and bream. Two small streams and a number of springs furnished an ample supply of water to maintain the destred levels in the lake even during the dry season of the summer. Scheduled originally as an irrigation source was a smaller lake near the greenhouse, but many people later were finding this to be one of the most dreaded hazards on the golf course. With the completion of the greenhouse in February, the wholesale propagation of plants began so as to be ready to landscane other portions of the campus at a later date.9 In addition, many friends of Furman donated trees and shrubs to the University.

Contracts amounting to \$1,500,000 for the construction of the first two major buildings were let in October, 1954, to the Daniel Construction Company. One of these was for a two-story classroom building to provide sonce for thirty-two classrooms, lounges, and

Officers, Printers 5, 1984.

faculty offices; the other for a dormitory to house one hundred

The increase in enrollment for the 1955-1956 session necessitated using these new buildings for the first time in that year. One humberd feshances with six upperclassrons as counselors lived in the new dornstory and made use of some classrooms and the dining facilities, in what was planned to be the Homo Economic laboratory area of the classroom building. For a year then, the subversité was coersting three separate compused.

When these "pieneers" appeared to September, they found some two miles of hard-surfaced road, two buildings nearly completed, work under way on the baseball grandstand and other sittled pixty fields. A third megic building was started that fall to serve as the administration building. At a cost estimated at \$400,000 this structure was located at the north and of the classassom building and barmonized with it in specarance. In addition to the offices for the wascus administrative functions, it consider the main telephone switchboard and various mailing and supply facilities.<sup>11</sup>

The year 1956 saw the completion of tenuis courts, part of the gpif course and the baseball field. Work was started on the library building which was planned to be the central feature of the compus. All the while landscaping and grading was being criried on by the Furman grounds personnal who had planted some 1400 trees on the cumpus, many more on the golf course while literally thousands of shrubs had been set out. 19

The trustess held their first meeting in their board room in the new administration building in April, 1937, at which time they awarded contexts for the construction of three additional dormitories for men at a cost of \$1,235,370 and a dining hall to cost 9893,350. The dormitories were similar to the one already in us, and would form with it a quadrangle. The dining hall would contain a main dising area which tooked out upon the lake and would seet \$00 and two smaller rooms with a capacity of 100 each.

Next on the construction schedule was the center section of the science hall. This would provide room for the necessary science

<sup>10</sup>Ferman University Magazine, October, 1984. (Horwinsher cited as "Magazine") 11Magazine, August, 1955. 18"Microst, August, 2050.

classes initially with the long range plan calling for two additional wings to be added to make the structure comparable in size to the classroom building.

The architects paid an interesting tribute to the master mason, who died after having supervised the work on the first four new buildings, by installing on the terrace of the library a plaque reading:

In memory of Elford S. Wyatt, master mason from whose skill and devotion came the beauty of the walls of this university.<sup>13</sup>

The bricks used for all structures were made in Virginia to resemble those used in colonial Williamsburg. They were larger to size and showed a wider variation in color than most ordinary brick.

The booming economy of the United States in the post World War II period was accompanied by a sharp increase in prices, resulting in continued increase of the overall cost of the new campus. As of March, 1938 some \$6,725,000 had been spent on the new campus. In addition to the buildings themselves, this represented about \$1,000,000 for grading, landscaping and about \$10,000 on athletic fields, and architect' fee. 14

With such rapid progress being made, it was now possible to make definite plans to move from the men's carpus so that September, 1988, would see the first full use of the new facilities. Thirteen faculty committees were set up in January to make definite and the plans with Francis W. Bonner, Dean of the Men's College, taking charge of the overall operation. Everyone could see that many things would not be finished, to delivered, or prepared by September first, so the opeoing of school was delayed for one week various expedients were necessary and some University operations had to be installed in space which was designed for something elas. For example, in the basement of the library were grouped a lounge for day students, a music studio, a classroom for the Speech and Dramatics Department, the supply room and armany of the R.O.T.C., and offices for the student publications.<sup>15</sup>

<sup>18</sup> Magazine, October, 1957.

<sup>14</sup>Hornet, April 25, 1958.

<sup>18&</sup>quot;Minutes of the Furman University Facelty," May 18, 1988.

Moving traditions to a new campus was not easy, but naming the buildings helped maintain continuity and also relisered the awkwardness and hand saving as people tried to give directions to those who could not renember which was dornitorly A, and which was Be or C. Officially the four dornitories were named for former presidents; Charles Manly, 1881-97; Edwin McNelll Prest, 1903-18; William J. McClothin, 1919-33; and Geer Hall which honored jointly Bennette E. Geer, president 1933-39, and John M. Geer, former trustee and a longitime friend of the university, for whom a men's dornitory had been named on the old campus. The classroom building was officially named the James C. Furman Building to honor the memory of the first president of the university who was also a son of the foundary.

The committee choosing names for buildings also decided to home Dean Robert Norman Daniel, tenders of English, 1911-56 (except for 1914-50) and Dean, 1982-1948, and Dr. Marshall Delph Earls, Professor of Mathematics, 1990-1994, by canning for them te two longes in the men's downloviers. It was also announced that former President Andrew Philip Moningue, and professors Charles H. Judon, Hiden Toy Cox, O. O. Fletcher, and H. T. Cook would be becomed by having their names given to some feature of the save compus.

The alumni meeting as part of the 1958 commencement was notable for two things. First, it was the first meeting of alumni at the University's new home with pinnic luncheon served under the arrade alongide the classroom building. Afterwards twenty class groups met in various classrooms for reunion sessions. The second novel event concerned disinterment by the graduating class of 1008 at Creenoille Woomar's College of a small marble box which they had buried at the fixet of a tree planted by them on the Woomar's Cantpus. As a highlight of their filltest reunion this box was unearthed from the base of the tree, now a large wateroak from feet in dismeter. The class president, Mrs. R. N. Daniel, the former Evelyn Pack, removed from the bax copies of the class will, propheroy, class outloon, history, power and the Isaqueene Literary Megssies for 1908. The seven members of the thirty-six of the class remembers of the driving the reunion latter face they or the dry reburded their class memorarement for the reunion latter is the day reburded their class memorarement for the reunion latter is the day reburded their class memorarement for the reunion latter is the day reburded their class memorarement for the reunion latter is the day reburded their class memorarement for the reunion latter is the day reburded their class memorarement for the reunion latter is the day reburded their class memorarement for the reunion latter is the day reburded their class memorarement.

<sup>10&</sup>quot;Minutes," April 15, 1956.

tos under a tree which Mrs. Deniel planted near the basebail grandstand on the new compas. \*\*

Early in the number ground was broken for the construction of a twenty-four unit garden-type spartment project on Duncan Chapel Road to provide housing for married students. The apartments were named Montague Village to honor the memory of Dr. Andrew Montague, President of the University, 1897-1903.

For the move of equipment from the men's campus some seven miles to the new site, Dr. Francis W. Bonner did the necessary organizing, Dr. Albert Sanders, Professor of History, who had had some knowledge with trucking operations during his army years, headed a group of students, justicers and other workers who used a fleet of three old trucks belonging to the university to haul books from the library, office files and equipment, some furniture, and innumerable boass and misculianeous items through Greenville streets and out to the proper building on the new campus. This group moved everything except planes and heavy ansee which had to be handled by professional movers. Even the "Old College," a small white frame structure or University Ridge which had one the first home of Furnan in Greenville, was moved to a site overlooking the lake on the new campus.

Other huldings on the old campus did not fars so well. North Hall, West Hall, Griffith Hall, the temporary wooden sansex to the library, and the wooden buildings used by the R.O.T.C. were sold or razed to remove fire hazards. The eastern side of the Meniscampus was changed drastically as the new four lane Church Stener, we say of through between the main campus and Strine Statest, which was the only part of the old property which the univestly would continue to use. The remaining buildings were locked up. As went to be expected, property which is not occupied begins to destrinates as weather and vandals have their way. People show had grown to love the old campus could not ride through without a truch of sandess at the sight of gapting boles in windows we weeds growing over places which had been alms mater to students for over a central.

The L32nd year for Furman men opened at the fifth campus to be used by the school (six, if one counts separately the Women's campus on College Street in Greenville). Nine years had trans-

<sup>17</sup> Mestanine, June, 1959.

formed the old own fields and rough patches of woods to a spacious campus with nine major buildings; a lake complete with cances, sailboats, swinners, fish and ducks; paved streets, parking lot, and the butting activity of college grounds alongside a new four lane highway. In annay ways it resembled a small town with its own police and fire protection, santary and maintenance facilities, and a fact of service whicles.

Rehaps the new campus served as a drawing card for new studens. At any rule, when classes opened in the fall, there were Tl girls in Menly Hall on the new campus, 930 at the Woman's College, and on many men that 70 double deck beds were installed to put three boys in that many rooms. With the othletic building and science halls not yet finished and some equipment not yetly delivered, the first days of the school year were somewhat confusing. In a sense there were no "old utden's familiar with where things were and how things were done, so that everyone had to correspons a sort of orientation needed.

But people were happy to find conveniences which had not existed heretofore at Furman: an official United States Post Office in the classroom building, a laundry room with coin-operated washers and driess in each dormitory, many additional vending machines and a more satisfactory arrangement for a barber shop. Within a few weeks some capitalistically minded students began peddling sandwiches at night and delivering newspapers in the early hours of the morning. The Greenville City Couch Company provided an hourly has service to town in addition to the busses operated by the university to transport students between the Women's College and the new campus, for there was still that commuting problem for some classes and for the meetings of the many student organizations which involved students of both campuses. Fortunately, the old vellow school busses which had done yearnan service since 1948 were replaced with three diesel-powered "road-busses" which were more comfortable and could make the trip more quickly. There were some people, however, who remembered with mingled nostalgia, regret, and reitef the wild careening rides down Main Street in those overcrowded vellow busses driven by men who had once piloted fighter planes and who never forgot the exhilaration of meed.

Before Christmas the work on the athletic building was finally completed. Conches, the trainer and the athletic publicity director

moved into their offices. However, the building was overcrowded from the beginning with all indoor physical education clauses for both men and women, all intercollegiate athletic teams, the intramural athletic leagues, and students working out as individuals making use of the one structure. Sometimes the impression was given of a three-ring circus in one ring. Especially was this true during the winter weather with the court srea in great demand by several groups for bashetship.

Finally, too, the science hall portion was completed. No longer did students mingle in the halls with electricians and painters, and classes met without competition from hammering and drilling. The physics classroom was named for Dr. Elden Toy Cox, Furman graduate of 1803, Dean 1913-1962, and Professor of Physics 1906 to his death in 1837. Under his impiration many Furman men went on to achieve outstanding success in areas related to physics. By any standards he was a master teacher and one of the few of its own faculty members whom Furman has recognized by conferring an homorary degree.

Alumni who ratumed for the homeconing exercises of 1959 witnessed two attempts to move part of the tradition from the former campuses to the new location. On the men's campus a central feature had been the "Block E," a large concrete letter. "F which had severed as a meeting place, bond and footnet for innumenable bull sensions at the main street intersection near the hibrary. Since the original could not be moved intests, a region was bruilt by the basebull grandstand. The marble plaque indicating that the original was gift of the class of 1926 was set into the mew "Block E' in a variation of a comentione laying ceremony.

Also from the old campus came the Doughboy, the brouse statuse of a World War I Infantry soldier, which had stood in the circle behind the library. Both status and pedestal were somewhat the worse for wers risec they had often been a surget for the paint dispensed by raiders from other campuses. Sand blasting took care of the paint, at least until after the ceremony, but even in his new place at the foot of the lake the Doughboy blossomed out in a coat of light blue paint before many normb had passed. Presumably Citadel supporters had wanted to help keep their part of Furman tradition alive and functioning on the new campus as well. The auditorium was the major construction project for 1898. In the apring work got under way on the building which was musted for Mr. William H. McAllster whose daughter's estate made a major grant toward the \$41,50,000 cut of the building. Work on on the building was hampered by springs uncovered in the course of exaction and the architects found it necessary to redesign the foundation to give it a water-proof construction. \*\* An unusual feature of the auditorium is the barroque Holksamp organ installed with its piges exposed surrounding the console. Many people, accustomed to the romantic organs in church buildings, thought this organ was unfinished with some of the pipes cantilevered over the edge of the balance.

Ground was broken in January, 1960, for the construction of dormitories for women. The very soft earth which lay under the foundations of these buildings necessitated the driving of over 600 piles, an operation which gave the Tuesday Afternoon Sidewalk Superintendents Society, an amateur group of faculty members, quite a project that spring. The five dormitories were connected to form a complex shaped like a shallow letter "U", with a beautiful garden in the open court facing the lake. The four stories were summounted by a cupola which gave the name Under The Cupola to the handbook for women students. A large replica of the seal of the Greenville Woman's College was mounted over the main entrance and a few people began referring to the structure by the term "The Zoo" which had long been the name for the Woman's College in the downtown location. However, this attempt to move a name was doomed to fail. Apparently traditions "like Topsy jest grow" and cannot be artificially cultivated or grafted at a new location. As yet these buildings are still referred to prosaically as the Women's Residence Halls

The housing situation continued to be a problem, especially for the mea, since Many Hall was still being used for senior women and a few junion. The experiment of having men and women living in adjoining domitionis separated only by the Earle Lounge which was used by both sens was handled with no difficulty. Forty-eight men were sent to live in twelve of the two-bedroom apartments of Montague Village. One of the bus driver was included in the number in order to provide some additional transportation for them to the main campus area. These men enjoyed kitchen privileges

<sup>18&</sup>quot;Minutes of the Faculty of Furman University," September 5, 1959.

and a living room but they took their meals in the dining hall and paid the same boarding fees as the other men.<sup>19</sup>

The graduating class of 1960 collected money to leave as their gift to the school a small replica of the bell tower of old Main Building to be erected near the lake to serve as a place to hang the original victory hell. There was some discussion after a year when the project had not been started, but gradually sentiment started building up to either move the bell tower itself, or to build a replica on the peninsula at the upper part of the lake. No action was taken on this until 1964 when an anonymous donor provided the money, the architects donated their services without charge. and The Daniel Construction Company agreed to do the actual work at cost. Work began in the summer on a full-sized replica of reinforced concrete. By the end of the year it was learned that in addition to the old bell a carillon of sixty-four bells was being cast in Holland to be bung in the new tower. The Old College building was utilized to house the keyboard apparatus which provided one of several ways by which the bells could be rung. A new clapper was cast for the old Furman bell which would permit it to ring out Furman athletic victories with its accustomed tone. The familiar silhouette of the tower added a welcome touch of the old and once again the tower appeared as the Furman symbol on class rings, stationery and other items used by the University.

Work on the women's dormitories moved toward completion in the late fall of 1980 and the Hornet carried a story which began in the Having begun in 1854, construction is now approaching the halfway mark on the new \$30,000,000 cmpms. . . . Early in 1981 the new dormitories were given names to honor the memory of several persons who had been prominent in the earlier history of the two schools. Judson Hall was named for Charles Hallett Judson and Mary C. Judson. He had been a member of Furman's first faculty in Greenville in 1852, served for forty years as Treasurer, was Dean of the Faculty and acting President before his death in 1907. He had donated \$25,000 to Furman and the chapel on the old campus was called by his name. Mary, his sister, was named Lady Principal of the Greenville Female College in 1874 and served in various capacities there for forty-six years.

Ramsay Hall honored Dr. David M. Ramsay, President of the Greenville Woman's College, 1911-1930, and for fifteen years presi-

<sup>19</sup>Hornet October 10, 1959

during those critical and decisive years in the story of Furman University when he said:

As I look around this imposing edifice I feel that someone said:

Let them be spaciousness that our minds may be turned to wide horizons;

Let them be beauty of lines with warm and soft colouring, that we may feel the thrill of loveliness;

Let there be melody, that our ears may be attuned to celestial harmony;

And prior to all these, that someone said, Let God be glorified . . . 22

<sup>23</sup> Program for the Dedication of McAlister Auditorium, April 27, 1983

## THE GREENVILLE COUNTY POSTAL SYSTEM, 1795-1967

DERON D. DAVIS AND DIRON K. DURHAM

Communication is the vehicle of civilization. Without the ability to communicate, man would be little more than another dumb animal, and the accomplishments of one generation would be last before reaching the next. It might even be said that the progress of man can be recognized as the means of communication became more sophisticated. In the beginning, important events became legends, handed down by word of mouth from father to son. When the art of writing became known, the tribal tales were inscribed, and the foundation for scholarship was laid. This knowledge could have been lost in Europe, however, during the Durk Ages if it had not been for the monks of the Roman Catholic Church who painstakingly copied the earlier manuscripts. When the printing press was invented c.1450, a giant stride was taken in the march of civilization. More knowledge could be disseminated to a greater number of people in a shorter period of time than ever before. This invention was one element of the Renaissance-the glorious age which witnessed the revival of learning. With the ninetcenth and twentieth centuries, the advances in technology gave us the telephone, radio, and television. Once more the news could be told by word of mouth, and another historical cycle is complete.

The developments described above, however, are broad in scope. Personal communication is still accomplished by the pen when distance, economy, and perminence are considered. This paper then will examine the heginnings and growth of the pestal system in Greenville County, Its dual purpose will be to Blustrate the advantages gained by the inhabitants of this area because of this service and also to show that the trends of the national portal service can be seen in microcosm—in this case, Greenville County, South Carolina.

Greenville District, as it was called until the Constitution of 1868 changed the political subdivisions to counties, was formed in 1786 from the recently astablished Washington District.¹ Significantly, the eres had had a past office for three years which had been authorated February 28. 1795. It was opened on April 1 of that year at Gresoville Court House, and the Fostmaster General of the United States appointed Jesse Catter to be the first Fostmaster. The early mailings were received through Calumbia every two weeks and were carried on horseback in saddlebegs by John Bostic who held the contract for the route.¹ Bostic and the successive carriers, two of whom were James Lewis (1814-1816) and John McLean (1839-1834), taveled by way of the State Road which had been constructed from Charleston to Gresswille. By the time that McLean's contract was swarded, the route had been cartended to Ashwell, North Caroline. This extension was made possible by the connection of the Perhaest Hullway to Ashvellie in the 1890's.

Contrary to popular ballef, it was not the Pony Express, which was established in 1800, but men such as Bostic, Lewis, and McLean who were the Inspiration for the Post Office Department seal. On May 1, 1837, Amos Kendall, Pastmaster General, directed that the seal would show a "Post Horse in speech, with mail bags and rider, controled by the words 'Post Office Department, United States of America, Post of Post Office Department, United States of America, Post of Post Office Department, United States of America, Post Office Department, United States Office, Post Office, Po

By 1887 the postal system in Greenville District had grown to such an extent that it warranted weekly mail schedules for every section of the area—North, South, East, and West. These mailings, of course, went by way of Edgefrield, Spartamburg, Columbia, Pendiston, Augusta, and Rotherfordton.<sup>6</sup>

Three years later a contract was awarded to Sammel Tates and Edwin Four of Morganton, North Carolina, to establish a new route for transporting mult betice a weak from Salem, North Carolina, through Huntsville, Statesville, Morganton, and Rutherfordton to Grenzrille and Back it one of the four-horee post coaches used

<sup>1</sup>Print Wendow Handricks, The South Cavalinion and His Cocurament (Chaple, South Cavaline: Print W. Rendricks, 1988), p. 183.

TLaster S. Jaymes to Rresst F. Hollings, Horosubus 20, 1006. See the research papers compiled by Olina D. Davie which are filed in the Gowerville County Library. SCremerille Meanablests, Engineering 3, 1833.

<sup>4-</sup>Dahmi Shahm, Past Office Department, History of the Post Office Department (Weshington: Government Princing Office, 1866), p. 1.

Greenville Resulting, May S, 1887.

in this venture. It was noted at the time that this "notic presented a variety of indexements to ravelers in passing from the Northern to the Southern part of the Union . . . being the most direct routs from New York to New Orleans." This routs connected with the one established the provious year by Daniel B. Towers from Greenville to Augusta, Georgia. Towers, too, realized that he could suppliement his known from mail carriage by offering space to passengers. In his announcement which appeared in the Greenville Mountainers on June 30, 1889, he stated thet he would "Krop up a good state of passengers with four good capable of accommodating [sic] seven passengers with four good horses and [a] careful driver." The trip from Greenville to Augusta took shout three and one-half days. The fare was ten dollars—one way."

Such advertisements were enticing, no doubs, and the intenons were good perhaps. But did the contractors actually execute their schedules according to their plans? One Greenvillian thought that most of them did not and wrote the following observations shout the altustion:

The mail arrangements at this place are very objectionable. In the first place we have more stages here than we are entitled to, or there is any necessity for. The Salem Stage via Rutherfordton is carried by four horses twice a week from this place to Salem at an expense of eight thousand dollars. It seldom brings anything for this office except an empty mail bag . . . We never receive any papers or letters from Washington by this Stage. They come by the Columbia Stage which is carried by two horses, twice a week from this place to Columbia. This is the most important Stage we have, and yet very little attention seems to he paid to it. The coach is a very shackley affair and seldom gets here within three to four hours of the time it is due. It aught to arrive at 9 P.M. but most commonly reaches this place about twelve o'clock at night. This is great inconvenience to the citizens. The mail is never opened till the next morning, and consequently the letters are 3 instead of 2 days in arriving from Columbia . . . The Buncombe Stage is likewise very objectionable. It is a very bad coach carried by 2 horses once a week, this from Asheville. . . . The Augusta Stage is well conducted and we have no complaint against it. The Lincolnton Stage is

<sup>\*</sup>Greenville Mountainess, November 19, 1830.

no doubt of great convenience to the people of Spartanburg, but none to us.\*

At a time when the Nullification Controversey was raging in the state and the nation, it is not surprising that people were very anxious to receive the mail as quickly as possible.

The travelers who might have alighted from the stages which passed through Greenville in the 1830's would have found themselves in a charming and prospersus community, as the following contemporary description indicates:

The village of Greenville—This beautiful and flourishing illtel place contains 64 dwelling houses—69 famillies, and population of about 600 persons; 31 young men, 4 wid-overs; 32 young jadies and 12 widows; 5 lawyers, 4 docton, 2 Farsons, 3 echoclanssters, 9 merchants, 6 tavern-beopers, 37 mechanis. It is incoprorated, 9 stores, 6 finit rate public houses, 2 brick churches, 2 brick eademies and 2 other brick buildings, 1 private school, circulating library, 5 tailors' shops, 3 milliner shops, 4 blacksmiths, 2 carrage making establishments, 2 tanyards, 2 grist mills, 1 aw mill, 1 aliver mith, 1 cabinet maker's shop, 1 shoe maker's shop, in a hope, and 1 printing office.

To the modern eye, used to seeing skyscrapers and intricate highway interchanges, the Greenville of yesteryear would be a quaint and curious place. To the inhabitants and visitors, however, it was a thriving metropolis.

Such a town would attract more citizens as the cembury progressed, for the social and excounci opportunities were great. At this time, however, only one-twentieth of the white population of the District lived there. The remaining 10,760 people were carving a life out of the rural regions, and they especially wanted to know what was taking place in local, national, and international affair. Fortunately, the District and began to be received and dispatched every week to serve the outlying areas. To facilitate the delivery of the frequent mail, more pote offices had been established; Travelex Rest (1908), Plasant Grove (1818), Fairview (1925), Governville and Beedy Fork (1826), Line Creek, Merritaville, and Savage (1937), Golden Grove (1828), Stemerulie (1829), and Pickets

<sup>67644,</sup> September 3, 1631.

<sup>87946,</sup> April 23, 1830.

Valley and Tullyton (1830). As the District population grow, other offices would be established in river mills, in general stores, offices would be established in river mills, in general stores, and in private dwellings—some with names like Stella, Manydell, Flora, Louise, Odessa, and Clara in honor of wives and daughters, and Clara in honor of wives and daughters. It least one, the Bessie Post Office, was named for an old sweetheart.<sup>19</sup>

The pottmasters in these offices were faced with many of the same problems which cause concern in the present system. The mail was delayed, missent, and sometimes not deliverable at all due to illegible addresses. In an effort to locate the addresses, postmasters would list undelivered letters in local newspapers before they were sent to the Dead Letter Office, which had been established in 1825;13 William E. Wickliffe, Postmaster at Greenville (1827-1829), seems to bave been a very considerate public official in seeing that people received their mail. Although the office desired at ten o'clock on the nights of mail arrival, Wickliffe would down and to "strangers or Travelers" after that hour so that they would not be inconvenienced. 12

Not everyone, however, was satisfied with the postal service, especially where newspapers were concerned. It was necessary for John McLean of the Post Office Department to remind the post-masters of their duty in the following words:

Sir: Complaints have been lately made of the delay, and some times loss, of newspapers sent by Mail. These may be attributable in some cases to the careless manner in which papers are prepared for the mail, but others they are believed to arise from inattention or design of Postmasters. It is feared some of them are so forgetful of their duty as to consult the convenience of the contractor on horse routes by retaining a part of the packets when the mail is so large. Others, it is add, hong more culpable, retain newspapers to read them. ... 3.

Since a newspaper was the major source of information for the people of the District at this time, it is understandable that such compaints were registered.

<sup>10</sup>See "Pent Offices in Greenville County, 1795-1987" following.

<sup>11</sup> Greenville Mountaineer, November 26, 1831, December 31, 1831; Greenville Republicon, November 18, 1826.

<sup>12</sup>Greenville Republicon, May 24, 1828.

<sup>187</sup>bid., July 12, 1826.

During this same period, the mail service between Columbia and Gremville was so poor that it was the subject of an editorial in the Greenville Mounteiners on February 20, 1830. To illustrate the sai state of affairs, the editor told of "one gentleman who exertied a peakage to the post office in Columbia on Monday morning, directed to [Coreaville] which did not arrive here till two days after the same gentlema returned hisself, although he did not start till one week after he had deposited the letter." This sort of situation, of course, would have to be corrected, and the Post Office Department issued instructions requiring "... every contractor to be scrupakously ponetual in his arrival at the specified points with the mail..." "

It pears that any improvement was abort-lived and also that much the same conditions prevailed throughout the country. It was necessary, therefore, for the federal government to take stronger section and minitar reforms. In 1830, a law was passed by Congress which citild for a better organization for the postal service with respect to the revenues and expenditures of the Department. To further insure that the system would be run efficiently and honestly, the Office of Auditor was created, and the authority to appoint postmetter whome ennual salary exceeded \$1,000.00 was taken from the Fostmaster General and given to the Fresident of the United States. 19

The postal service in the District seems to have improved simply because the whole system was administered more effectively. Since 1783, it had cost six cents to send a half-ounce letter thirty miles, but in 1845 postage mates were lowered no that letters not weighing more than one-half ounce could be sent three bundred miles for five cents. The sate doubled when this distance was se-concled. More services were offered to the public, such as postage strange in 1847 and stamped envelopes in 1853. Prior to these in-norations, letters were marked Thelf in lick or with a special hand stamp which frequently hore the town postmark as well as the date of mailing, solve meloursmarks are referred to as "Postmarkstang".

<sup>14</sup>Greenville Mountainers, Fuhruncy SD, 1830. 16Thid., August ST, 1831.

<sup>16</sup> Enther J. Dudgarm, Harvey of the Unived States Fostel Service (Washington: Legislative Reference Service, The Library of Congress, 1987), p. 9.

Provisionals" and are considered rare examples of Americana to-

Of all the improvements being made in the national postal survice, the most exciting was connected with the boom in railroad building, and this new method of transporting passengers and mail did not hwness South Carolina or Greenville District The Charleston and Hamburg Railroad, completed in 1833, stretched 138 miles inland from the coast, making it the longest in the world at the time and the second road of importance to be built in the South, the first being the Baltimore and Ohio which was begun in 1828.18 By the summer of 1847, "the people of the up country and Columbia [were] in a perfect fever on the Subject of Railroads," remarked John McRae, engineer of the South Carolina Railroad.20 Two years earlier the Columbia and Greenville Railroad had been organized under the laws of the State, but the fall in the price of cotton resulted in a delay in construction. During the 1850's. however, the economy recovered, and the Columbia and Greenville Railroad was completed, opening the era of mail carriage by rail for Greenville District in 1853.21

Since the Columbia and Creenville Railroad was the only railway in the District, and since this sination remained state until 1873 when the first trains operated through Greenville on the Charlotte and Atlanta Airline Railway, <sup>23</sup> the creation of the "Star Rotte" System, though less spectacular, was probably more important to the citizens of Greenville District at the time. By an Act of Congress passed on March 3, 1845, provision was made for mail service to small post offices which were not located on callway lines and to families who lived between such offices. Contracts for carrying the mail on these roots were let to the lowest bidder who would guarantee performance and due celerity and security. These routes—desimated by three stary deposition "containty," "coler-

<sup>18</sup> United States, Post Office Department, Fistery of United States Pentage Stavess, Fowlar Carda, and Scamped Emergence (Washington: Covercement Printing Office, 1983), Ph. 1 and 6.

<sup>10</sup> Clement Eaton, A Names of the Old South (New York: The Macmillan Campuny, 1940), pp. 414-415.
20164, p. 417.

<sup>21</sup>B. E. Young to Dixon D. Davis, February 2, 1987. See the narranth papers counted by Dixon D. Davis which are Bled in the Creenville County Library. 22784.

ity," and "security"—came to be known as "Star Routes." Their crestains was undoubtedly a great improvement in the postal system in Greenville District and of more significance to the rural society of the upper country of South Cardina than the railways in the 1840's and 1830's. These foresumers of the Rural Free Delivery service filled a definite need in the District.

The dends of the 1850's winnessed a growth in the national common which were reflected in the folceal potent Piece and the search of the property of the cost of seading a lotter not weighing more than one-half concer was lowered to three control of the control of the property of the local economy may also be sean in the District portal pysiem. The construction of the Columbia and Cerewille subsered in a new era in transportation. Fatter freight, passenger, and mail service brought these two cities, asing with intermediate towns and villages, into closer economic and notical contact. By May of 1851, fifty more offices had been opened in the District since the one at Creenville Court House had been established, and only seventeen had been discontinued during this practic of sinylary spars.

One of the offices opened in the Dibtrice in the 1850's has an appeally internating stept connected with its name. The Oil Camp Part Office, established in 1859 in the old Davenport Hotel near River Falls, took in same from an old Indian samp site in the sere. It was to this camping ground at the footbills of the mountains that the Indians brought bear, deer, and wild bear to reduce their fatt to di. Beasuse of the oily condition of the area where the Indians boiled the animal fat, the truil beasume known as Oil Camp Road. Although this office was open only seven years, being discontinued in 1860, it remains a unique hit of history in the stury of Greenville County.

With the advent of the War Between the States there were few immediate changes in service offered by the postal system. The Confederate government took over the existing establishment, and General John H. Reagan of Texas became the Postmaster General.

SE Rather J. Dedgerm, Stetney of the United Sense Powtal Service (Washington: Lagislative Releases Service, The Library of Compress, 1897), p. 11.

<sup>265</sup>es "Fost Offices in Commelle County, 1765-1987," following.

The Confederate Congress authorized him to continue the same postmasters and mail carriers until new appointments and contracts could be made. So, except for the men who resigned from their positions to serve in the Confederate Army, the personnel of the nextal system remained the same. Later in an attempt to keep the Department from merating at a deficit the Confederate Congress raised the postage rates and authorized Reagan to "pare postal routes to a minimum, re-negotiate mail contracts with the railmads, and discontinue or curtail the service at his discretion."27 Because of a dearth of records, it can only be assumed that the nostal system in Greenville District generally followed the trend of the Confederate Post Office Department. In the post-war period the services inaugurated in the United States Post Office Department during the conflict, such as a uniform letter rate regardless of distance and city delivery service (1863) and the sale of money orders (1864), were extended to the post offices in the District.28 Actually, despite the fact that the postal system had been taken over by the Confederacy from 1881 to 1885, the post offices in Greenville District were retained on the records of the United States Post Office Department in Washington, D. C. However, during the early years of the Reconstruction Period, twenty-six post offices in the District were closed, seventeen of which were reestublished later 20

From the Reconstruction Era through the last quatter of the nineteenth century, there was little development in the federal or local postal services. The single significant local event during these years was the completion of the Charlotte and Allana Alfaine Raliway, opened on September Si, 1873. Since life in Greenville Cousty controved around the rural, agrarian economy, most of the post-masters were also involved in various business activities. One of the more enterprising of these officials was Isaac Kelley, Tontaster at Kelley's Store during its existence from September Si, 1873, to December 21, 1881. In addition to his duties as postmaster, Kelley

StMarian D. Hall, Comparison of United States and Confederate Period Serving the Civil War (Washington: Legislative Reference Service, The Library of Compan, 1992), v. S.

<sup>25</sup> United States, Post Office Department, History of the Fast Office Department (Washington: Coverament Printing Office, 1955), p. 45
2150e "Post Offices to Greenwille County, 1795-1997," following.

operated a county store, a farm, a saw mill, a grist mill, and a licensed government distillery.  $^{80}$ 

With the approach of the tweatieth century the Gressrulle County postal service had its problems with the animals connected with the mail and train schedules. This take appeared in the Gressrulle Ness and typifies the helter-skelter, happy-go-lucky spirit of the people who lived in the "Cay You."

The city [had] a gay mule which [was] in its services about 18 vers, under enary administrations and was a veterus when first bought. [but the] . Greenville 1:100 Ab. Maul is the Southern Depot. One of them [was] known to carry the mail and deliver it safely after he had fallen and thrown his rider. But all these came to untimely took the sudden mile and a quarter run over bad roads to the dark and in all kinds of weather having heen too much for them . These reacts against time used to be of intense interest to the people along Washington Street. 19

With the turn of the contury came an innovation in the federal point system which had an astronuding impact on the system in Generalle County. This was the creation of Rural Free Delivery Service by the passage of a bill on March 3, 1980, proposed by the Hammable Thamas E. Watton of Corogia. This service was experimental at first, and seven years passed before it was inaugurated in Cremeralle County. On March 15, 1900, William H. McDraid became the carrier on the first cural route out of the Greenville Post Office.<sup>33</sup>

This change in mail delivery bad two important effects on the natives of Greenville County. First, those people who lived in the county would now have their mail brought to them invested of having to pick it up at the local part office. Second, with the begivening of this new service, it was soon realized that the need for the smaller port offices throughout the county no longer existed.

Within five years after the first raral route was established in Greenville County, nixty-six offices were discontinued, and

solbid.

<sup>21</sup> Greenville Nous, undeted alipping, sives 1800.

<sup>\$25</sup>ce research papers conceded by Dison D. Davis which are filed in the Greenwill County Library.

only four of them were ever reconneed.\*\* The Reid Post Office offers an excellent example of such action. When the office was closed on September 30, 1903, the mail was sent to the Greenville Post Office which was not very convenient for the people who lived on the eastern outskirts of the city. John T. Walker made a survey of the territory and contacted Congressman Joseph T. Johnson and asked for rural mail service. Later, after Johnson explored the proposed delivery area with Walker and found that the concept warranted action, Rural Route One out of the Taylors Post Office was extended to include this territory.24 To the people of Greenville County who received their mail by Rural Free Delivery, their mail carriers must have been the embodiment of the inscription on the Post Office Department Building in our nation's capital: "Neither snow nor raio nor heat nor gloom of night stays these couriers from the swift completion of their appointed rounds."

With the coming of the Rural Free Delivery Service and the closing of so many of the smaller offices. Greenville County entered the twentieth century and the era of the New South. The society and economy would become more dynamic in only a few more years as technology discovered the ways to invent incredible communication media and modes of transportation. The television, the automobile, and the airplane would speed the news and the traveler on their way. The Post Office Department took advantage of these new developments and used them in order to serve the public more quickly and more efficiently. The first air mail service into Greenville landed at the Municipal Airport on August 20, 1930. The Highway Post Office Service between Columbia and Greenville first ran on March 28, 1949, and between Greenville and Augusta, Georgia, the following day, 25

By 1968, Greenville County has only thirteen post offices, but there are also thirty-five rural routes stretching L630 miles to 16,906 families in the county. The volume of mail has increased to such an extent that in the first three quarters of 1967, these post offices had gross receipts of \$3,118,461.09 as compared with \$44.-

<sup>32</sup>Ses "Port Offices to Greenville County, 1795-1987," following, 34Fbid.

<sup>85</sup>William J. Hartigan to Strom Thurmond, Paterusry 8, 1987, fee the tests of compiled by Dixon D. Davis which are filed in the Greenville County Library

765.02 for the entire state of South Carolina in 1830.44 The new pastal rate is also exist for a letter but as a sign of positive historical change the letter can weigh twice as much as its half-ounce theoretic.

The advances of Greenville County and its postal system are wides. Despite the ZIP program, now in its fifth year, the postal starvice continues to be the most satisfactory form of personal and business communication when expense and permanence are considered. However, old-timen remember with nortalgia the post office in a country store with the friendly postmaster who knew your name, where heated political dehastes took place, and where one could bear the news of the neighborhood as well as that of the world. It latinacy and charm are the victime of the same progress which carries us forward to now dimensions of meaningful lives.

## POST OFFICES IN GREENVILLE COUNTY 1795 - 1967

Compiled by Dixon B. Davis, 1967

# PART I

This is an ulphabetical list of Post Offices which have been stabilished in Greenville County since February 22, 1795, whose location have been identified. Persons withing to locate individual post offices and data about each may use a much more compileducy amoutated list and accompanying map in the arrivers of the Society.

ACADEMIA: Established April 15. 1836; Alcumder Thompson, Pontmaster. In 1885 the name was changed to CRIPPLE CREEK with Alsounder Thompson as postmanter.

ANSEL: Established December 30, 1889; Spartan D. Mosteller, Hast Portmaster. Discontinued-mail to Green-October 31, 1983; Spartan D. Mosteller, last Postmaster.

ALTAMONT: Established Jane 16,

1809, William Lee, Portmuster, Discontinued — and to Generollia — August 31, 1801. Re-established Appl 17, 1809, William E. Johnston, Appl 17, 1809, William E. Johnston, Parlmont — August 31, 1800, Leeestablished March 9, 1906; Leemal to Frenena — August 31, 1908. Holmes, Postmaster. Discontinued mail to Frenena — August 31, 1909. Re-established Mary 13, 1809; Leon S. Holmes, Postmaster. Discontinued S. Holmes, Postmaster. Discontinued 31, 1915. Lacy S. Holmes, last Postmaster.

States records papers compiled by Dison D. Davis which are filled in the Gressville County Library.

ARMSTRONG: Established August 16, 1892; John L. Brockman, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — February 15, 1902. Wm. M. Brookman, last Postmaster.

ASHMORE'S STORE: Established December 2, 1859; John S. Ashmore, Postmaster. Discontinued — October 4, 1866; John S. Ashmore, last Postmaster.

BABBTOWN: Established November 30, 1873; Thaddeus Babb, first Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Fountain Inn — September 14, 1903; Thaddeus Babb, last Postmaster.

BARNETTS: Established April 15, 1890; Berriman A. Barnett, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Arden — November 29, 1894; Berriman A. Barnett, last Postmaster.

BATESVILLE: Established February 26, 1890; Ellen E. Suddeth, first Postmaster. Discontinued — mall to Greer — February 28, 1907; John W. Baker, last Postmaster.

BATSON: Established December 1, 1890; Mary A. Coleman, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Travelers Rest — February 15, 1907; Mary A. Coleman, last Postmaster.

BELLEVUE: Established July 27, 1874; Charles P. Runfon, Postmassier. Discontinued — July 15, 1875. Reestablished January 20, 1876. (Prior to Feb. 29, 1876 the office was officially designated BELLVIEW.) Daniel U. Lee, Postmaster. Discontinued September 14, 1901; Henry H. Barnett, last Postmaster.

BERRY'S MILL: Established in April 28, 1848; Micajah Berry, Postmaster. Name changed to TULLYTOWN July 27, 1848.

BESSIE: Established March 9, 1899; George P. Ashmore, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Piedmont — July 15, 1904; George P. Ashmore, last Postmaster. BETTIE: Established November 25, 1891; Elix Robertson, first Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Tigerville — July 30, 1904. Elixabeth Robertson, last Postmaster.

BOND: Established October 14, 1902. Walter C. Barhare, first Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Jessie — June 15, 1904; Walter C. Barbare, last Postmaster.

BRAMLETT: Established December 6, 1893; James B. Bramlett, first Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to McCarter — June 15, 1900

BRANDON: Established September 13, 1900; Theodore A. Honour, Jr., Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — August 31, 1904.

BRUTONS: Established July 9, 1886; Benj. F. Neves, first Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Bellevae — February 6, 1890; Jeff D. McKinney, last Postmaster.

BUENA VISTA: Established September 7, 1847; Josish Kllgore, first Postmaster. Discontinued – January 4, 1867 – Re-established April 14, 1870. Mrs. Martha Bowers, Postmaster. Name of office changed to PELHAM September 20, 1880.

BURGESS: Established June 30, 1892; John D. Burgess, first and last Postmaster. Discontinued — med to Venus — October 18, 1895.

CAESAR'S HEAD: Established May 31, 1856; Phillip B. Martin, first Postmaster. Discontinued October 4, 1856. Re-established October 23, 1896; William H. Dunn, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — November 30, 1955.

CARL: Established October 10, 1902; Christopher G. Drake, Postmaster. Discontinued — mall to Marietta — December 31, 1904; Christopher Drake was only Postmaster. GATOURAH: Established January 20, 1843; J. Harvey Cleveland, first Postmuster. Discontinued September 4, 1840; J. Harvey Cleveland, last Pustmenter

CEDAR FALLS: Established September 10, 1850; Micajah Berry, Fontmaster, Discontinuad September 29, 1896. Es-established November 28, 1870; H. Turbyfill, Postmaster. Discontinued January 23, 1879; J. W. Harrison, last Postmaster.

CEDRUS: Established June 16, 1898; William P. Nesbitt, Postmaster, Discontinued — mail to Pt. Inn — September 30, 1903. William P. Neshitt, last Portmarter.

CHANDLER: Established January 18, 1891; Samuel T. McKittrick, Postmatter. Discontinued — mail to Tony Creak — August 14, 1909; Lenuel T. H. Daniel, last Postmartur.

CHECKEROO: Established (dats not shown on photostat); Sfas Erown was Postmater on January 30, 1843. Name of office changed to TITUROY January 30, 1843.

CHICK SPRINGS: Established March 19, 1887; Alfred Taylor, Pentameter. Discontinued — mail to Taylors — January 9, 1918; Columbus B. Martin, last Postmaster.

CLARA: Established March 13, 1901; Joseph A. Bates, Postmaster. Discontinued — real to Venue — December 31, 1984; Walker Masters. Just Postmaster.

CLEAR SPRINGS: Exchibbed May 11, 1859. William Coldmith Postmatter. Discontinued January 4, 1867. Re-established April 24, 1372. Robert League, Pottmaster. Discontinued --mail to Walkerville - June 18, 1868. Re-established March 18, 1891. Western State State State 18, 1868. Re-established March 20, 1891. May J. McKinney, Pottmaster. Discontinued --mail to Sumpender - November 20, 1901; Thomas F. McKinney, Pottmaster. CLEVELAND: Established April 9. 1900; David Bates, Postmastar.

CONESTEE: Established August 4: 1917; James P. Charles, Postmaster This office was originally named REEDY RIVER FACTORY.

CRIPPLE CREEK: Established Of tober 6, 1825; Alexander Thompson-Postmaster, On April 13, 1824, usue of office changed to ACADEMIA. Os June 9, 1835, name changed back in CRIPPLE CREEK: Discontinual September 29, 1866. John H. Haufren was last Postmaster.

On October 3, 1893, another effice under the name of CRIPPLE GREEK was established with William Herrison as postmaster. On July 1, 1895, the name was changed to GRIPPLECREEK, Samuel E. Hardson was appointed Postmaster as exceed the office until it was discussified when the same of the control of the contr

CROTWELL: Established April II 1892; John M. Crain, Postmatter Discontinued — mail to Chie Springs — February 15, 1902; Mi Carrie M. Black, last Postmaster.

DUBLIN: Established August 5, 1886; Alexander C. Jackson, Penmaster. Discontinued September 23, 1886; David Anderson, last Fostmater.

DUNKLIN: Established July 13, 1849; James C. Sollivan, Portmaster. Discontinued September 29, 1861. Researching A force of Alerch 30, 1871; Churles D. Smith Postruster. Discontinued June 27, 1878, Researching Movember 10, 1888. Discontinued June 10 to House Fish — March 1, 1905; Alice Slumate, left Postmaster.

ELISE: Established August 30, 1904; John W. Moody, Postmester. Discontinued — mail to Marietta — January 2, 1907; John W. Moody, last Postmaster. FAIRVIEW: Established September 14, 1855; William C. Gunnells, Postmaster. Discontinued September 25, 1830. Re-established February 15, 1838. Discontinued September 29, 1809. Re-established Cotober 7, 1806; James Dunbar, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Ft. Inn — September 30, 1903; James B. Wasson, last Postmaster.

FLORA: Established January 15, 1900; Luther L. Greene, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Simpsonville — November 30, 1901; Luther L. Greene, last Postmaster.

FORK SHOALS: Established between Oct. 1 and December 31, 1801. based on 1st quarterly report filed with Postmaster Ceneral by John H. Harrison, then Postmaster. Discontinued—nual to Ft. Inn — August 31, 1807; James B. Riddle, last Postmaster.

FOUNTAIN INN: Established October 30, 1832; William McNeely, Postmaster. Discontinued January 4, 1867. Re-established July 16, 1867; Miss Mary F. Jones, Postmaster. Discontinued February 10, 1871. Re-established June 11, 1872; Walter Stewart Postmaster.

FREEMAN: Established March 28, 1881; Mrs. Mary D. Freeman, first Postmaster. Discontinued November 4, 19, 1884. Re-established November 4, 1901; John L. Watkins, Postmaster. Discontinued December 31, 1908; John L. Watkins, last Postmaster.

GANTT: Established December 8, 1897; Samuel A. Whitmire, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — June 15, 1905; Samuel A. Whitmire, last Postmaster.

CILDER: Established July 2, 1843; William L. M. Austin, Postmaster. Discontinued August 22, 1866; William L. M. Austin, Iast Postmaster.

GLASSY: Established November 26, 1888; Shapleigh W. Barton, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Tigerville — October 15, 1904; Shapleigh W. Barton, last Postmaster. GOLDEN GROVE: Established October 24, 1824; Charles Gartison, Postmaster. Discontinued August 22, 1886. Re-established August 15, 1876; Jasper Wilson, Postmaster. Discontinued June 30, 1881; Jasper Wilson, last Postmaster.

GOWANSVILLE: Established February 28, 1826; Alfred Whitten, Postmuster: Discontinued – mail to Campobello – February 15, 1802, Henry S. Reid, last Postmaster.

GRANDEUR: Established December 30, 1867; William B. Johnson, Port-master. Discontinued — mail to Middle Saluda — December 14, 1807; Hattie Johnson, last Postmaster.

GREENVILLE COURT HOUSE: Establishment of office authorized February 22, 1795, but did not open for business until shortly before April 1, 1795, Josee Carter, was first Postmaster. Name changed to CREEN-VILLE January 20, 1886.

CREERS DEPOT, CREER DEPOT, CREER: Established October 6, 1873; John W. Cunningham, Postmaster. Name changed, April 13, 1893. Established as GREER December 27, 1901; Isham A. Mayfield, Postmaster.

GROVE STATION: Established June 23, 1858; W. S. Hewell, Pastmaster. Discontinued March 18, 1881; Simeon Eskew, Postmaster: Re-established under name of GROVE April 23, 1883; John P. M. Cox, Postmaster. Discontinued – mail to Piedmont – July 30, 1910; Jefferson D. Eskew, last Postmaster.

HARTS STORE: Established February 28, 1875; William L. Hent, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail New York — March 1, 1890. William J. McCain, last Postmaster.

HICHLAND: Established May 8, 1884; Memory C. Carrison, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Campohello — October 14, 1905; Am B. Harrison, last Postmaster. HIGHLAND GROVE: Established December \$8, 1843; Lewis H. Diekey, first Postmaster. On Man 8. 1884 name of office changed to HICHLAND.

HILLSIDE: Established January 22, 1900; Nannie E. McKittrick, Postmaster. Discontinued - mail to Fountain Ins - May 30, 1903; Nannie E. McKBrick, Postmoster.

HOOD: Established December 22, 1900; Henry G. Copeland, Postmaster. Discostinued - mail to Greer -October 31, 1909; Henry C. Copeland, last Postmester.

HUNTERSVILLE: Established October 14. 1887; William D. Hunter, first Postmaster, Discontinued - mail to Simpsonville - November 30, 1901; George H. Jones, last Postmaxter. This office was originally established as STONESVILLE.

ESSE or IESSIE: Established Deember 18, 1903; William A. Talley, catmater. Discontinued - mail to Marietta - December 15, 1904; Rubin L. Talley, last Postmaster,

KELLEYS STORE: Established September 28, 1872; Isaac Kelley, Postmarter, Discontinued December 21, 1881; Issac Lelly, last Postmaster.

LENDERMAN: Established March \$3, 1881; Jacob H. Lenderman, Postmanter. Discontinued - mail to Greenville - May 14, 1904; Thomas M. Griffin, last Postmaster.

LICKVILLE: Established lanuary 24, 1837; Samuel Moore, first Post-master. Discontinued October 4, 1866. Re-established February 4, 1889; Samuel G. McKittrick, Postmeaster. Discontinued - mail to Pelzer - August 31, 1907; C. Edich McCaulay, last Postmaster.

LILY: Established October 31, 1893; Annie Cunningham, Postmarter. Discontinued - mail to Greet - October

31. 1902; John H. Lipscomb, last Postmaster.

LIMA: Established August 6, 1858; John H. Goodwin, Postmeritz. Diecontinued October 4, 1866. Re-established November 13, 1866. J. Laton Goodwin, Postmaster, Discontinued -mall to Travelers Sest - September 15, 1904

LINE CREEK: Established March 31, 1827; Silar Getree, Postmester, Discontinued July 27, 1868.

LOCUST: Established March 4. 1890: George W. Poole, Postmarter-Discontinued - mail to Travelure Bast - August 13, 1904; George W. Poole, last Postmaster.

LOUISE: Established December 28, 1899; William B. Moore, first Postmaster. Discontinued - mail to Simpronville - November 30, 1901; William B. Moore, last Postmaster.

McCARTER: Established February 16, 1862; William M. McCarter, Postmaster. Discontinued - mail to Commelle - November 30, 1901; Calvin B. McCarter, last Postmen-

MARIETTA: Established February 1, 1889; Henderson Good, Postmastar, This office was originally named CHECKEBOO. Name changed Isn-

usty 30, 1843, to TITUROY, Name changed February 1, 1859, to MARIETTA. MARYDELL: Emblished February 17, 1885; John W. Boling, Postmen-ter. Discontinued - mail to Travelere

Rest - July 30, 1904. August G. Borwell, last Postmaster. MAULDIN: Established January 10, 1887; Riley E. Cor. Postmaster.

MAYFIELD: Established January & 1886; Lillian Mayfield, first Postmaster. Discontinued - mail to Marietts - July 30, 1904; John W. Moody,

last Postmanter

MERRITISVILLE: Established July 20, 1637; John Hodgas, Postmaster. Discontinued December 10, 1866. Re-established April 18, 1873; William T. Burns, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Tignrville — June 30, 1905; Emma Humphreys, last Postmaster.

METTS: Established August 20, 1896; Curry A. Fowler, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Chick Spring — February 15, 1902.

MIDDLE SALUDA: Established July 27, 1870; Fhilip Hart, Fortmatter. Discontinued June 14, 1883; Reestablished October 10, 1899; William L. Morgan, Fostmather. Discontinued — mull to Marietta — October 30, 1809; Thomas T. Falls, last Fostmaster.

MILBURG: Established October 4, 1850; John Weaver, Postmaster. Discontinued June 19, 1888; Henry Gross, last Postmaster.

MILLERT: Established November 25, 1891; Mildred Holcombe, Fostmaster. Discontinued — mail to Bettle — September 11, 1899; Alfred A. Stewart, Postmaster.

MITCHELL: Established April 16, 1888; Joseph C. Mitchell, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greer — August 14, 1908; Massana T. Campbell. Postmaster.

MONTAGUE: Established November 18, 1893; Eugene Goodwin, Postmaster. Discontinued — med to Creenvilla — February 14, 1903; Lixxio Marchbanks, last Postmaster.

MUSH CREEK: Established May 18, 1836; Oliver Barrett, Postonasser. Disconsinued February 9, 1877. Reseatablished May 22, 1877; Lewis H. Shamate, Postmanter. Disconsinued — mail to Tagerville — February 10, 1882; Levi H. Shumate last Postmater.

NEW LIBERTY: Established June 15, 1855; William T. Carter, Postmaster. Discootinued June 15, 1856; John Carmony, last Postmaster.

NIX: Established July 13, 1692; Robert R. Niz, Postmester. Discontinued — mad to Travelers Ret — May 14, 1904; Thomas E. Roe, lest Postmaster.

NORTH SALUDA: Established May 27, 1850; Julief Gord, Pastmaster. Discontinued January 11, 1859, Jeffecton Barton, Postmastur.

ODESSA: Established October 5, 1863; Albert W. Neves, Foximaster. Discontinued — saft to Lily — July 18, 1802; Albert W. Neves, last Postmaster.

Oll, CAMP: Established December 2, 1859; David Davessport, Postmater. Discontinued September 25, 1860; David Davesport, last Postmaytar.

ONEAL: Established January 25, 1876; John M. Dicisson, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greer — May 31, 1804; John F. Neves, lest Postmaster.

PARISMONT: Established May 24, 1899; Frederick Willcox, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — June 30, 1909; Frederick W. Willcox, last Postmaster.

PIEDMONT: Established January 31, 1876; William T. Thackston, first Postmaster.

PELHAM: Established September 30, 1860; Oliver P. Jackson, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greer — February 28, 1917; McMillan C. King, last Postmaster. Office was carginally established as BUENA VISTA September 7, 1847.

FLAIN. Entablished Inne I. 1836; Jean S. Cook, Pertinater. Democraticaed September 28, 1898. Restated September 28, 1898. Restatelbilabed July 11, 1857; James S. to & e., Pottanater. Discontinued June 19, 1898; Re-stablished May 30, 1899, Jeans K. Stone, Pottanater. Discontinued April 19, 1878; Reentablished June 17, 1878; James 7, Adams, Portmarter. Name of office changed to SIMFSONVILLE, March 0, 1898. PLEASANT CROVE: Xenchibled Jeen Shi Jilli, Filipi CL Lefter, Filip

PLINETY Established July 18, 1840; Thomas P. Brookman Protestantir. Discretioned September 25, 1868. Re-established April 4, 1870. Discretioned May 14, 1873. Re-established July 21, 1873. Re-estabtished July 21, 1873. Re-estabcual to Fora — Jassany 2, 1801; Thomas P. Brookman, Jast Postmaster.

PROCRESS: Established April 28, 1894; Willie R. Jones, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greer — October 31, 1902; Luther A. Vaughn, last Pustmaster.

POMEROY: Established October 31. 1851; Baylis E. Frince, Fostmaster. Discontinued ~ mull to Mush Creek — October 10, 1857; Baylis E. Prince, last Fostmaster.

REID: Established May 3, 1881; Tundy W. Reid, Postmarter. Discontimed — mail to Greenville — September 30, 1903; Robert Y. Rossmond. Last Postmarter.

REEDY PORK: Established November 6, 1826; Nathan Berry, Postmaster. Discontinued April 28, 1840; Nathan Berry, last Postmaster.

REEDY NIVER FACTORY: Established August 16, 1876; Josel D. Carbia, Postmater. Discoutiened stall to Geonwife — September 30, 1800; Jacob H. Lendersum, Protinsatur. The present posterior of Constee was established on August 4, 1917, when the name was changed to CONESTEE.

RICHARDSON: Established Decentibre 20, 1809; John D. Richardson, Fostquester. Discorptionated — natil to Storpacoville — November 30, 1901; John D. Richardson, Pastumeter.

RIVER FALLS: Established August 31, 1913; Oron M. Vernon, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Camers Head — January 15, 1910; Oron M. Varnon, last Postmaster.

RIVER VIEW: Established August 15, 1857; John C. Shackelsford, Pustmassie: Name changed to "RIV-ERVIEW" September 10, 1895. Disconstitued September 14, 1997; Leusiul I. Jennings, last Postmustis:

SALUDA: Established Jenuary 30, 1851; John M. Cestwell, Postmester. Dimentinued October 25, 1845; Devid Elythe, Postmaster.

SANDY FLAT: Established June 11, 1843; James R. Rowland, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Chick Springs — February 15, 1902; George W. Bruce, last Postmaster.

SAINT ALBANS: Established August 5, 1880; Pascal D. Huff. Postmatur. Discontinued June 27, 1889. Resetablished March 5, 1891; Samuel J. Yeargin, Postmaster. Discontinued mail to Piedmont — April 30, 1904; Junes A. Tripp, last Postmaster.

SAMPOE: Established April 6, 1896; Rudolphus Walker, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Growrville — August 31, 1901; Marion F. Gambrell, last Postmaster.

SANOMA: Established April 11, 1802; Bennett W. Holland, Postmatter. Discontinued — ruall to Woodville — September 15, 1803; David T. Texty, Jaar Postmaster.

SAMS SOUCI: Established February 16, 1901; Louise Bankhead Petry. Fusquaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — May 31, 1904; Louise Bankhead Perry, last Postmuster. SIMPSONVILLE: This office, originally designated as PLAIN, was changed to SIMPSONVILLE on March 6, 1885.

SLATER: Established July 10, 1928; James A. Lybrand, Postmaster.

SOUTH SALUDA: Established August 30, 1852; Wm. F. Hunt, Post-master. Discontinued November 1, 1854. Re-established April 29, 1856. Discontinued July 22, 1857; David Blythe, last Postmaster.

STELLA: Established April 4, 1900; Spartan C. Bornar, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Oneal — February 28, 1901; Spartan C. Bornar, last Postmaster.

STERLING CROVE: Established June 29, 1837; Henry Sherman, Postmaster. Discontinued October 4, 1866. Re-established August 16, 1876. Name of office changed to STERLING, June 29, 1892.

STERLING: Established June 29, 1892; Thomas Stenhouse, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — August 31, 1907; Thomas Stenhouse, last postmaster. This office was originally designated STERLING CROVE but on June 29, 1892 the name was changed to STERLING.

STONE HOUSE: Established October 16, 1853; James W. Young, Postmaster. Discontinued December 6, 1856.

STONESVILLE: Established September 1, 1899; Benjamin Kilgore, Postmaster. Discontinued April 23, 1839. Re-established September 9, 1839. Name changed to HUN-TERSVILLE, October 14, 1837. Matthew C. Gunningham, was then partmaster.

TAHO: Established March 5, 1891; Riley Jackson, Postmaster. Discontinued — mall to Greer — June 30, 1904; Riley Jackson, last Postmaster.

TAYLORS: Established March 9, 1904; Garrie R. Howell, first Postmaster. TERRY: Established February 9, 1899; Larkin Trammell, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Marietta — July 30, 1904; Larkin Trammell, last Postmaster.

TIGERVILLE: Established August 31, 1881; Lerwuel I. Jenningx, Postmaster.

TITUROY: Established under the name TITUROY January 30, 1843 Slass Beason, Postmoster. The name of this office was originally CHECKEROO. The name of this office was changed to MARIETTA February 1,1859.

TRAVELERS REST: Established October 1, 1806; Thomas Edwards, Postmaster. Discontinued December 17, 1860. Re-established June 4, 1866; Miss Elizabeth Redfern, Postmaster. Discontinued April 2, 1868. Re-established July 15, 1869; Miss Sarah E. Coleman, Postmaster.

TULLYTON: Established November 5, 1830; Jacob Goodgian, Postmaster. Discontinued July 11, 1849; Thaddeus C. Boling, Postmaster. The name of this office was changed to CEDAR FALLS September 10, 1850.

TYCER: Established December 24, 188; Robert C. Lister, Portmaster. Discontinued — mail to Campobello — December 16, 1902; Benton L. Turner, Postmaster.

VENUS: Established July 9, 1892; William B. Hardin, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Cleveland — August 15, 1836. Clam Crocker, last Postmaster.

WALKERSVILLE: Established April 11, 1881; John S. Hill, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Greenville — October 31, 1901; James H. Atkinson, last Postmaster.

WARES: Established June 25, 1894; James G. Ragydale, Fostmaster. Decontinued — mail to Pelzer — December 31, 1903; Thomas E. Ware, last Postmaster. WARTHEN: Established November 10, 1868; Peter A. McDavid, Postmaster. Discontinued — mail to Fountials Inn. — December 31, 1903; Joseph W. Sullivan, last Postmaster.

WHILDENS FACTORY: Established Juan 19, 1866; Mrs. Emely Hughs, Postsunstee. Discontinued, n.a.m. e changed to ONEAL Jaruary 25, 1876; John M. Dickson, Postmastre.

WHITE HORSE: Established May 14, 1850; Wesley Phillips, Portmaster. Discontinued October 4, 1896. Re-established April 4, 1870. Discontinued January 31, 1996; Javanith M. Whitmire, last Postmarter.

WOODVILLE: Established August 16, 1876; John L. Woodside, Putmaster. Discontinued — mail to Pelzer — April 30, 1904; Andrew W. McDavid, Ir. last Postmaster.

### PART II

Post Offices established in Greenville County, South Caroline, since 1795, whose locations have not been identified.

ALBA AVENA: Established June 88, 1879; William H. Stokes, Postmaster. Discontinued February 24, 1890; William H. Stokes, Postmaster.

ALBA: Established March 30, 1880; Thadeus C. Stokes, Postmester. Discontinued July 12, 1887. Re-established June 26, 1891; William G. September 29, 1900.

ARDEN: Established April 19, 1890; General A. Prowitt, Postmarter. Discontinued February 14, 1903; Alexander Prewitt, Postmaster.

REN: Established October 3, 1893; Nicie E. Dill, Postmarter, Discontinued February 15, 1903; Nicie E. Dill, Postmarter,

CAGLES FOUNTAIN or CAGLES FURNACE: Established July 5, 1856; Penry Cantrell, Postmoster. Discontinued July 10, 1858; Perry Cantrell, Postmaster.

CALDWELL: Established August 19, 1833; H. C. Roester, Postmester, Discontinued January 0, 1844; John Weaver, Postmester.

CASH HILL: Established September 25, 1875; Thomas R. Whatley, Portmaster. Discontinued September 23, 1879; John P. Batson, Portmaster. COTTAGE HILL: Established July 29, 1854; Henry Stokes, Postmaster. Discontinued Jarvary 10, 1861; T. Henry Stokes, Postmaster.

HIGHWAY: Established January 22, 1845; Absolem W. Harris, Postmuster. Discontinued August 22, 1866; Issish Cox, Postmaster.

HILLSDALE: Established January 26, 1886; William A. Hill, Postmaster. Discontinued April 12, 1898; Dolphus Collins, Postmaster.

HOKEVILLE: Established March 5, 1880; William T. Smith, Postmaster. Discontinued August 22, 1888; William T. Smith, Postmaster.

HORSE CREEK: Established July 26, 1859; W. A. Davenport, Postmaster. Discontinued August 28, 1866; W. A. Davenport, Postmaster.

LAVINDA: Established August 3, 1885; A. Y. Owings, Postmaster. Discontinued January 23, 1860; A. Y. Owings, Postmaster.

LICONS MILL: Established May 18, 1836; B. Wallace, Postmaster. Discontinued November 2, 1840; Jose Hammett, Postmaster. MILFORD. Established September 28, 1831; Jumes Nolen, Postmarter. Discontinued October 4, 1860; Willam I. Gibson, Postmaster. Re-established September 7, 1870; Jumes M. Dickson, Postmaster. Discontinued December 29, 1870; James M. Dickson, Postmaster.

MOMAN: Established May 2, 1891; Junes E. Moman, Postmaster. Discontinued June 11, 1893; James E. Moman, Postmaster.

NEELY: Established August 6, 1888; John T. Stokes, Postmaster. Discontinued June 15, 1901; George W. Nesly, Postmaster.

NILE: Established January 13, 1890; Thomas D. Bruce, Postmaster. Discontioned April 28, 1894; Luta B. Holtzclaw, Postmaster.

OAKLAWN: Established March 30, 1860; Jumes H. Arnold, Postmaster. Discontinued September 25, 1866; George W. Hyde, Postmaster. Ra-established October 18, 1866; George W. Hyde, Postmaster. Discontinued May 15, 1866; George W. Hyde, Postmaster.

ORLEANS – formerly PICKETI'S
VALLEY: Established April 22,
1840; John H. Goodwin, Postmaster.
Discontinued January 2, 1847; John
H. Goodwin, Postmaster.

PALOMA: Established July 19, 1850; David Clary, Postmaster. Discontinued April 22, 1854; David Clary, Postmaster.

PANTHER FORK: Established May 17, 1848; Allen Robinson, Postmaster. Discontinued June 8, 1854; William T. Stoud, Postmaster.

PICKETT'S VALLEY: Established April 17, 1830; Thomas Blythe, Postmaster. Discontinued, renamed ORLEANS: April 22, 1840.

SAXBY: Established July 20, 1843; Edmund Miller, Postmaster. Discontinued September 20, 1847; Edmund Miller, Postmaster.

SOMERS: Established June 25, 1894; Lectar Davis, Postmaster. Discontinued April 15, 1896; Jennie W. Goldsmith, Postmaster.

WHITE SANDS: Established September 6, 1858; John R. Smith, Postmaster. Discontinued — name changed to ALBA AVENA June 26, 1879; William L. Stokes, Postmaster.

SHELL: Established April 14, 1892; Spartan L. Jones, Postmaster, Discontinued November 16, 1898; Spartan L. Jones, Postmaster.

TROTTER: Established September 29, 1896; James C. Stroud, Postmaster. Discontinued August 30, 1902; James G. Stroud, Postmaster.

# A NINETEENTH CENTURY DIARY OF GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

LAURA SMITH EBAUGH

[This pageant of five scenes or tableaux is a play within a play. The actions takes place in the framework of a Ladies Aid Society Benefit of 1900 which stages a diary of the nineteenth century history of the town. The narrator,2 a lady of Greenville of 1900, is the major figure, using a synopsis of the era as the framework to introduce quotations from contemporary figures to give validity to the description. The five tableaux are largely conjectural but they illustrate the dress, furnishings, and music of the time portrayed. In the origtrail production on January 16, 1986, the participants were, insofar as posable, descendents of either the characters portrayed or of contemporary leadest. The production staff included Miss Laura Smith Ebaugh, chairman; Miss Katherine Jones, historical consultant; Robert C. Job, director; Sam J. Francis. meneging director, and Mrs. Chilord 5. Hackett, costume and music consultant. The tableaux chairmen were: Scene I, Mrs. H. C. Schroder; Scene II, Mrs. Josie B. Wenks; Some III, Mrs. Alester G. Furmen III; Scene IV, Mrs. T. V. Farrow, and Scene V, Miss Elisabeth Mahon. A set of colored slides of the pageant, made and presented by A. D. Asbury, are on file with the Society ead may be used by special permission.

In the script which follows, names of persons appearing in the cast are given to make a parameter record of a memorable meeting of the Society. It is hoped that groups interested in local history will produce the pageant again and again as a meaningful glimpae of the history and culture of the period.]

Time: January, 1900

Place: Cremville, South Carolina

Event: A Presentation by the Ladies Aid Society

# SCENE I

## Greenville, 1760-1815

NARRATOR: Welcome to our Ladies Aid Society Benefit! As we enter the twentisth century, we thought that it would be interesting to review Greenville's past hundred years and enjoy together some of the people and occasions of the century just closed. Therefore,

This purpose we possible to grouphlet form in 1000 and copyrighted by 100 Bloods and the Society. Mile Bloods has greated previousless for its principal sects of the principal sects o

Win the January 18, 1986, production this part was played by Miter Laurs Smith Evants. The was continued as a "Typical claim woman;" of 1800 complete with het see plasses.

the Ladies Aid Society presents our "Nineteenth Century Diary of Greenville."

We have certainly come a long way from the eightsenth century Indian trading post on the Reedy River to our industrial city of 1900. We have had a great deal of pleasure preparing our program from old letters, diaries, records, etc., and we hope that you will enjoy it as we have.

To begin our story we must go back to the mid-eighteemsh contrary when our present Ceneruille Country, lying between the Saluda River and the Old Indian Boundary helouged to the Chero-ke Nation. This land attracted Indian raders and pioneers before the Revolution. In the eighteemsh century James Adatr, Indian trader, described it in its princul beauty as follows:

The face of this region of romance interspersed with forests and plains. . [is] more beautiful than the Alps [and Its] virigin soil not inferior to that of Texas. . . The wood-lands carpeted with grass and wild pea view growing as high as a horse's back, and wild flowers of every hew were admired by earlier traders and adventurous pioneers. The trees stood so wide apart that a doer or a buffalo could be seen at a long distance.

By the latter part of the eighteenth century, Richard Pearis, another Indian trader, came into this territory, established his trading post on Recody River Palis, and acquired a vast plantation from the Indians. He was loyal to England and fought the patriots in the Revolution. After he was defeated by them at the Battle of Came Brake on plecember 22, 1775, he was forced to flee.

Following the Revolution, his land and that of other Tories was conficented and was given and sold to the loysil patriot. Some of his land on the Reedy River was granted to Colonel Thomas Brandon who in May, 1788, sold it to Lemoul Alston from North Carolina. Alston acquired more land, budit a large colonial house at the top of the present McBee Avenue, and laid out a land plat for selling lots north of the Reedy River to the present Washington Street. He called this Pleasantburg. When a commission was appointed to select a site for Greenville's much needed Court House, Alston offered the central quarter of his development to the commission.

<sup>\*</sup>As qualed in John H. Logan, History of the Upper Country of South Caroline (Charleston: S. C. Oburtatory and Co., 1859), I. 7-27, panels.

sioners. They accepted, and a small log Court House was built in the center of the square.

By 1806 the village had developed around the Court House and was described by Edward Hooker, a Compecticut Yankee and Yale clasmate of John C. Calboun whom he had visited before coming to Greenville. In his Disray he said:

Arrived at Colonel Attent's home about 19. His seat is without exception the more beautiful I have seen in South Carolina — The Mussion is on a commanding hill which he calls Prospect Hill. It from the village which is quite partly and rural, the street covered with grass and hand-some trees growing here and there, but there is a want of good houses. . . There were only about six houses and tome out buildings — not a seat of much business.

By IBIS Almon decided to move to Alabama having bosm deeated by Elias Earls for Congress, so he sold his 11,028 acres to the prosperous marchant from Lincolnton, North Carolina, Vardry McBee. In the picture we shall now see Mr. McBee and Mr. Alston signing the deed with Mrs. Alston and Mr. and Mrs. Earls looking on. With this property Vardry McBee became, with Georga Wakhington Earle and Jeremiah Cleveland, one of the three largest landowness in Greenville.

Let us now look at this group of early Creenville leaders.

(The curtain opens)

TABLEAU: Vardry McBee Signing the Purchase Deed for Lemuel Alston's Property

Cast:5

Vardry McBee-Luther M. McBee

Mr. and Mrs. Lemnel Alston-Mr. and Mrs. Samuel M. Beattie Mr. and Mrs. Elias Earle-Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Earle, Jr.

MARRATOR: There was the forty year old McBee who was destined to develop Greenville into a prosperous town. Although his Lincolnton friends discouraged him, he did not heaitate in his purchase as he foreaw a future for Greenville they could not see.

<sup>&</sup>quot;Edward Hooline, Distry, 1808-1809, in American Historical Association, Report (Washington Covernment Franko Office, 1809), I.
"The east of the January 18, 1909, production is given in this and the following

His character and philosophy are revealed in the following letters which he wrote in later life to his son Pinckney who was away from home. He wrote on April 16, 1857:

If I was a young man I would say silently to myself, according to my capacity, no man that went before me shall surpass me. . . [Again,] — If I had had books and advisers when I was young, I would have distinguished myself long before I was known, even without assroyl say education. You have sufficient faculties, provided that you will cultivate a pleasant and untiring perseverance.

## (The curtain closes)

NARRATOR: For twenty years Mr. McBee directed his Greenville empire from Lincolnton, riding over often to see how things were going. He established the first chain stores in the "un-country" having a series of stores in the neighboring towns in which he sold goods manufactured or grown in the area. He built a grist mill and a paper mill on the Reedy River and brought artisans to the town to help in his projects. Among these were John Adams. J. W. Cagle, Eben Gower, and John Logan, He gave land in 1819 for the establishment of the male and female academies. Later he gave land for the Episcopal, Baptist, Presbyterian, and Methodist Churches, and still later be contributed land on which Furman University and the Theological Seminary were built. He was devoted to his wife, the former Jane Alexander, to his children, and to his long-time friends, the Croft Brothers, Elies Earle, William Thompson, George F. Townes and others. He lived longer and contributed more to that early period than any other man.

#### SCENE II

## The Village Grows, 1815-1829

NARRATOR: From 1815 to 1825 Greenville grew to resemble the eighteenth century English village depicted in a painting by Joshua Tucker and described by Rohart Mills in his favous Statistics in 1826 as follows:

The village is regularly laid out in squares. It is a resort of much company in the summer and several respectable wealthy families have located themselves here — The public buildings are a handsome brick court house, an Episcopal Church, and two nest buildings for the male and

<sup>\*</sup>Exerpts from unpublished letters of Vandry McDes in the pomerries of Mrs. St. T. Whitnessen, Greenville, S. C.

female academies — The private houses are neat, some large and some handsome. Two of the former governors of the sixth had numner netweath here — Governors Alston and Middleton, Judge Thompson's home commands a beautiful view of the village. The number of houses is about 70 and the population 500.

The 'trapectable' low country people financiand with upcountry people and enjoyed with them walks and plentes on the Reedy River Falls; shared their teas, receptions, and other entutainments, but the most enjoyable occasions for the young were the balls given at the new Mannion House. In the next tabless we see some of these young people dancing the quadrille while the chaperones look on. Among them, if you look carefully, is Benjamin Franklin Perry dancing with his future wife, Miss Elizabeh McCall of Charleston. Near him may be Luther McBee dancing with her state whom he later married. Let us watch them as they dance.

## (The curtain opens)

TABLEAU: A Ball at the New Mansion House, 1829

Cast:

Chaperones: Mr. and Mrs. Lauriston H. Blythe, Mrs. Hayne P. Glover, Jr.

Quadrille Dancers from The School of Ballet, Mrs. Doris S. McClellan, Director

Anne McClellen Blackwell Raymond Hunt Julie Carter Edgar Henderson Beth Kendrick Dan Marks Bunny Time Terry Taukersley

(As the dancing ends, the curtain closes)

#### SCENE III

Greenville Becomes "The Athens of the Up-Country," 1831-1860

NARRATOR: By 1836 this Benjamin Perry whom we saw dancing had become a recognized writer and politician of great influence in

Thebest Mills, Staristics of South Carolina (Charleston, 1826), pp. 572-573. A copf of the Tuelos paintings image in the Greenville Art Museum.

Greenville. The following letters reveal his thinking as he writes to Miss Elizabeth McCall, the young lady who became his wife. On November 4, 1836, he wrote:

Greenville, though dreary and lonely has peculiar charms for me at this time. Almost everything I see reminds me of you. It was in the drawing room of the Mansion House that I first made your acquaintance — the very 500 there you stood is now in my mind's eye. How many pleasant evenings we spent there. Re was in that room that I first heard your guilar and the still sweeter music of your zong. But no place fills my heart with more delightful emotions the properties of the pro

On January 14, 1837, he wrote his "Lizzy" about the growth of Greenville where she was to live after their wedding:

Greenville is rapidly improving — There are new houses being erected constantly [an aside — the F. F. Beattie House, the Lowndes and Butler Homes on the outskirts! House, the Lowndes and Butler Homes on the outskirts on the constant and general prosperity seems to environ it — I do assure you it has for several years past been my firm conviction that the upper country would ultimately contain almost all the wealth and respectability of the lower country in summer and autumn. Let the Great of the form the country in the lower than the country in the lower than the control of the control of the country in the lower than the country in the lower than the country in the lower than the country region and breather the fresh invigorating mountain atmosphere, drink good water and have cool nights.<sup>9</sup>

Two weeks later he wrote "Greenville has been quite gay for several days past; bells, parties and the theatre. I have been to none...":

On February 13, 1837, he wrote this prophetic letter:

I have spent much time in reading and in consultation with my clients. I took a walk through the town with my friend Colonel Townes and examined and admired the wonderful change that the region of Carolina was destined to undergo in a few years—The time is not far distant when it will present all the improvements of the New England states — Greenville must become a manufacturing

EBealanda Franklin Perry, Letters of Covernor Benjamin Franklin Perry to Hie Wife, edited by Hant M. Perry (Charleston, 1889), p. 4.

\*\*Total. p. 5.

<sup>10[</sup>bid., p. 26.

district—waterpower, health, chapness of labor and the mineral productions of our county will force us to become a manufacturing people—When this does happen—wealth must come to us from all parts. Investments of capital will be made in our cotton ischories, from manufacturing companies, etc. from the North, the lower country and Southwest. It

Perry expressed his political opinions freely in The Republions and The Mountaineer, Greenville newspapers, and gave vigurous support to literature and education and supported the Female Library Society organized in 1823. A rivity, however, between the up-country and the low-country in this period is evidenced in this little rhyme published in The Mountaineer, March 8, 1834:

The low country people who live at their ease Stuffed with turtle and wine, with porter and cheese To climb a hillside would find it no fun Where lad of the Mountains would skip with his gun.<sup>12</sup>

By 1850 Greenville's population bad increased to 1305 and the town had an intellectual flavor which was heightened and changed by the coming of Furman University. Here is a description recorded in the diary of Stephen Powell who was evidently a well known young man "of parts," twenty-seven years of age at the time the diary was written. He was an artist, munician, scholar, taxidemitst and sculptor. He also did cabinet work and helped his father paint" the depot" and oil the pews of Christ Church, and did rign painting. Here in his description of his day on Friday, July 4, 1851, when he wrote:

Before breakfast and after, I worked on an india ink picture — dessed and prepared to go to the barbeous. I repaired to the grove back of Dr. A. R. Izwin's and saw the meat cooking. Then came up to the strand where I heard Capitain J. Westly Brooks read Washington's Farewell Address. Major B. F. Perry read a long acidress, after which the audience was addressed by General Waddy Thompson in & length speech. They were invited to partake of the barbeous and I being tired and warm returned home — at edinner and pent the afternoon working on

<sup>14/34</sup>d., p. 35.

Max qualid by Alfred S. Reid, in The Arte in Greenottle, 1800-1980, (Greenviller, 1800-1980, p. 99.

my india ink picture and talking politics with Miss Redfern.18

Several other entries of year 1851 and 1852 are interesting:

[September 14] Went to Sunday School (Christ Church) where William Pamalee and Mr. Irwin's little son were my only scholars.

[September 11] After eating I went down to Major Perry's office where I painted the alphabet — after dinner I painted labels on several pigeon boxes for his law papers.

[September 25] Accompanied Eliza and Mary to the Ladies Fair[at McBee Hall].

[July 12, 1852] In Mr. Bursey's Book Shop was introduced by William Watson to Mr. William H. Scarborough of Columbia (the artist) who came to this place last Friday. I accompanied him and Mr. Fitz Wilson to the room of the latter, where after a brief conversation Mr. S. left and Mr. F. made a sketch of me in oil. By that time the Mansion House gong sounded. 18

On September 29, 1952, he attended the dedication of the new Christ Church.

The tone of the community gradually changed after this period. The railroad came in 1853 and brought more businessmen, as well as many more gay summer visitors from the coast. Furman University opened 1851, the Female College in 1855, the Baptist Theological Seminary in 1859. The faculties and students introduced a conflicting somberness of tone. A gap developed between the interests of the summer visitors and the new leaders, which hurt the unity of the earlier period. James C. Furman arrived on the local scene as chairman of the Furman faculty. He, with others, unified the Greenville scessionists and Greenville County representatives voted unanimously for the Ordinance of Secession in 1860. The Baptist College's strong intellectual leadership was guided for many years by James C. Furman.

Now let us stop and see him with his wife entertaining one of the brilliant young professors of the recently established Theological Seminary, Dr. Basil Manly, Jr., with his wife and children. The children entertain their parents with a song. The time is 1880,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup>Ensept from Steven Fowel's unpublished "Diary, 1851-1855," in possession of Lula Handerson, Greenville, S. C.

the place is the drawing room of Dr. Furman's beautiful home, Cherrydale on the north side of the village of Greenville. Here sit the noted Baptist leaders enjoying a quiet afternoon together.

## (The curtain opens)

TABLEAU:-Dr. and Mrs. James C. Furman entertain Dr. and Mrs. Basil Manly, Ir., at a Tea. 18

Cast:

Dr. and Mrs. Ferman - Mr. and Mrs. Alester G. Furman III

Dr. and Mrs. Basil Manly, Jr. — Dr. and Mrs. Basil Manly IV

Song: Felicia Furman, Jean Manly, Mary Manly

(As the children finish this song, the curtain closes)

NARRATOR: To see Dr. Furman in better perspective let us read some of his letters. On May 8, 1850, he wrote his sister Maria from Greenville where he was seeking a new home for Furman University:

I find that the people here have done nothing to secure the location of the Institute here. All with whom I have convened seen to think that Greenville has such decided advantages of location that it must have the perference. They are not much in the habit of giving to religious objects; and the subscienter is Raifrond stock, have put their money spreading feelings to severe test: I shall remain till after Sunday and having given a public address on the subject will on Monday ascertain what they may be willing to do for the project.

### Affectionate Brother James C. Furman

Furnan's "public address" must have been effective as the money was secured by June 4, 1852. He wrote the following from Greenville to his son Charles:

Mr. Jones (Mr. E. C. of Charleston) the architect reached this place on Tuesdry. We only want the plan now to commence with our University building. Stone is hauled to the spot for the foundation and kiln of brick (some England states - Creenville must become a manufacturing

<sup>15</sup> in the January 16, 1965, production, the furniture in the tableau included a Perbush table which belonged to Januar C. Farman and a gilver pitcher which belonged to Ball Mealty, Jr.

<sup>16</sup>The following excepts are from the James C, Furman letters in the orchives of

200,000) is just burnt. I believe they have made a beginning in Spartanburg on Wofford College. We have the advantage of them in having commenced with the work of instruction.

On June 18, 1852, he wrote in part - to his sister Maria,

The conversions of the new Episcopal Church (Christ Church) was laid a few weeks ago, and the walls are going up. I wish the Baptists of the state would show the same wisdom which the Episcopalians of the low country do in putting up attractive buildings in important places in the up country. The Episcopalians allege the lacrease of their congregation as the reason for putting their old buildings had plenty of vacant seats. Our building which is larger than theirs scarcely contains our congregation. We have had to put down a double row of chairs on the aisles. If any means were such as to allow my subscribing liberally, I would urge upon our people the erection of another building, Something has been said about repairing and enlarging our present one but some do anything in the week properties in the world of anything in the week properties a new house.

Your affectionate brother,

J. C. F.

Mr. Furman's desire for a new Baptist Church was realized when the First Baptist Church building was built on the present site on McBee Avenue not long after this was written.

The Southern Baptist Theological Seminary opened in Greenville in 1839 and remained until 1877. In 1839 John Albert Broadus, Basil Manly, Jr., and William Williams arrived in Greenville young energetic and productive scholars, who by their teaching, preaching, and interesting and informal conversations assisted Perry in setting the intellectual tone and dominating the literary life of Greenville for eighteen years. Broadus and Manly had both edited religious journals and had contributed articles themselves. Manly had collaborated with his father, Basil, Sr., in compiling a hymn book.<sup>17</sup>

<sup>&</sup>quot;Alfred S. Raid, op. oil., p. 108.

#### SCENE IV

War and Reconstruction, 1860-1880

NARRATOR: We came in 1861 and rudely interrupted the oromal life of Peccaville. Conserved consonal life of population of 25,000 sest some \$0.00 soldiers into battle. Furman closed — Manhy and Prevalle continued withing Beptet Birsture, while Furman kept the Baptist education ideas alleys in Greenville.

The war was a very personal affair. The men went sews to fight, leaving their wives to carry on the best they could. Although such food was raised on the farms, such things as sit, suges, coffee and tes were scarce and expensive. The troops were poorly clad and hospital supplies were needed for the wounded. The Ladies Add Society helped in every way they could. They gathered in each others homes and sewed and talked about that loved come sway from home and served as volunteer nurse in the 'Soldiers Reat' they had established for the convalescent soldiers from the front. Let us look at them as they work.

(The curtain opens)

TABLEAU: The Ladies Ald Society Sews for the Soldiers Cast:

Mrs. Jane Tweed Butler - Mrs. W. S. Mullins

Mrs. Harvey Cleveland - Mrs. Harriet James

Mrs. Caroline Climan - Mrs. Gayle Glover Huguenin

Mrs. Caroline Mauldin - Mrs. Helen Powe Mrs. W. F. Petry - Mrs. Dorothy McBee Jones

Song: Tenting Tonight, rung by a Confederate Soldier

Soloist: Tames E. Grant

Accompanist: Miss Anne Feltner

(As the song is finished the curtains close)

NARRATOR: There we saw a group of them sewing together.
They well represent the spirit of the time as they listened to
Tenting Tonight sung by a furloughed soldier.

Mrs. Caroline Howard Gilmen, refugee from Charleston, who spent part of the war years in Greenville wrote her family in the North during the seige of Charleston a description of this work of this Greenville Ladies Aid Society.

Greenville, S. C., March 27, 1863

My Dear Children: -

The Incident of the past month has been a call from one of the surgeons on the Coast, for our Ladius Ald Society, for flags and rosettes for his department, the flags to be nadled to fences and trees from a battlefield to a hospital, to designate the road, and the rosetts to a hospital, to designate the road, and the rosetts to be attached to the arms of those who are to carry the wounded. I volunteered at the directors meeting to have wounded. I volunteered at the directors meeting to have wrenty flags made, and Lou gave the material. All that were required were completed and sent seaward in this tysts hours.

The Confederate authorities also called on us to have a hundred sheets made for a receiving hospital in Gesenville for convalescent soldiers from other hospitals in case nearer ones should be wanted after a fight. In a week the ladies had everything ready . . . .

One year since we came to Greenville and not subtugated.

Your loving Mother, C. C. 18

No, they were "not subjugated" but they were constantly worried by local problems and the news from the front. Here are excerpts from one of Greenville's privates, J. W. Gurison<sup>14</sup> who was located first on James Island and was killed in the Battle of Atlants:

### From Legare's Point

[January 27, 1862] — They say the army in the West is suffering for the want of clothes — The army on the coast is well clothed at this time — I haven't been paid in four months — I will be paid off in a few days - \$48

## From James Island

[May, 1863] — I am glad to hear that the wheat looks so well — I hope there will be no storms to blow it down.

<sup>19</sup>Atlantic Monthly, (April, 1925), 505-508.

<sup>19</sup> Excepts from the unpublished letters of W. G. Garrison, 1861-1864, in the pursualist of Mrs. Dwight Johnson, Greenville, S. C.

[July 2, 1863] — I was glad to hear from you — I as morry the crop is so grassy — I wish I could work it. The Yankees thought they would come over last week, but they were most all black Yankees — We killed a good many and took 14 Negro prisoners.

[August, 1860] — I thank you for sending the box. The applies and peaches are the finest I have seen this year.— The bombardment is still going on — You sak if I need any lothest or not — I need a shirt and a pair of steckings — I would not bother you but some of the company drew thirs today and they were so short they would hardly reach the waist band of the pants.—Me take circ of youreli.

[September, 1863] — I will send you all the money I can so that you can bire some of your work done. Keep up a good heart.

Salt was one of the icerce commodities as it was needed not only for cooking, but for exiring meat. On December 15, 1802, Mr. C. T. Westfield wrote Mr. Garrison, father of the solder, that be could self him two sacks of coasts all which he "hall ersibility from Columbia at \$64 a sack." On December 16, 1863, Mr. Garrison wroth his con-

Mr. Westfield let us have a sack and a half of salt. Last week was very cold and was a fine time for killing the hogs – The stock is doing very well for this time of year – We have begun feeding the cows.

By May, 1864 — Private Carrison's father had joined the army and he write his mother) Pa says, he wants the boys to be sure and plant the peas and pumpkins and have the Regrose cut the wheat up and give a buthal of wheat a piece a day — If you can get the chance, send us a box of cabbage, potatoes, and butter and such little things of that kind — When the sugar came gets ripe have it made into molayers.

[Finally on August 2, 1864 — From near Atlanta Private Carrison wrote] We see a pretty tough time out here, but I hope it will end soon. . There is not ten minutes but that a ball whizzes by but I have not been touched by any yet. [Shortly thereafter he was killed by one of the "buzzing balls."]

Finally, the fighting ceased and the men depleted materially, spirally, and physically returned home to rebuild their homes and businesses. However, Greenvillians had not lost their literary interests and culture, for in 1867 the Freedman's Bureau Representative, John William De Forest, spoke highly of the people, their courtesies and intellectuality, and said Greenville could be called "The Athens of the Up Country."

During this post-war period, a community loyalty developed through shared suffering and hardships which remains today. With fortitude and strength the community began a period of industrialization from which it has become the great Textile Center it is today.

A new railroad came to Greenville in 1872 and by 1880 Greenville had grown to be a city of 8,000 and could boat of 144 stores, 17 barrooms, a National Bank, and four large textile plants. Elaborate Victorian house were being built by the different leaders, but the soberness of the part decades was reflected in the contents of the hox placed in the cornerstone of Beejamin F. Perry's beautiful Victorian home, Sens Souci, built in 1871. In a small the box in the righthand cornerstone was placed iffeycent piece made in 1877, a dime and two slips of paper. On one was written the names and dates of birth of the measure of Governor Perry's family, and on the other side was written sof from ean dum family, we will serve the Lord." On the sex for me and my family we will serve the Lord." On the son piece of paper was written "Wade Hampton, Governor of South Carolina."

Although prosperity was gradually returning to Greenville between 1890 and 1890, the businessmen trained in the period of autherity kept very careful records of every penny spent and thought carefully before investing their hard earned cash. This spirit is shown in the 1883-1891 account book of Mr. W. C. Cloveland, one of Greenville's largest land-owners. The book is rtill in the possession of his family.

In the book he recorded his daily expenditures, some of which were the 25¢ he gave the church, 10¢ he gave his daughter Heattle, 90¢ for tobacco, 15¢ for alcohol, board for his family \$40.00, rent \$7.00, cutting wood 25¢. In 1883 he spent \$2,374.73. In 1894 he spent \$3,757.00 and also took his wife and brother Yannoy on a trip to Saratoga on which be spent \$9,730.0, but gave no account of

<sup>20</sup> John William DeForest, A Union Officer in the Reconstruction (New Haven: Yale University Press, 1948), p. 47.

<sup>&</sup>quot;This box was discovered and opened by Dr. Remett Eugens Genr when Sans South was demolabled in the last 1930.". The question is from a pastered whithen at fast line by Mrn and presently in the possession of her despiter, Mrs. Jr. C. Evps. Jr., Creenville, S., Cerr and presently in the possession of her despiter, Mrs. Jr. C. Evps. Jr., Creenville, S.

It in his book. This book and others like it which we have, are economic history of the period and reveal clearly the life pattern of that time.

#### SCENE V

The Spanish-American War Interrupts The Industrial Life of Greenoille, 1880-1900

NABARTOR: As prosperity returned, it created a strong community spitif for intere development; so when the Spanish-American War began, Greenville citizens urged the Federal Covernment to locate a camp in their town. The temperate climate, adequate water apply and electric power, and the large lend areas satisfied the U. S. Army needs, so Camp Wetherfill did come to Greenville in 1989 bringing with it problems, business, and many soldiers to be entertained. Greenvillians met the challenge as best they could.

The men tried to meet the business challenge of the camps while the ladies did their part by entertaining the soldiers in their homes and by helping the men from New York and New Jersey approxiate Southern ways. Our last picture shows some of these ladies singing with the soldiers at one of their parties in 1898. We may even join in their songs.

## (The curtain opens)

TABLEAU: Greenvillians entertain soldiers — Spanish-American War.

Cast:

Mrs. Lemmir Flow David McManaway
Mrs. Howard Newton, Jr. Jim Owings
Mrs. Ben K. Nerwood, Jr. Milton Shockley
Eventt Casilia

(As the singing ends, the curtain closes)

NARRATOR: So our 1800 diary ends. We hope you have enjoyed these glimpses into our past.

## THE HISTORY OF

# FAIRVIEW PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

MRS. DAVID GARRETT

Fairview, the oldent Presbyterian Church in Greenville Conty was founded in 1788 and received into South Cardinia Enbytesy in 1787. Its lateray is a chapter of pun Americana. In founders, refugees from religious persecution, sought and won for themselves and others that precious freedom passed down as a priodest heritage. Fairview Church was organized the zame year in which the legislature of South Cardinia established Greenville District on March 22, 1786 and only two years after an office for the sale of land in this northwest portion of the state wa opened at Pendleton Court House. Colonel S. S. Crittenden in his Greenville Century Book says:

Owing to its exposed situation and being still in Indian territory there were few settlements in this county previous to the Revolutionary War. . . The first settlements were naturally in the asstern part of the county, Among these was one at Fairview where several families of Scotch-Inth Presbytrians located. They soon built up a Bourishing colony in that beautiful section which still is in a great measure owned and inhabited by their decendants.

Therefore this was an organized church and community more than a decade before the village of Pleusanthurg, destined to become the city of Greenville, was established and one docade after the first permanent settlement by a white man, Richard Pearis, was made at that after.

Often called the "Mother of Preabyterianism" in Greenville County, Fairview is so named for a gray stone chance hover-grown with by on the creat of a hill overlooking a beautiful landscape of hill and dale in County Antrim, Ireland. The exiled Scots so loved this fair spot where they found brief refuge from persecution that they called this church by the same name.

The first trustees of Fairview Church were so constituted by an act of the South Carolina General Assembly ratified Documber 18, 1844, declared to be "A body politic whose duties it shall be to take charge of and management of lands, buildings, and other temporalities." They were John T. Peden, John M. Harrison, Alexander W. Peden, Jeremish Hopkins, and James Woodside and

evidently were responsible for planning and erecting this house of worship.

However, in the years before the creation of the trustees, the church had become an owner of land and buildings. Page 1, Book A of deeds registered in Greenville County Court House shows as its first entry 800 acres of land on Reedy River acquired by General Richard Winn in 1784 and known as the Great Cane Brake where in December 1776 the only battle of the American Revolution fought in this area took place. From the oldest church record estast dated 1814, a summary of the founding and the events of years between 1786 and 1814 is given by Anthony Sevage, clerk of the session, in the beautiful script and style of the little. It was found among his personal writings after his death and preserved by another scholarly clerk, James Dunbar. It follows:

Fairview Church situated in Greenville District South Carolina 19 miles from the seat of Justice and 3 miles from the Fork Shoals East side of Reedy River 200 miles from Charleston was organized in the year 1786 by five families that emmigrated from Nazareth Spartanburg District and State aforesaid Viz: John Peden, James Alexander, Samuel Peden, David Peden and James Nesbit with their families. Those five families erected the first house of worship of God perhaps in the up-country and in the vicinity of the present church. This was the voluntary act of those five individuals above mentioned it now appears as if the object was to wait on the true God in the solemnity of worship in his own Sanctuary. . . . . No record is to be found of the above transaction nor for the years afterwards. (To this date 1814) The above named Mr. Alexander and his wife are still in being and are capable of furnishing us with a correct statement of these facts. In the course of the next year after 1786 their numbers were increased viz by John Alexander, David Morton, and James Alexander, Sr., the father of the above named Alexander. They were likewise from Nazareth in Spartanburg District.

James Alexander Sr., John Peden, John Alexander and Samuel Peden were duly elected to the office of Ruling Elder. The Reverend McCosh was the first stated preacher, he was a native of Ireland. . . . Here we have given a brief sketch of the origin of Fairview Church We have suffered greatly from emmigration our church has been kept up chiefly by the population around it.

for twenty-five years.

The above is a true copy of that paper found at the decease of Mr. Savage and known to be written by htmself

Signed
James Dunbar
Clerk of Sewion

1814

The story of the founding is also told by the greatest historian yet produced among the descendants of the first families, Miss Eleanor M. Hewell, in her book Pedeus of America published in 1800:

In the fall of 1785 came the Peden brothers John. Samuel and David with their nephew James Alexander and their good friend James Nesbit; their wives, little ones and a few possessions left by the fortunes of war to the new and untried wilderness of what is now Fairview Township, Greenville County, South Carolina, Each holding a grant or deed to the newly acquired lands. The younger men acted as guides through the trackless woods, blazing a trail for the others to follow. After leaving the old historic Blackstock road and crossing the old boundary line on Enorce River they followed an Indian trail for awhile then struck out boldly westward. Nightfall found them footsore and weary beside a bold spring of ice-cold water issuing from among the rocks and roots of three immense tulip or poplar trees. . . Here in this green spot the tired guides kindled the first campfire to have a cheery blaze when the others should come up the stream. . . . Before they allowed themselves to partake of food, or include in rest, they retired apart on the eastern hillside joined hands in solemn covenant with God and each other, after a fervent prayer they repeated a psalm and singing "Old Hendredth", they went down to camp.

After a simple meal of corn porridge known as susth and drinking it with new milk hastily drawn from the few cows and quickly coaled in jugs set in the limple waters of the spring. They had a prayer, sase a high and laid them down to sleep under the star studded canopy of Heaven.

It is worthy of record that a house of worship was built and a thruch organized the same year that the settlement was made. The rude temple erected under such circumstances is a textimosy to their religious faith and zeal. The devout spirit coming down

from Culdee to Covenanter to Presbyterian, passing through ordeals of blood, fire, and death itself.

Four church buildings have stood on this land since 1796, all on that portion, of the now sistere and one half acere owned by the church, which was donated by James Alexander, Sr. "... who gave the land for church and school buildings." Her sin and second buildings were built of logs, the third of brick molded and burned by slave labor on his plantistion. In a hollow dell between his home and the church a few visible remains of the burning could be seen in 1900. This generous benefactor of the church was the father of Major John Alexander of the famous proposed that the seen of the seen

Only one brief statement found in the church record concerns
the third building dated August 11, 1818, and reading, "About
this time our new meeting house is finished and dedicated by
Revenul Mr. Carter." The brick church as described by Miss
Hewell was

... a square brick building with a heavy roof and an outside sixturey to the alave gallery. The great doors at either and were multioned, the windows were high on the walls and had wooden shutters and even in the coldest weather stood open. As the building had no means of heating, there was some shivering done. The agod and infirm had rock heated in the fireplaces of the nearly season house and well-wrapped in blankets or woolan coveriets to keep their feet warm during this property of the stopping of the stopping of the same shape of the same sh

These sermons were long never less than one hour, oftener two, for in early days preaching was rare therefore of great value.

There was usually an intermission of a few hours at noon spent under the great trees in summer, around hospitable tables; in winter or inclement weather in the old log church or the session house, a few rods away.

An interesting feature of this old brick church was the pulpit described by Miss Hewell as being a high boxed-up pulpit, so

small and high with stops so steep and nerrow that visiting minister once gave great offense by remarking that "Satar must we designed this pulpit." About halfvey down was a smaller box known as the clerk's place and from this peach he "lized out" the pasture and hymens for the congregation to follow his lead in singing. The last known singing clerk was Captain Moses T. Fowler who deled in 1880.

This, the fourth and present building was completed in 1833. As noted on the memorial upon these walls — "this building was exceted principally by a legacy left in his will of 1846 by David Morton."

He was born in County Antrin, Ireland in 1760, a Bevolttonary soldier of the Spartan regiment under Daniel Morgan and later under the partisan leaders. David Morton was described as a strong and noble character of a stern age. His old homestesd was located near the source of South Resburn Creek A small funct of land was given by him for a Negor Curch, Bethlehen, now on the old Sitmpsonville to Fountain Inn road. He was an elder in the church at Fair-iswe and a worthy member of the session until his death. Without bodily heirs, he left a handsone estate to be divided between this church and foreign missions. Much of the timber used in this building was cut from the choicest timbers on his plantation.

"He was a liberal soul who devised liberal things."

This writer was much impressed by the fact that the cluwdrocords of this period placed such definite emphasis on Spiritual matters that material details were almost totally excluded. For example, the only reference to a building committee to be found was the statement dated May 7, 1858, in which the sension was saked to meet "that the building committee might report through Mr. A. Thompson." At this time the church officers listed Alexader Thompson as an elder and is probably the aforementioned. One other reference to the building committee was "The session carnestly invites the congregation to assemble or meet at the new church on Saturdey before the next day of worship to receive the keys of the new church edition from the hands of the building committee." The actual date of the completion of the building can be established from the personal diary of the pastor at that time, Reversed Clark Berry Stewart, who vorte on February 5.

1858: "Captain Gault and company have finished the new church at Fairview."

F. D. Jones and H. W. Mills in the History of the Freshparems Church is South Caroline asys: "The above building was erected by Mr. Robert Wham, afterwards an elder in the same, and its fine appearance and almost familiess preservation today [1926] stands as a measurement to his judgment of maturial to be used and homety as workman."

An interesting authodore is handed down in the family of the milder Captain James Gault, a native of Ireland, a member of this church and buried in its churchyward, to the effect that he old not attend the Intt service held in the new building "for four the slave galleries would collapse."

The dedicatory service was held May 15, 1858, by the Reverend David Humphreys assisted by Reverend E. T. Buist.

From its beginning Fairview Church has stimulated the growth of Presbyterianism both in this area and the southeast. As Miss Hawell wrote of this process:

The congregation of Fair-view has always been a monogeneous body. Those who first composed it . . . and those . . . added to it from time to time belonging to a common zonety lawing the same faith and custom. It is the natural aimset uninterrupted growth of unmixed to the natural aimset uninterrupted growth of unmixed provided the control of the natural aimset uninterrupted growth of the natural aimset uninterrupted growth of the natural natu

These include Fountain Inn, Lichville, New Harmony, Piecinori, Baedy River, Sayma of Dekalle, Ministatippi, and Pairview of Lauvennewille, Georgia. The church record February 13th, 1807, contains a significant entry: "Regularly dismissed Mr. John sof Mary Adams to unthe with a new church to be organized at Generolla Villaga." This was to become the First Presbytesse Cheard of Generolli, South Carolin.

Beginning in 1765 with a communicant list of five families, the records list in 1860 129 white and 19 collored members. In 1860, the membership totals 146, and, according to the present clerk of the session, Mr. John B. Armstrong, the present total list as 173. The first Sunday School, or Bible class, as then called, was organized in 1855 with forty members. To date it has been served by only four superintendents — Reverend C. B. Stewart, his son Dr. Henry Boardman Stewart who served sixty-three years, Henry Burwell Peden, and the present Scipio Peden.

Fairview is one of the very few churches, if there are others, whose old Scotch customs instituted in the early days are whose old Scotch customs instituted in the early days are summed long tables, more than a century old, to particle for several long tables, more than a century old, to particle for early Communion. While an invitation bywn is being rang, the congration takes assets at the table to receive hereal and wice together action takes asset at the table to receive hereal and wice from the hands of the elders. The silver goblets, now replaced by individual glasses, were the gift of Mrs. John Steanis. The cultivate all the properties of issuits to the silver of issuits tokens—mail, coin-like, metal pieces—aftwe a communicant satisfactorily answered probing questions asked by the elders as to his spiritual condition was discontinued after 1936. Sat to relate, none remain in possession of a member today. Deacon still pass, to receive the tithes and offerings, a receptacle on the end of a long stender rod as in the Kirks of did Socialand.

The rock-walled churchyard is the hallowed sesting place of many generations. The earliest legible inscription being that of Elizabeth Alexander who died in 1797. Seven soldiers of the American Revolution and sixty who served in the War Between the States, along with those of other wars, are buried here. A tall marble shaft erected to the memory of John and Pezzy Peden, founders of the Pedens of America, bears the palmetto tree symbol of the state of South Carolina encircled by the Scotch thistle and the Shamrock. Two unusual memorials donated by the faithful superintendent of the Sunday School and long time country doctor, H. B. Stewart, are: "In memory of the faithful slaves who are buried here and elsewhere in unmarked graves throughout our sunny Southland," and the other, "To the memory of the family physician and the wives of these physicians who keep the home fires burning while the doctor is away on his mission of mercy." He now rests from his labors here with his father, the Reverend Clark Berry Stewart, whose memory is honored on the above tablet. One lonely stone is that of Edward Flannegan, a native of Fernagh, Ireland, who left no known living relative. He was Fairview's man of mystery, a teacher of the country school and by some believed to be connected with Marshal Nev. His secret died with him among new found friends. A list of family names of those buried in this sucred spot reads like the roster of Greenvilla's past and present — Cely, Harrison, Woodside, Goldsmith, Anderson, Templeton, Ramsay, Stall, Adams, Baker, and Thomason.

The first record of the rock wall which surrounds it is a contact for its building by the trustees with James E. Savage dated August 18, 1880, and giving precise dimensions and directions for its building. A studier contract in 1897 was made with William Wham to enlarge the area. The last addition to these walks was made in 1803. The iron gates were the gift of Captain David D. Poden of Houston, Tenas.

The statements concerning the ministers and faithful officers through the years are brief due to the complete listing in the 1960 edition of Pedens of America to be found in the Greenville County Library and in the homes over the entire area. The first sermon preached here was by Reverend Samuel Edmundson of Virginia who helped organize the church and went on to do the same alsowhere. Reverend John McCosh, native of Ireland, was the first pastor of the flock. Reverend Glark B. Stewart preached here for thirty years from 1848-1884 which is said in Iones History of Presbyterian Church, "to embrace the era of greatest church enterprise." He served eighteen years as stated supply and twelve as pastor. During the years of the War Between the States, he was given leave to serve as chaplain in the famous Hampton Legion of South Carolina, ministering to the sick and wounded, bringing home the dead to be buried, and the sick to be nursed back to life among friends.

For the first time in a number of years, Fairview again has a resident, failthine partor. Revenend Davis Davis on bothes in the monethy completed manne near the church. We pray for Fairview to renew the real of the founding fathers and go forward to greathe heights of spiritual influence.

The austice house of early days was a smaller adjacent building used for the planning and conducting of meetings of the clears of the church whose jurisdiction included many moral matters now left to the civil court. It was the first school building in this community. The first shool was said to be taught unde the spreading branches of the giant oaks of Mrs. Jane P. McDowell by a friend of the Motrons and Motrows.

Since the church has always held a high standard of education for its clergy, it is understandable that many of the ministers were also teachers. Anthony Savage, among the earliest settlers, came as a teacher as did his successor as clerk of the session, James Dunbar - both natives of Ireland. Later the Rev. Hyde, Rev. Clark B. Stowart, Rov. Austin, and Rev. John L. Kennedy taught as did "not a few excellent women"

In addition to the unique record of having had only four Sunday School superintendents since 1855, there have been only four sextons during the entire record of that office: James Savage, John W. Woodside, James McDowell, and the present one, Walter Henderson, who has been sexton, custodian, janitor. I prefer the title, in this case particularly, of Keener of the Keys, for the incredible term of sixty-one years of loval and faithful service.

In conclusion, two quotations seem appropriate: Henry W. Longfellow's oft quoted lines in his immortal "Psalm of Life," Lives of great men all remind us, we can make our lives sublime and departing leave behind us footprints on the sands of time" and, from the Source of all truth, a verse from the ninetieth Psalm, "We spend our years as a tale that is told." The tale that is told of Fairview, its founding by seekers of peace from hardships unspeakable, and persecutions unthinkably unjust, by faithful yet humble people who often, unlike the great, left no visible footprints on the sands of time, yet did leave a truly great heritage of faith that standing the truty of time reaches out in unseen influence to many homes, churches, and places of government. May that influence never be other than good. The sons and daughters of Fairview have a Godly heritage.

"Lord, Thou has been our dwelling place in all generations "

#### SOURCES

#### I. PRIMARY

Manuscript church records, Fairview Church.

Manuscript diary, Reverend C. B. Stewart, Paster of Fatreton Clearch.

#### H. SECONDARY

Crittenden, Stephen Stanley. The Greenville Century Book. Cromwille: Cromville News, 1903.

Hewell, Eleanor M. Feders of Americe. Privately published, 1900, 1925, 1980.

Howe, George. History of the Presbyterian Church in South Carolina. Columbia: Duffie and Chapman, 1870-1863. 2 vols.

Jenes, F. D., and W. H. Mills, History of the Presbyterius Church in South Caroline Since 1850. Columbia: Synod of South Carolina, 1926.

#### Ministerial Directory.

Richardson, James McDowell, History of Graenville County, Narrative and Biographical Atlanta: A. H. Causton, 1930.

### HISTORY OF TRAVELERS REST

### MRS. CLAUDE GOGGLETT

The territory around Travelers Rest, along with the rest of Greenville County, was a part of the Cherokee Nation until 1777 when the Indians signed a treaty ceding it to the state of South Carolina. That the Indians once inhabited the country around Travelers Rest is evidenced by the arrowheads and other artifacts which have been nicked up from time to time. Mr. Terry T. Dill. a civil engineer, who has walked over more tecritory around Travelers Rost than perhaps anyone else, has observed many signs of early Indian occupancy. He says that Travelers Rest was once the meeting place for five Indian tribes. Several citizens of Travclers Rest remember hearing their relatives say that an Indian trail ran from the mountains through Travelers Rest to Georgia. That the road between the new Dan Manufacturing plant and the property of Mr. Goodlett and now called Hawkins Road was used by the Indians as a path for racing their horses is shown on old deeds of the property which list this as "Race Path Road." It is said to have been used as a racing road by later white settlers also.

The Indians and the few early white settlen had lived in comparative friendship in the early years, the latter trading for valuable furs trapped by the Indians. The white settlers had built a few forts and a group of rough popule called cow drivers transported these furs to Augusta down old Angusta Band and to Charles Town, and drove their herds of horses and cattle along the Indian trails which led into the rough roads that connected the settlements and trading posts.

After the Revolution, Immigrants from Virginia, Pennsylvania, and other status began to join earlier settlers from the lower part of the status in seeking the advantages of the upcountry. In the year 1784, many land grants were made in this part of the statusably to those who had participated in the Revolution. Among these grants are some on Ecoreo and Reedy Rivers which are near the Travelers Rest area. Among older families receiving grants or making very early purchases were Howard, Dill, Essle, Winn, Hopkins, Goodlett, Anderson, Stiles, Springfield, Besson, Colleman, Smith, Langston, Brailey, Montponery, Roe, Watton, Colleman, Smith, Langston, Brailey, Montponery, Roe, Watton,

Williams, Morgan, McEllaney, Bradley, Cleveland, Edwards, McCauley, Ratro, Prince, Tubbs, Among there early settlers was Thomas Springfield who lived near Travelers Reat. He married Diesy Langston, Revolutionary Ware heroins, and they made their home about two rulls from Travelers Reat almost directly across the road from Benere Bagisti Charreb, Dicoy is buried in an old family graveyard a short distance away, Membeurs of another family receiving land grasts near: Travelers Reat after the Revolutionary War service were William, Janua, and George Tubbs, who settled near the small momentain which was mend for thems and is still known as "Tubbs Mountain" by all citizens of Travelers.

From the times of the early cow drivers, the roads through Tavalers Rest were used to convey herds of cattle, horses, hogs, sheep, and even turkeys from the grasslands and corn and grath fields of Kentucky and Temessee to South Carolina and Georgiala 1860, Temessee was the greatest corn-producing state in the unken and many hogs were produced each year. These drivers continued to within memory of some of the now-living inhabitum of Travelers Rest, who recall having to get out of the road to keep from being trampled by these herds.

The droves of turkeys were of particular interest. There were sunsaly from four to six bunded half-wild birds in a flock led by one old gubbler. The owner rode horseback in front, while two or these drivers followed on each side who kept the turkeys in line with long whips to which were often itsel strips of red fammel. The flock made only about six or seven miles in a day, laking to the trees at night. Getting them down from their purches in the morning was something of a problem. According to old timers the old lead gubbler was coazed down with a breakfast of corn or gasin and the others followed. These flocks of turkeys and their drivers were looked forward to every year before Thanksgring and Christmas by the people of Travelers Rest, whe provided rounting places for them is groven nearby.

The droves of hogs, accompanied by hog callers and whip cracker, were equally interesting. Some were driven by professionals, but most of them were brought by their owners who wave glad to take the trip from their homes in the back woods to the more exciting towns and cities. Since more than one hog driver was likely to be found comping in the place, each one had his hogs marked by some distinctive sign such as a notch in the ear. Much ingenuity was displayed in the different patterns of these notches.

Campetes and places of rest had to be provided for these drivers, usually stept on the floor of the inn or tavern and stor. The men usually stept on the floor of the inn or tavern and their charges were driven into inclosures built for the purpose. In later year the mountaineers with their covered wagons also stopped at these campetes. There were several stopping places or campetes in and around Travelers Rest. Some of the drovers came across the mountains and down the road from Breward and Caesars Head by way of the old Jones Gap Road as well as the Buncombe Road. There was a very large well just across the road from the present site of Brown's Feed and Seed Store where hog and cattle drivers and wagoners stopped to refresh themselves as well as their charges, and found camping places nearby.

Many old stusies are told of these places. It is said that one smully had a have in which the logs were driven for the elight. The harn had a trap door in the floor, and during the night the owner would open the door and let a couple of hog fail through to be killed by him later, after the drower had gone on with his drove. Also, it is said this innikesper would have colored boys catch a few of the most distinctively marked logs and weigh them during the night. In the morning when the hog chrowers awoke in a jovial mood, betting would be stated to see who could come closest to guessing the weight of certain hogs. As these hogs had been previously weighed during the night, the fundament advance come proposed to the contract of the best.

Another story told by Mrx. Nora Ros, that on one occasion a house drover from Tensensee came through the settlement on his way to Aiken to dispose of his fine horses. This accomplished no returned by the same route carrying the large sum of money he had realized from the sale. He was rebbed and titled, but it could not be ascertained by whom. His brother came from Temessee to see what was preventing his return. On investigation, they found his saddle hanging on the back porch of a house in Travelers Rest, but were unable to prove how it got there. It was said that at night you could hear his ghost going along the road dragging the chair with which he had been hansed.

Mr. Spurgeon Stroud of Tigarville relates that there was a certain man who was a great gambler and loved to play cards with the drovers and travelers. His son played the fiddle, and while the game was in progress would take his place behind the min against whom his father was playing. By playing in a certain manner he would signal his father as to the kind of hand his opponent had.

#### MORRE OF TRAVEL CHANGE

Following the port-Revolutionary War era modes of travel improved as well as the rough roads. The stagecoaches, often drawn by from homes, began to run from Asheville to Greenville Village and on via the old Augusta Road to Augusta (New Hamborg) and via the old Laurens Road to Charles Town. The following stage schedules were copied from the Greenville Mountaineer by Dr. I. Leasens, former president of Fachine College:

[Feb. 6, 1830] Stage to Columbia no good — only once a week over a fairly good road and takes three days to make the trip [only 110 miles].

[Sept. 3, 1831] Mail from Columbia carried on Stage of two horses — a very shaky coach and always late. Letters three days in arriving from Columbia — comes twice a week.

Buncombe Stage to Asheville very bad - two borses once a week to Asheville. Augusta Stage well conducted

[Oct. 6, 1832] Stages on mail routes lately expedited. Columbia stage now runs three times a week instead of two; to Asheville two izstead of one.

[May 11, 1833] Charleston papers get here now in something less than three days by Columbia. If by Augusta, they take seven or eight days.

Two years ago Charleston papers took 10 or 12 days to get here [i.e., to Greenville].

[June 8, 1833] Charleston mail due every Monday, Thursday and Saturday. Asheville mail due every Tuesday and Saturday.

Many have inquired as to how the town of Travelers Rest got its name. Some have thought that visitors from the low country seeking the cool of the mountains gave it this name. Travelers Rest received its name before these visitors began to come, however. From the Fort Office Department in Washington, D. C., we learn that the Travelers Rest Post Office was established. Orbor 10, 1006, and was officially listed by that zame at that time. The early cow and hog drivers looking for a retting place for themselves and their tired herds and finding it at the foot of the mountains began to call it Travelers Rest, and the name was immediately adopted as appropriate. When the first clump was grangeousches began to run from Asheville to Augusta or Columbia and vice versa they also paused to allow their passengers to rest here and gladily accepted the name. Later when numeer visitors began to come by train or stage from the low country they also thought the name so lovely and suitable.

From the records sent from Washington we learn that the first postmaster appointed to the Travelers Rest office October 10, 1808, was Thomas Edwards and that he was succeeded by his son, Peter, in 1810 and Jesse in 1811. The map of Greenville County published in The Atlas of the State Of South Carolina by Robert Mills in 1820 shows the location of the Edwards place at the intersection of Rutherford and Asheville Roads. This spot is at the former Chaney Stroud place now owned by Mr. J. M. Johnson on the Poinsett Highway, six miles above Travelers Rest near its intersection with Highway 14 from Tigarville, Mr. Johnson identifies the small stream near his home as the Panthers Branch mentioned in the old deeds from the Edwards to Chaney Stroud. The first old house or inn and store owned by the Edwards were burned down and Chaney Stroud built the old house which is still standing near the highway, Mr. Johnson and Mr. Spurgeon Stroud of Tiverville say that there was a large enclosure and burns built in the time of the Edwards and used by Mr. Stroud as accommodations for the cow and hog drovers. We do not have official record that the post office was located at the Edwards home but there were no separate post office buildings at that time. The mail was brought by horseback or stanceoach to homes or small stores and we know that the Edwards place was important enough to be shown on Mill's Arise map of 1820 and undoubtedly contained the post office.

The post office was moved a couple of miles down the road to the home or store of Philip Maroney in 1811, also shown on the Mills' Atlas map. It was probably about the area of Belleview where a later post office was known to have been located for a number of years. Mr. Maroney, postmaster, was thought to have been a relative

of the Edwards as there is a deed on record showing that he bought land from John Edwards in 1824.

On September 12, 1818, Mr. Joseph Otts was appointed potnaster of Travelers Rest and the post office was again shifted a little further down the Athevelle Read to Mr. Otti's home. It is shown on Mill' Atler map of 1820. It was near the later home of Major Lynch. The road bore somewhat to the right toucking the Tubbs Mountain area. Deeds in the courthouse show that the Olis property was in this ser.

The Major Lynch place was one of the very early stopping or resting places for travelers by foot, horseback or stagecoach. Major Henry Ellis Lynch came from the Charleston area. (He is said to have been of the family line of Thomas Lynch, Ir., of Charleston, one of the four signers of the Declaration of Independence from South Carolina.) He bought 120 acres of land at the corner of Asheville and Tigerville Roads from James Springfield son of Dicey Langston and Thomas Springfield, on October 9, 1829. With his bride, the former Della King, Major Lynch is said to have arrived in Travelers Rest driving his fine pair of horses tandem-style. He built the large fourteen-room, three-story house which was used as an inn and also built a store a short distance away and a stable where the horses of the travelers were kept. Enclosures were also provided for the cattle and hogs of the drivers. The old inn, still standing, was remodeled by the Morgans who removed the top story which contained the small rooms opening on long halls which were rented to travelers. This place was known far and wide as a resting place for weary travelers and was most appropriate to the name "Travelers Rest." The Major Lynch place passed into the hands of his son-in-law, Col. S. S. Crittenden, who continued to operate it as an inn for some time but moved to the city of Greenville and eventually sold the place to Rev. D. B. Talley, a Baptist minister.

Stephen Stanley Crittmeden, son of Dr. John and Sura Critmaden, met and married Ellza, only child of Major Lyach, in 1855 and made his home in the Travelers Rest area. Col. Crittmeden served as postmatter at Travelers Rest for thirteen years and them moved to Creenville where he served as postmatter for soveral years. He was author of The Greenville Century Book, which is very valuable to students of the cump history. After the Crittendens moved to Greenville, the stage coach stop was moved to the home of Col. Robert Anderson about a mile further down the Buncombe Road. The Col. Anderson place had been built by Chevis Montgomery of Spartanburg in 1851. Montgomery, a cousin of Minerva Bradley, purchased a part of the Bradley land and built a large fourteen-room bouse in 1831, which he operated as an inn during the Cwil War years and afterward until 1872 when he sold it to Col. Robert Wright Anderson. The house, now the bome of Col. Anderson's grandon, Robert LeRoy Anderson, is still standing in good condition except that the outside kitchen has been torn down.

Col. Robert W. Anderson was born in Laurens District at Waterloo, South Carolina, on August 13, 1826, being one among the sixteen children of Capt. George and Millie Smith Anderson. This family furnished eleven sons to the Confederate Army. Col. Anderson married Mary McCullough, daughter of Col. Joseph McCullough of the Princeton section of lower Creenville County, and they originally made their home near Greenwood. While residing there they became parents of four little daughters. When all four died while quite young, three within three weeks of each other, Col. and Mrs. Anderson decided to leave their home for the more healthful climate of Travelers Rest. They bought the large house which Mr. Chevis Montgomery had built in 1851 and moved into it in 1873. They continued to operate this large and commodious house as an inn, and many people from the "low country", especially from Charleston came up by train and spent from a few weeks to the entire summer there, Mrs. Anderson was noted for setting a splendid table which the guests enjoyed along with the mountain air, good water, and pleasant company. Col. Anderson also operated the Travelers Rest post office for nine years. His inn was also the stage stop. It is said that the stage driver would size up the passenger list and give as many toots on his stage horn as there were to he guests for dinner so that places might be readied at the table. Mr. and Mrs. Anderson were parents of the following children: Mrs. B. F. Goodlett (Fannie), Mrs. Tom Roe (Maude), Mrs. Edward Hillhouse (Minnie), and James Robert Anderson.

After the death of Col. Anderson in 1898, his daughter, Mrs. Minnie Anderson Hillhouse, who had married Edward Young Hillhouse, son of Dr. John Peter Hillhouse, bought out the interest

of the other heirs and increased the capacity and scope of the big house. As there was a fine large spring near the house it was named the Spring Park Inn and the park near the spring was called Spring Park. The Carolina, Knoxville and Western Railway train called "The Swamp Rabbit" passed very near the inn. It made a stop there and passengers who had come from distant points were able to alight near the door. Excursions were run out from Greenville to the picnic grounds and many gay times were had. Seeing the need for more regreational facilities, the railroad built a large pavilion on the Hillhouse property and all manner of outings, church picnics, ball games were enjoyed there, even dancing on Saturday nights. Mr. Ed Hillhouse was always very active in politics and it became an established cautom for the political campaign speaking round to begin at the Spring Park. Special trains were run out from Greenville to accommodate those who were not able or did not wish to come by way of horse and buggy. Those activities continued for many years, the inn being full of guests and the park full of pleasure seekers.

Mr. Ed and Mrs. Minnie Hillhouse were well known over the whole of Greenville County. During World War I, Mrs. Hillhouse operated a canteen for the soldiers in Greenville. Later she operated a lunch room and recreation center in the old Record Building for use of the buriness women of Greenville.

# SCHOOLS OF TRAVELERS REST

From early times the residents of the Travelers Rest area were interested in the progress of their community and realized that education was essential to that progress. Before the advent of public school, many families employed private tutors for their children. Present residents remember hearing their parents speak of these tutors. Col. Robert Anderson maintained a small building in his yard to which his children and those of a few of his neighbors repaired for instruction by a tutor.

The first school available to the community was a log calbin of one room in which one teacher labored to instruct children of several grades for a few months each year. This building stood on land donated by Major Henry Lynch, one of the early residents and was located about where the residence of George Colleman, Sr., now stands. It is said to have had slab benches. It was a private school and a small fee was charged. The late Miss Jemin Coleman said that this school, as well as once in the nearby communities of Pleasant Retreat, White Horse, Bates Old Flald (Near the Coleman Heights development), and others were taught by school masters who did not receive much in the way of salary and who "Doarded around" in the homes of the pupils for seal weeks at a time. Some of these teachers remembered by Max Jeunie were Mr. John Robert Plyler, father of Dr. John Plyler, former president of Furnan University, Rev. A. B. Langton, Mr. T. V. Farrow, Mr. Dixon, Mr. Henry Southern and Squire Billy West.

The school session first ran about four months and later was expanded into six or seven months. The session was terminated in April so that the children could aid in the cubivation of the field crops and was resumed for six weeks in the summer whethers was not much work to be done. It did not open again until the cotton had been picked in the fall. Numerous residents of Travelers Rest recall going to private schools used to supplement these short term schools.

#### TRAVELERS REST ACADEMY

About the year 1883, Mr. Robert Anderson, Col. Stanley Crittenden, Tyre Williams, Thomas B. Besson and J. D. Cooper decided that a larger and better school should be built. They therefore, as trustees, formed a stock company for a school called the Tartelers Rost Academy' and sold stock in the same. Three access of land was secured from the Crittenden children, heirs of their grandfather, Major Henry Lynch, at the site of the present Petarson Lumber Company.

The trustees mentioned, built a three-room frame structure, having one long room in front with two smaller ones in the rear with adjustable walls. When three teachers were available all three rooms were used, but when only two teachers were employed the walls were pushed back. The school was heated by wood stowers and was considered a very nice building, even having a stage for the Friday afternoon. "meacher' of the children.

It was continued as a private school for ten years but began to be called the "T. R. High School" as is shown from an old paper of Mr. Anderson dated 1863, "To Stockholders of Travelers Rest High School." The school was turned over to the board of education of the county in the early part of the outbury. The first graduating class to receive certified high school diplomes was that of 1911. Three of these graduates now living in the Travelers Rest and Greenville area are Carrie Goodlett Holtzclaw of Travelers Rest, Roy Hust of Greenville, and Lula Coleman Talley of White Hose Road.

By 1914 this frame building had become inadequate. It was tarn down and a four room brick building was erected. Later more classrooms and a gymnasium were added which provided twelve classrooms and a pice suditorium.

### TRAVELERS REST ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

The building of a much larger and more commodious school was begun and completed in time for the fall seasion of 1930 to begin. At the time, C. P. Rice was superintendent and Sloan Westmoetised, principal. In 1953 a six-room annex to the school was built for the primary grades. At the present time there to four first grades and four second grades there and on the second floor. In 1851 the schools of Greenville County were consolidated into one district — the Greenville County School District.

In 1866 crowded conditions at the Travelers Rest School necessitated the building of a new high achool, and the Travelers Rest School was devoted exclusively to the primary and grammar grades and became officially known as the Travelers Rest Elementary School with Mr. Williams as principled. It has continued to grow. Some changes have been made in the physical plant, the school ciferies now occupying the former athletic room and the space in the basement formerly used as a cafeteria now being used as a band ground of several content of the school cifering the school cifering to the school cifering to the school cifering to the school cifering the school cife

#### HIGH SCHOOL

A handeme new high school was built on Wetnon Road on a thirty-like such lot, formarily the Howard property, in 1956. This school has twenty-five rooms in two wings, a modern conference which uses five cooks and two desiritians, as hand room, chest room, seachtive wing, room for full-time counselor, health room, and teacher? I counge. It also has a modern gymmastum, dressing rooms, and related football field. It has a good physical education propuss, efficient business reducation department, home economic department, agriculture department, sciences department, and included the control of the contro

next year. It has a good library of which Mrs. Mary Coleman Thomason had charge from 1956 until 1861. Mrs. Margaret Turner is now librarian. The school is now (1966) a member of the Southern Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools.

## ATHURN SCHOOL

Grestrelle County Negro exhools prior to consolidation in 1861, with the exception of the one that was known as Trust-Rest Colored School, were all one and two teacher galook. Trusclers Rest had five teachers. Athers Elementary, our permit school, was built to 1864. The school was named for the old Athers division of Trust-lears Rest.

The town of Travelers Rest had been issued a charter by
the South Carolina legislature in 1891, but the to jeakupy between
the upper and lower parts of the town as well as a school disputation the upper portion drow out and formed a separate towa close allow
Athens in the year 1863. There were even two railcoad stations
for the Swamp Rabbit Railmond. Mr. John Pipler, father to
late Dr. J. L. Pipler, was town clerk of the town of Athens and
the town council book which he kept is preserved. The differences
between the two parts of town were settled and the whole area
reassumed the name of Travelers Rest in 1800.

Among the physicians serving Travelers Rest have been Dr. John Feter Billbouse, Dr. Mr. L. West, Dr. Charles Berson, Dr. B. J. Goodlett, Dr. S. R. Gaston, Drs. T. E. and Susoley Coleman. McCarroll, Dr. John Holliday, and Dr. Jensen. Barnett. Of these Dr. Coodlett served the area for Efty years, longer than any other.

The churches of the Travelers Rest area have played as inportant part in fix development. Ready fixer Baptist Church is the oldest of these churches, having been established in 1778 at a point about three miles above Travelers Rest. It was the mother of other early Baptist churches, including Enorse, established in 1851, Ebenneye, established in 1835. There have been four church buildings of the Ready River Church, first 1800, the first case at the present location in 1819, second one in 1873 third one in 1910; present one in 1949. The educational building was added in 1957. The new educational building is just completed, the early years of the church there were numerous colored members, but most of them laft to form churches of their own about 1855. However, there are several colored people buried in the adjoining cemetery. The original records of the church beginning in 1799 have been preserved and are kept in a vault at the church. A history of the church has been compiled from these old records and other sources by W. Mann Betson.

In addition to the early churches mentioned, others in the are Jackson Grove Methodist, founded in 1832; Travelers Rest Methodist, founded in 1895; First Baptist, founded in 1913; Trinity Fresbyterian, founded in 1933; and Clearview Baptist, founded in 1933.

Travelers Rest has numerous active fraternal and civio organizations including Cooper Masonic Lodge, Eastern Star, Liou Club, Givitan Club, Jayces, Travelers Rest and Mountain Laurel Garden Club, Travelers Rest Study Club, Business and Prosisional Women's Club, JayceeEts and Travelers Rest Community Club.

There are several industries within the town or adjacent to it, including Renfrew Bleachery, Zonolite Vermiculite Company, Palmetto Garment Company, Dann Manufacturing Company, Emb-Tex Corporation; also, Duke Power Company branch and Southern Bell Telephone branch.

The old town charter having expired, a new one was issued in 1959 with George Coleman as first mayor. Dr. James Bamett is serving as mayor at the present time, 1967, and he and the town council, as well as interested citizens, have great plans for the future development of the town and area. With two water mains running through the town giving access to the unsurpassed mountain water and a sanitary system being commenced soon, there is no limit to the town's possible expansion which should hake its future thistory a fine continuation of its interesting past.

# THE SPANISH-AMERICAN WAR AND GREENVILLE

### HINNEY B. McKoy

It has been rewarding to search among the records and to talk with older citizens of Cenesullis and to find that there are still those among us, who remember what is meant by the sty of datty-serven years ago, 'Remember The Meins.' The hattleship Mothe was runk in Hawana harbor on Februssy 15, 1969, under mysterious circumstances, with a loss of 200 mm and officers.' Congruss, though President McKinley on Aguil 25, 1969, declared war on Spain.' On Friday August 12, 1989, the Secretary of Stats, Williams R. Day, and the French Ambassader, jules Cambon, acting on behalf of Spain signed a peace trotocol ending hostilities and President McKinley proclaimed an aministics.' This was a most four months after the declaration of war, and six montly after the shicking of the Mains.'

It is my purpose to tell of some of the event that happens during this period and of the effects this war had on the town, the county, and the citizens of Greecville. It must be remembered that in 1868, Greenville was a small town with only 9000 stolk, and there was not even one paved street in the village and very few sidewalks.<sup>5</sup> President McKinley issued a call on April 23, 1898, for 125,000 volunteers, and there was an instant response in Greenville.

The Butler Guards of Greenville was a military company betwee the Confederate War, and claimed to be the first company of soldiers from South Carolina to be mustered into the Confederate Army, when they joined the Second South Carolina Regiment in Richmond under Gen. J. B. Kershaw: In 1886 the Butler Guards was the only active military company in Greenville Company, and was a member of the South Carolina National Cuard. Occar K. Mauldin was their capitain, with Wade H. Ligon and

<sup>1</sup>Frunk Fruidel, The Splandid Little Wer (New York, 1958), p. 2. SHenry B. Russel, Our Wer With Spain (New York, 1958), p. 252.

h"An Bye Witness," The Spenish-Assertant War (1800), p. 253.

<sup>5</sup>The United Status Council of 1800.

<sup>\*</sup>Latter of W. T. Shumain, April 11, 1914, in the Greenville Naus, July 26, 1982.

Thomas B. Ferguson as Let and Red. Heutenants. Edward B. Ligon and C. A. Parkins were sengeants. \*Captain Mauldin and his company were amious to have their organization, again, among the first to volunteer for service, and their conduct refuted the report that the utilizary of South Carolina was not willing to enlex unconditionally the service of the United States Anny. Fifty-eight men of the Butter Generic againsted their purpose to volunteer and twenty-six other men signed up with them making a full complement of eighths-four men, that was resulted for a company.

Within a few days after the declaration of war another company, which was known both as the Creenville Guards and the Greenville Vdantsers, was organized under the efforts of Angustus D. Hoke who became the captain, and James W. Gray, Jr., and William D. Whitnine who were installed as 1st and 2nd. lieutenants. Harry A. Dargan was first sergents. The officers of these two companies came from Creenville as did a large portion of the mea, but many came from the adjoining counties and the unper section of this state.

After signing for service the Builer Guards were quartered at the City Armory on the east side of Laurems Street, between Washington and McBee Avenue, near the old City Hall. 1º The Greenville Volunteers or Guards, under Captain Augustus D. Hoke, were bivoused at the Country Court House, where they set up a text on the street which was used for enlistment purposes. The Butler Caurds faed uniforms and arms, but Captain Hoke's company had aeither, but in spite of this, strict railizary order was observed."

On May 3, 1896, Col. J. W. Cagle, who was the last Commonder of the Courts at the clear of the Confederate War, came before the soldiers and made them a stirring speech. The Green-ville Mountaineer reported, "May 7th. is a day that will long occupy a compicume piace in the history of Greenville, for then it was, that two companies from this town left to take their place in the army. Amembed early at the City Armory, was the Butler

Trape White Flord, Helectical Restor and Interways of South Carolinas Volunteer Trape Wha Sexual in the Late War Steinman the United Starce and Spain. (Columbia, 1911) (Imminishing clints in S. C., in the South, West Spain.)

SGreenville Mountainer, April 10, 1806.

<sup>10</sup>*E*Mi.

<sup>117544</sup> 

Caarda, one hundred strong. Each soldier wore a buttenhole borquet and the officers had been presented with flowers by the women of the Fennale Academy. When they had furmed, Captain Mauldin stepped between the two lines, which extended the whole length of the hall, and holding up a tattered banner, called the men to attention. It was the Bonnie Blee Flag that beaus the Slagle Star', which he held up and it was the old buildt scarred battle flag of the Butler Caurda used in the Confederate War. He then made a short patriotic talk, and declared that this company would always keep this flag, and it's menney uscallide."

These two companies left for Columbia on May 4. All schools had been disnissed, all local bands assembled and the Groenville and Columbia Depot presented an animated spectace with the men, women and children of the town there to asy goodlys. The bands played "Disid" and other patriotic sirs, and there were more tears than cheers when the train pulled sway. <sup>13</sup> Over two hundred men left at this time and there were few families if this small tows that did not have a rallative or a friend involved.

Only men with the finest phyrique were accepted in the sm and an alarming proportion of all volunteers were rejected. The Buther Guards had fifty-tire men to pass the phyrical test and the Greenville Guards had fifty-tive men accepted. The mass meeting was held in Beattie's Hall on May 11 to discuss measures to obtain recruits to fill the vocancies in the Greenville companier. There were stirring speeches by Ex. Le. Gow. W. L. Mauldin, Gol. J. C. Boyd, P. T. Hayne, C. W. Dillard, J. W. Cruy, Joe B. Ston, and John H. Earle-i'd Results were good, for the Greenville Coards was mustered into the service of the United States Army on May 13, 1989, as Company F of the Pirts Gouth Carolina Volunteer Infantry. I'd And the Buther Guards were mustered two days later on May 5 as Company H of the Pirts Gouth Carolina Volunteer Infantry. I'd was told that Capt. Mauldin was ready with the other company but refused to be mentered in one. Firidia 1319.

On June 8 Companies F and H left Columbia for Camp Thomas, Georgia, where they were assigned to the First Anny Corpa. 18 They proceeded by rail via Spartzaburg and Greenville.

<sup>18</sup>Granaville Mountelesor, May 7, 1888. 18Zhid, May 14, 1808.

<sup>1475</sup>td., May 18, 1808. 1875tpd, S. C. in the Sp-Am. War.

And the town of Grozoville met them at the depot, and the second vortion to if a herore was even greater than the first. Again all schools were dismissed and the pupils attended in a body and there was much band music. The town people had made one thousand sandwiches and there were especial boxes of choice fixed free the "Greaville boys." <sup>58</sup>

Both companies left Camp George H. Thomas, Georgia, on Jusae 9 for Camp Cobs. Libre, Flandia, and were assigned to duty with the Swenth Army Corps. They did not get to Cubes. On September 94, they returned to Camp Ellerbee at Columbia, South Carolina. The beadding of the Grenaville Mountaineer of New Nember 2, 1989, reported "the flighting being over, the enlisted men cry, We want to go bome, and it is their almost unanimous will, to be mustered out," "It he local railtoneds gold excurs will, to be mustered out the first beginning out of the First Regiment. The Irenavilla Companies F and H were mustered out on November [1982].

There was also organized in Greenville another volunteer company under William G. Sirrine as captain. Richard L. Dargan and Theodore C. Stone as 1st. and 2nd. lieutenants. The sergeants were Augustus M. Deal, Christie I. D. DeCamp, William P. Liston. Claud M. Crawford and Robert E. Houston. It was proposed that they be called "The Hampton Rifles." They were mustered into service at Camp Ellerber, Columbia South Cambina, on June 15. 1898. Although the officers were from Greenville, as were most of the noncome the privates came from all over the state. This company was designated as Company B Second Regiment, South Carolina Volunteer Infantry, assigned to the Second Army Corps. This company went to Jacksonville and then Savannah, where they boarded the transport Roumanian on January 3, 1899, for Havana, Cuba, and were stationed at Camp Columbia nearby. They made a memorable march of fifty miles to Guines. Cube, February 19-23, 1899. They returned to Havana, leaving there for Savannah where they arrived on March 22. They proceeded from there to Augusts, Georgie, where they were mustared out on March 28, 1899. This company organized under Captain Wil-

<sup>16</sup>Cremella Mountainer, June 8, 1898. 17Eel, Mountaine 8, 1898. 16Flord, S. G. in the Sp.-App. War.

liam G. Sirvine is the only Greenville Company that did reach Cuba. 19

When Gov. Ellerbee called the National Guard into service he stated that no colored troops would be called under the first damand.<sup>38</sup> On July 10, 1898, the Daily Gresselle published this notion, "The mean who intonal to enlist in the Mountain City Volumbers, which is a colored company, being organized by J. C. Eller and the contribution on Menday evening. There are said to meet at the courthouse on Menday evening to enlist are requested by authorities, to stay sway. Them is no evidence of any further action to form a Negoc company been.

On June 1, 1888, the Mountsteer reported 'The recordy organized Home Guards and a company formed from the rejected men of the Butler Guards have consolidated and will apply for the charter of the old Butler Guards, under which same they will ask admission to the State Millias. Ho officers of the new company are F. B. McBee, Captain, S. F. Burges and A. Parkins let and Std. Lieutenants. It is stated that there are about more of the new on the roll of the new company. This company will do millia duty entirely."

Dr. Robert Emmet Houston served as a segmant under Capt. Wm. G. Sirribe in the Second Regiment of South Carolian Volunteurs. Mrs. Houston, last: April, told of his carrying a small camer with him in the service. And that he rook a number of pictures of his colonel and other officers, and sold them to members of his regiment. He then loamed this money at high interest to like Tempshooting Commades. After his discharge he found that this money amounted to enough to make a down payment for tuilout to the University of Virginia, where he later studder modificant. Mrs. Houston has a small photo of Dr. Houston and Eugene Stone, Sr., showing them in a tent during the Spanish-American War.

In the center of the large circle at Springwood Cemetry at Greenville, South Carolina is a small marble shaft, maching the grave of Wade Hampton Parker, the first nodder from Greenville to die in service during the Spenish-American War. Carwed thereon is "Born in York County August 18, 1878. Died Cohumbia. S. C. May 18, 1898. Co. H.S.C.V.L. First Regiment." A newspaper

<sup>191</sup>bid.

<sup>20</sup> Geemville Mounteineer, April 20, 1898.

story states, "A squad of soldiers from the Butler Guards under Capt. F. B. McBee attended the funeral and proceeded the body to Springwood Cemetery, after which they fixed a military saluts over the grave."

Some amusing incidents and stories were circulated in Greenville during the Spanish-American War. On March 9, 1868. the editor of the Greenville Mountaineer reported. "It is now well understood that our local house-mover. Havnes, will be given the contract to raise the wreck of the Maine, as the New York company did not have the facilities. The wreck will be brought direct to Greenville, via Reedy River, where it will become a National Monument," The Mountaineer further states, "President McKinley will make his headquarters at Caesars Head, and the very name of the place is enough to bring victory. A great telescope from Chicago University will be mounted in an observatory erected on the mountain, from which place the President and his official household can without difficulty view the operations in Habana Harbor. The Butler Guards are to be sent to Caesars Head to protect the President and are now being feasted on game chickens to put the fighting spirit in them."32

A group was always to be found around the newspaper's beliefun board. One who could not read asked, "What is printed there?" He was informed that "Commander' Dewoy has been esgaged in a bloody fight. The Spanish Navy has been whitpped. All the Philippen Islands except two have been sunk, and these two tilands are now being towed by a tug, and will be hitched onto Colba."

The first instantion that a Spanish-Wer camp might be located in Greenville is found in the Greenville Mountaineer of June 15, 1898, which riside that there was an excellent chance of getting a camp for soldiers, which the government would locate some place in the South. Mayor James T. Williams, Alderman James Frink Richardson, and Alaster G. Furnan rode on the same trais with said contacted the army men who were inspecting the advantages of different towns. They traveled from Columbia to Charlotte, and had a most satisfactory interview. They were told that the government wanted principally good water and they as-

<sup>21/</sup>bid., May 85, 1898. 22/bid., March 9, 1898. 25/bid., May 4, 1898.

sured the group that Greenville could supply that.24 Williams. Richardson and Furman laid the groundwork well, for the army officers inspecting sites came to Greenville carly in September. 1898. They were composed of Gen. George Schwann, Lt. Col. O'Riley, Medical Dept.; Lt. Col. Hodgson, Quartermaster Dept.; Capt. Craighill, Engineer Corps, and Capt. Dodd, Judge Advocate. They were driven over the city and shown the proposed sites for a camp on the Stone property on Earle Street, and off Anderson Street. They were also driven up to Paris Mountain and saw the adequate source of good water. The Paris Mountain Water Company was then a private concern with two reservoirs on the mountain. Harry T. Poe, superintendent, promised that the company would pipe water to the campsites. 25 A report was submitted stating. That there were objectional features about a camp, but that they would be reduced to a minimum with proper management. But if 5000 men were stationed here Creenville would have \$150,000.00 spent here every month. And that would do wonders for Greenville."

On October 1, 1896, a mass meeting was held to Bestitie's Hall which endorsed the action of Mayor Jumes T. Williams and his committee. Cov. Mauldin presided, with A. C. Furman as escretary. The following were present, Meyor Williams, C. F. Dill, A. A. Gates, H. E. Gele, W. H. Ervine, F. M. Sincen, Junes H. Morgan, J. F. Conder, Davis Furman, E. B. L. Taystak, Jesph A. McCoullough, A. B. Browa, J. F. Richardson, W. E. Bestife, J. B. Marshall and W. H. Cely. Committees were appointed on water, piping, securing land, and finances? "Then followed several weeks of intensive efforts of the citizens of Creewife and the original committee of Williams, Richardson and Furman to persuade the government to establish a camp beer. This committee assembled information, wrote, telegraphed, and went to Wathington where they talked with sumy officials, Congressmen and even had a visit with President McKinday."

Early in October the committee returned from Washington with definite assurance that a camp would be established here with two brigades and approximately ten thousand men. A news-

<sup>\$41544,</sup> June 15, 1898.

\$15544, October 1, 1896, Is is interesting so note that the protocol milling hestillten had been algoed on August 12, 1898.

247546.

<sup>27</sup> Septies Courier, November 17, 1895.

paper commented, "Division Headquarters will be in Grounville which gives us a set of officers of high rank and these as a rule are gentlemen, of good social standing, whose families will secompany them." It was stated positively that no Negro troops will be sent here. In the original plan was to have one Brigade in Grounville and one in Spartanburg but because of the excellent water in Greenville both Brigades were established here.

The camp was named "Wetherill" in honor of Alexander Macomb Wetherill, who was one of the first men killed at the battle of San Juan in Cuba on July 1, 1888. Capt. Wetherill was first hurst in Cuba and later his remains were removed and interest in the officers section of the National Cemetery at Arlington, Virginia, 200

There were two excitons of Camp Wetherdil. One was located on the E. E. Store, extending from Buncombe Street almost to the present Wede Hampton highway. The other section was located to the south and east of Anderson Street near and beyond the present Mills Mill, with 2od. Division Headquarters being located to the west of Anderson Street on the east et site of our present hospital. A map drawn by the Engineers of the 2nd Div., 2nd Anny Corps dated February 28, 1869, shows the locations of the units in the 3nd. Brigade, near Mills Mill. No map has been found of the First Brigade, near Mills Mill. No map has been found of

Camp Wetherill was strictly a tent camp. From photographs at hand this can be seen. Wooden hulldings were erected for the heatequartex, the hospital and the mess shacks. Some of the tents had wooden floors which gave some comfort to the men from the stow and the mud.

The Brigades from the 2nd. Division, 2nd. Army Corps. U. S. Volunteers, were sent to Gressrelle, S. C., from Camp Meade, Pa. Small detachments from each organization left Camp Meade on November J. 1986, for the purpose of preparing camps for their respective regiments.<sup>38</sup> The newspaper of November Sb. reports: "Engineer Corps making camp ready. Part of the soldiers

<sup>19/244</sup> 

Stifferianal Auchiem Record Service, letter to author, March 10, 1965.

<sup>30&</sup>quot;Monthly Reports of Sad. Div., 2nd. Acrey Corps," November, December, 1890; Instanty, February, 1899.

have come, and Greenville already has assumed a livelier look. With the soldiers the town becan to look brighter and there is a perceptive increase in hurry and bustle. It has been extremely cold and one soldier remarked that Greenville was not the Summe-South' he had heard about."91

The First and Second Brigades started leaving Cann Meads. Pa., on November 11, 1898, and the last arrived in Greenville, S. C., on November 17. The First Brigade consisted of the 203rd. New York, the 2nd, West Virginia, and the 5th, New Jersey, These were located on Earle Street where also the Brigade Hospital Corps made camp. The only house at that time on Earle Street belonged to E. E. Stone and is now occupied by a descendant Mrs. Agnes Stone Dorsey, who states that this house was used as a nurses' home by the Hospital Corps which was located nearby. The Second Brigade consisted of the 4th, Missouri, the 5th. Massachusetts, and the 201st. New York. The two brigades were both of Volunteer Infantry. The Second Brigade was located near the present Mills Mill #2

The winter of 1898-1899 was one of the most severe winters that Greenville has ever experienced. (Although it was nearly duplicated in 1917-1918 when the 30th, Division was here). The soldiers were much disappointed to find cold weather when they expected a Florida Sunny South.

On November 14, the Second West Virginia Regiment marched from the depot out Washington Street and into the hearts of the people," as the hand leading the troops turned into Main Street, they played "Dirie," which was greeted by "rebel yells." The 203rd, New York arrived Sunday night November 13, and got a wet welcome as they pitched their tents in the mud. as The Fourth Missouri Regiment unloaded from the Columbia tracks near Anderson Street, and a "more disagreeable day has not been seen in Greenville this fall, and the boys received a had impression of Southern weather."4 The Fifth Massachusetts arrived November 19, and completed the quota of troops for Greenvilla. "This organization was beautifully drilled and walked

<sup>92</sup> Consurtile Mountainer, November S, 1696.

<sup>82&</sup>quot; Monthly Reports 2nd. Div., 2nd. Army Corps, November, December, 1898; Jan-SSCreenville Mounteineer, November 18, 1895.

<sup>345</sup>bid., November 19, 1896.

along in a drenching rain as gaily as if the sum was shining. Their band discoursed sweet music along the march and rendered Dixle as they passed under Old Glory at the Mansion House."

The paymester arrived in the latter part of November, and it was critimated that each regiment received \$30,000, and \$30,000 of this was spent in Greenville. Six regiments meant that \$120,000 was spent that month in Greenville.<sup>24</sup>

The Christmas season of 1896 was the greatest rush thet Greenville merchants had ever known, and the trade was beyond all expectations. It was impossible to buy any Christmas cards, books, trinkets, clothes or anything that might be suitable as a gift. The soliders bought the woolen gloves and gauntlets available, besides other warm clothing.<sup>17</sup>

The Mantion House was used as Division Headquarters and Propietor A. A. Cates had a Rig made, by special order, which was thirty feet long and hung it in front of the building. It was that largest flag were seen here." The troops also influenced the social and religious life of the town. The Fifth Massachusetts Regiment had a splendid aggregation of musicians and their must have the present of the special description of the special that are and were in great demand and greatly pleased the laddes. Rest and were in great demand and greatly pleased the laddes. E. L. House, Chaplain of Fifth Massachusetts gave a lecture at Cition Collegas, Chaplain four Fifth Massachusetts to great leading the First Baptist Church one Sunday and greatly delighted his suddence.

The Confederate monument which then stood in the control Main Street where Oak Street ends, was said to be of oversefailing learnest to the visiting Northern soldiers, who often took off their lasts in respect when they passed this monument. I suppose the plate about the monument originated during the severe wider. The weather got to cold that the soldier on the monument threw down his gas and put his heads in his pocket.

<sup>252542</sup> 

MARKET.

<sup>242</sup>bid., Navember 30, 1868. 272bid., December 54, 1808.

<sup>58796</sup>L, November 19, 1898.

<sup>1975</sup>til., February 55, 1809.

<sup>40</sup> Repoint Gourier, February, 1899.

<sup>41</sup>Greenville Mosesteiner, November 30, 1898.

Greenville merchants took note of the war to their adventing, Studley and Barr said, "The Maine has blown up, but not our prices." The shoe store of Jones & Herndon advertised, "The War in Spain may blow over, but our campaign is against high prices." C. W. Estes advertised, "Lieutenant Hobson, the hero of Santiago, carried a ten thousand dollar life imursance policy, with us. That was Hobson's choice. Why can't it be yours? The Baptist Courier's showed a drawing of a soldier with a impasack (titled: "An Affair of the Nation. Plair Plife Prolef.")

There was a laundry owned by A. D. Hoke and W. D. Sollivan (afterwards sold to Pickelsiner) on the course of Towness and Collage Streets. The soldiers walked from their cump on Earle Street bringing their soiled laundry and earchanged it for clean clothes which they put on after taking a bath at the cost of twestylive comes. This was one of the few places where a bot bath could be obtained. \*\*

Because the soldiers were giving away and selling parts of their uniforms and equipment, the provest guard was given orders to arrest any oftteen wearing any part of the uniform of a soldier. Exceptions were made in favor of leddes wearing capes of officers, which has become quite the thing lately." An arrest was made of one prominent man found wearing an army overcost.\*

The Baptist Courier complained when the Governor of New Jersey steme to Greenville and took Sunday to review the New Jersey troops which were camped on Earle Street. "We are sony the Governor took Sunday for this business, the people of Greenville and this state do not make a gala day of Sunday, and we regret the Governor has thus desecrated this hely day."

When the troops first arrived there was condetable drunkenness and disorder, as the soldiers non-learned of the dispensries and the blind tigers. One squad of soldiers made a respectable waman dance for them, according to a newspaper story, which stid, "the soldiers are not all conventional gamtlenes, and some

<sup>42364,</sup> March , 1898. 48364, July 10, 1898.

<sup>44</sup>Gmm: The Pindustri, August 29, 1930.

<sup>45</sup>Cmouville Mountginsor, February 25, 1899.

<sup>401244</sup> 

<sup>47</sup> Bayelet Courier, February , 1899.

of the things they do are a little startling." A New Yorker had the distinction of being the first soldier to be arrested. He was tanked up on South Carolina whiskey and was exuberantly drunk in front of the Mansion House.<sup>44</sup> The soldiers thought it great fun to like with the Greenville girls, but complained that most of them would not even look at a fellow.

The most serious crime occurred shorely effect the troops arrived, when Woever Smith, a little white begger boy, was found foully murdered, with a long gash in his stemach. He was found in some weeds off Elford Street and it was definitely determined that it was done by a solder. "The Begeiste Courier carried the following preclamation, "Whereas information has been received on a storcious murder in Greenville, on the hady of Weaver Smith. There is a reward of \$850.00 for apprehension of the guilty. Signed W. H. Ellerbee, Covernor, South Carolina." "Separtanburg chewed on 'sour grupes' and said, "It is not so bad not to have a comparing the story of the source of th

Early in 1899 a solidier created a disturbance and struck the guard who tried to arrest him. He was fired at by the provest guard and the rifle bullet passed through the parior window of Sheriff P. D. Gliresth, who lived at Richardson and Buncombe Scheet. (He was the great grandfacther of Phillip Hungerford)<sup>31</sup>

Order on the streets however did greatly improve and conditions changed, as the men became better disciplined. The men were not allowed to purchase liguor from the dispensaries. Coneral Davis installed a strong provent guard of three hundred men with one hundred on duty at all times.<sup>55</sup>

The minutes of the First Presbyterian Session record a single addition to its membership from the camp, Private Wade Hampton Rice of West Virginia Infanty who joined on profession of fash. It is worth noting that the available histories of the Beptist. Methodist and Episcopal churches make no mention of the Spen-

<sup>48</sup>Gremville Mountaineer, November 18, 1898.

<sup>407</sup>bil., November 23, 1899.

<sup>50</sup> Reprist Courier, November \$4, 1898. 51 Greenville Mountainers, January 7, 1899.

<sup>527</sup>bid., November 19, 1898.

shi-American War camp. The Presbyterian Church reported to the Presbytery that the camp injected new problems in the town, and that some members were entited by the band concerts in the camps to forget the sanctity of the Sabbath, And that the first thing the troops did when they arrived was NOT to go to church.<sup>58</sup>

Arthur Gower writes in his history of the Prehyerian Church. The soldiers gathered quickly, and there was slight preparation for their care, either physical, mental, social or spiritaal. Bet it is to Greenville's credit that aimset all went sway with a pleasant fealing toward Greenville. Much maney flowed into this section through the sofourn of these soldiers, and their conduct induced more alertness in the home people, and despite some blots and blemishas, that would take time to eradients, their coming was a real benefit to Greenville."

Mir. Charles A. David, a noted cartoonist and author, drew a cartoon of a Spanish-American War soldier with snow covered mountains as a background. A thermometer showed zero, and it was snowing. His hat had hlown off, the gus on his shoulder as well as his red nose was dripping icicles. It was filled, 'On Guard In The Sunny South.' This was printed in calor on esuboard and sold by the hundreds to the soldiers who mailed them back home.

Local jowelers also capitalized on the camp. On the bowls of affiver spoons was engraved the words "Camp Wetherill", and were sold as gifts and momentus. Mrs. McKoy owns one of these spoons.

Soveral letters exist from soldiers who were at Camp Wetherill who wrote thanking citizens and friends for hindness to them while here. Mrs. Kate Wire Wymoe, living at that time on North Mains Street befriended many of the guards that patrolled the street in front of her house, with hot food and dirak, during the freezing weather. One of these soldiers presented her with an army cape. During the freezing winter of 1917 austher soldier,

<sup>8.</sup> C., 1982), p. 254.

from Camp Sevier, complained that he had but one blanket to keep warm. Mrs. Wynne gave him that cape. This is the cape, and I was the soldier.

Mr. Gay B. Foster, whose home was directly across Stone Avenue from the camp, told how these soldiers inspired him, a boy of thirteen, and of his desire to join the army with them and his disappointment in not being allowed to do so. He related incidents and details of this camp from personal knowledge. His sister, Mrs. A. Foster Geiger, who was older, vividly remembered and told of many events. An army bakery was located on Earle Street, from which bread was sent to the other brigade. A wagon full of bread being hauled by six mules became stalled in the mud on Main Street in front of where the Public Library now is. The wagon was mired to the audes. The mules were unhitched and carried to the eaup for rest. The next morning six fresh mules arrived but the wagon had become frozen sold in the mud, and could not be budged. The bread was unloaded, and the wagon remained in the mud, is on all now until sarring thawed it out the wedge or

Miss Athalise Moseley who lived at that time on Cedar Lane Road told of he father birniging milk to the camp on Earle Street and selling it to the men by the cupful. Fresh milk not being part of their rations, was almost unavailable. She went many times to the camp with her father who bedriended the soldiers and entertained many of them in his home. She furnished me with this strong box, which has Co. H and, West Virginia, U. S. Army stamped upon it. This was one of the companies located on Earle Street.

By the spring of 1899 it was obvious that the war would not be renewed. The First and Second Brigades were discontinued as organizations on March 3, 1899, and some of the troops were mustered out in Greenville. All had left by the end of March.<sup>44</sup>

However, there were some interesting after-effects of the war which influenced the development of Greenville. The Greenville News states that "General Leonard Wood was a fast friend of Capt. W. G. Sirrine because of their service together in Cuba

<sup>54&</sup>quot;Monthly Reports of 2nd. Div., 2nd. Array Corps," February, 1899.

during the Spanish-American War. Mr. W. G. Sirrine brought Ceneral Wood to Greenville and because of this visit, Camp Sevier was extablished here. General Wood was primarily responsible for the location of encampments."

The afte on the Stone property on Earle Street vesseled by Camp Wethordll, became Greenville's first real citate development. Abster G. Flurman brought an accitoner up from Cladetest, said Mr. Furman under a high still hat leading a best bend walled from a dirt Main Street to the Stone property, whore he sold small lots. This sale netted the astronomical sum of \$15,000, all in ome day.<sup>36</sup>

Within twelve months, the little town of Greenville had heard a declaration of war and had seen the rigning of an aminite. They had organized and furnished three complete compaties compaties to folders, sent them off to war and had seen their return. They had sought and obtained an army camp and had been invested by a force of soldiers greater than their own number. These also within this time returned to their homes.

The impact of these events has had a great and hating effect on the town of Greenville. In pace quickmed. A considerable amount of money had passed through this section and some of it remained. New ideas had germinated. Many solders had made friends and liked what they saw and had stayed behind. The first streets began to be paved. Local butinesses were encouraged and new industry was invited. Paris Mountain Wester Company having laid new pipes to the camps, sought to have the area developed. Truly the Greenville of troday can look hack on those times and see the stuff that they were noade of:

I like to think of the patriction of those three companies of Greenville's soldiers, who at the drop of a hat were ready and surious to go to war to serve their country. And of the climars of Greenville who gave them up and sent them off "with tears and cheers." And of these same soldiers, who with the war wan, wanted only to come home to their families and friends. It is in these, that we can see the backbone and the sineses of our strength and Greenville's success of today.

<sup>45</sup>Undated olipping from Greenotile Noses, clipping file of W. C. Sirrine, Greenville Public Library.

<sup>68</sup>Greenville Neues, September \$5, 1969.

#### NAMES OF MEN IN COMPANY H. FIRST REGIMENT SOUTH CAROLINA VOLUNTEER INFANTRY, SPANISH-AMERICAN WAR

Organized in Greenville, S. C.

Fermerly known se The Butler Guards

Oscar K. Mauldin, 23 years, Cantain, lawyer, Greenville, S. C. Wade H. Llaon, 26 years, lat, Lt., merchant, Greenville Thomas B. Ferguson, 24 years, 2nd, Lt., mechanic, Greenville Edward B. Ligon, 22 years, 1st, sergeant, mechanic, Greenville Benj. H. Kendrick, 28 years, Ot. Master Sergeant, mechanic, Greenville lames E. Dwer, 22 years, Sergeant, Mechanic, Greenville, Thomas Leslie, 19 years, Sergeant, mechanic, Greenville Norman Z. Abbott, 20 years, Corpoval, saw mill, Central Claude D. Pell. 24 years. Corporal, clerk Greenville. Kirk N. Robinson, 23 years, Corporal, insurance, Greenville Edwin R. Haney, 20 years, Corporal, mechanic, Greenville James N. Bolding, 23 years, Cornoral harber Greenville, Thomas E. Price. 24 years, Corporal, carpenter, Greenville John A. Moseley, Corporal, Greenville Henry M. Smith, 26 years, Corporal, guard, Greenville Bud B, Mathews, 35 years, Corogral, carpenter, Greenville, William H. Charles, 43 years, Corporal, clerk, Greenville Jesse H. Henderson, Corporal, Greenville William T. Presion, 18 years, private, carpenter, Spartanburg William B. Adams, private, Greenville, Herbert D. Torrence, 23 years, private, blacksmith, Greenville Andrew C. League, 27 years, private, farmer, Greenville Robert B. Arthur, 20 years, private, clerk, Greenville William M. Benton, 29 years, private, laborer, Greenville Edward Bowen, 22 years, private, weaver, Grounville. Ernest Y. Brooks, 19 years, private, farmer, Greenville Edgar W. Bull, 23 years, private, stonecutter, Greenville William A. Betes, private, Pelzer Henry V. Burdett, 30 years, private, carpenter, Greenville Rowland J. Cahill, 19 years, private, salesman, Spartanburg John M. Crook, 21 years, private, printer, Greenville Robert L. Chandler, 19 years, private, farmer, Greenville George A. Cos, 21 years, private, farmer, Greenville Charles R. Crumley, 20 years, private, brakeman, Greenville Nan'l P. Cunningham, private, Danville, Va. Andrew S. Coreton, private, Greenville Francis G. Earle, 38 years, private, farmer, Holland James W. Foster, orivain, Greenville, William M. Foster, private, Greenville James M. Garner, 28 years, private, weaver, Greenville lames M. Griffith, 21 years, private, farmer, Greenville Ben A. Grissith, private, Camden Robt, T. Gunnells, private, Gresoville

Whitfield A. Haves, 20 years, private, weaver, Pelzer Wm. S. Huppicutt. 22 years, private, carpenter, Murphy, N. C. Memmus W. Hudgens, 20 years, private, farmer, Laurens John P. Hawkins, private, Greenville Lewis A. Henderson, private Gaffney Leland A. Hopkins, private, Greenville John H. Jones, private, Greenville Pleasant A. Jenkins. 25 years, private, carpenter, Greenville. Thomas B. Kennemore. 18 years, private, student, Greenville Manley E. Kennemore, 19 years, private, farmer, Greenville John F. Kennedy, 18 years, private, millman, Pelme William S. Land, 29 years, private, carpenter, Greenville Julian E. I.ane, 23 years, private, clerk, Greenville John S. Lupo. 19 years, private, farmer, Greenville Abe C. Lynn, 23 years, private, farmer, Greenville James Luoney, private, Greenville John R. Lenderman, private, Reedy River George D. McAlister, 21 years, private, farmer, Spartanburg John L. McClellon, 21 years, private, farmer, Williamston William H. McGaha. 26 years, private, weaver, Greenville Austin L. Mahaffy. 23 years, private, clerk, Williamston Ceorge W. Manley, 38 years, private, uphalster, Greenville Moore Murphy, private, farmer, Greenville Julius H. Mancke, private, Columbia Woodfin L. McLane, private, Greenville Albert C. McCreary, private, Feizer lames V. Nabers, private, St. Allane Geo. B. Patterson, 19 years, private, miller, Greenville John J. Pinson, 23 years, private, plumber, Greenville Isham W. Pinson, private, Greenville George Pierce, private, Greenville Robt, R. Richardson, 27 years, private, weaver, Greenville Sanford Scruggs, 20 years, private, expressman, Greenville Luther A. Seav. 30 years, private, farmer, Income Robt. C. Simpson, 19 years, private, millman, Peher Rowley H. Smith, 23 years, private, carpenter, Greenville John L. Stroud, 23 years, private, millman, Pelzes George W. Serratt, 21 years, private, millman, Greenville Anthony Stowe, private, millmen, Greenville Ben M. Stradley, private, Greenville George E. Turpin, 45 years, private, carpenter, Greenville Geo. M. Thackston, private, Sterling Frank Vaughan, private, Greenville Forest N. Wakefield, 19 years, private, weaver, Greenville Guy L. Watson, 21 years, private, clerk, Greenville John A. Wilson, 23 years, private, famer, Landrums Lewis W. Wilson, 20 years, private, carpenter, Greenville Robert C. Wilson, 23 years, private, weaver, Green Columbus M. Watson, private, Willis

Claude E. Chapinan, 21 years, private, farmer, Greenville

Henry L. Tripp, private, Landrums Herbert M. Gaines, 28 years, sergeant, mechanic, Caffney William A. Wallace, 23 years, rergeant, bookkeeper, Greenville Hayne Y. Smith, 38 years, curpural, kiln-man, Greenville William B. League, 28 years, private, carpenter, Greenville Henry Pollard, private, Greenville Samuel R. Preston, private, Greenville Herbert C. Despett. 22 years, private, painter, Anderson Thomas Paine, 28 years, private, decorator, Anderson Milledge L. Bonham, Ir., 18 years, private, student, Anderson Samuel Franklin, 31 years, private, machinist, Macon, Go. William W. Wells. 20 years. Cornoral, railroad assent. Greenville. Lon Ward, private, Greenville Rauban R. Hollingshead, 41 years, private, jeweler, Spartanburg John H. Beard, private, Greenville Meredith Cor. 27 years, private, clerk, Greenville Avery H. Hightower, private, Greenville William Mathews, private, Greenville Thomas J. Steins, private, Greenville Laurence L. Turner, 38 years, private, farmer, Greenville Sanders W. Patterson, 21 years, private, millman, Pelzer Daniel M. Shipman, 30 years, private, framer, Greenville Lee M. Walker, 22 years, private, weaver, Augusta, Ga. William L. Walker, 24 years, private, blacksmith, Greenville

#### NAMES OF THE MEN IN COMPANY F, FIRST REGIMENT SOUTH CAROLINA VOLUNTEER INFANTRY SPANISH-AMERICAN WAR

Organized in Greenville, S. C.

Formerly known as The Generalile Cuards. Augustus D. Hoke, 28 years, Captain, laundry, Greenville James W. Gray, Jr., 23 years, 1st Lt., planter, Creenville William D. Whitmire, 84 years, 2nd, Lt., deputy sheriff, Greenville Harry A. Dargan, 28 years, 1st. Sgt., salesman, Greenville Charles D. Whitman, 22 years, Qm. Sgt., selesman, Spartanburg Charles A. Cooper, 28 years, Sergeant, printer, Greenville Iames A. McDavid, 20 years, Sergeant, salesman, Groenville George W. Burbanks, 22 years, Sergeant, clerk, Greenville John M. Steele, 23 years, Sergeant, wheelright, Greenville Clifford L. Babb, 20 years, Corporal, cotton buyer, Laurens Arthur D. Milster, 28 years, Corporal, tinner, Spartanburg Samuel M. Nabers, Jr., 80 years, Cornoral, bookkeeper, Spartaphurg Charles P. Robinson, 37 years, Corporal, farmer, Greers Oscar B. Willis, 22 years, Corporal, clerk, Spartaphurg John H. Harris, 30 years, Corporal, mill hand, Spertanburg William L. Omesby, 49 years, Corporal, plumber, Laurens Thomas E. Peterson, 27 years, Corporal, firemen, Laurens William W. Tribble, 21 years, Corporal, machinist, Laurens

Solomon C. Hargyuve, 24 years, Corporal, machinist, Laurens Harrison H. Ferguson, 21 years, Corporal, clark, Spartanburg George W. Childrens, 27 years, Cornoral machinist Greens Lute C. Bradley, 28 years, private, painter, Simpsonville Archie Watson, 22 years, private, Telegraph Operater, Columbia Mage J. Callaham, 20 years private salesman, Spartaphurg Thomas M. Baswell, 38 years, private, blacksmith, Greens Frank Hooper, 22 years, private, wagoner, Columbia Leonard Becker, private, Spartanburg Thomas B. Bennett, 38 years, private, painter, Laurene Miles B. Bomer, 21 years, private, farmer, O'Neal Volney B. Bogan, private, Gaffney William A. Brown, private, Spartanburg Hiram T. Berkett, 25 years, private, weaver, Pelme Linder Carrier, private, Spartanburg Joseph Chancy, 19 years, private, photographer, Laurens James W. Clark, 19 years, private, millhand, Spartanburg James Clutts, private, Spartanburg John A. Cureton, 21 years, private, baker, Creenville Corvisie T. Cunningham, private, Spartanburg William Davis, private, Hollyville, N. C. Fred L. Dillard, 20 years, private, clerk, Spartanburg Earle Dodd, 21 years, private, weaver, Spartauburg Sidney W. Edwards, 20 years, private, millhand, Laurens james C. Ellenburg, 21 years, private, millhand, Pelver Robert J. Farmer, 27 years, private, farmer, Arlington Andrew Flood, private, Spartanburg James C. Caffney, 21 years, private, painter, Spartanhung Benjamin F. Gibbs, private, Spartanhurg John M. Coswell, 28 years, private, mill hand, Augusta, Ca. Allan T. Green, private, Spartanburg Milies T. Harris, 23 years, private, farmer, Clinton Andy P. Hill, 25 years, private, farmer, Greenville William M. Hill, 35 years, private, mechanic, Spartanburg Rome Holland, private, Pacolet Howell Hollingsworth, 19 years, private, printer, Spartasburg Jesse A. Hudson, 28 years, private, farmer, Gresswille James P. Huskey, private, Caffney Junes J. Hendersoo 23 years, private, mill hand, Calfney Jesse R. Jolly, 36 years, private, carpenter, Spartanburg William L. Jones, \$4 years, private, weaver, Pfedmont Samuel F. Lanford, 22 years, private, mill hand, Lanford Robert G. Lemons, private, Spartanburg Clareoce C. McGowan, 19 years, private, clark, Spartanburg John W. Martin, private, Spartanburg David L. Melvin, 31 years, private, mili hand, Greass Edward R. Millan, 20 years, private, insurance, Spartanburg Arthur W. Miller, private, Spartanburg Thomas Millwood, private, Spartanburg

Engene W. Moon, 28 years, private, farmer, Greers

James E. Moon. 28 years, orivets, carpenter, Greens William Morgan, private, Spartanburg Charlie B. Mott, 20 years, private, machinist, Laurens Arch C. Owning, 22 years, private, farmer, Rapley John S. O'Neal, private, Spartanburg Lem L. Ponlin 22 years, private, carpenter, Spartanburg Hugh L. Peden, private, Spartanburg George G. Robertson, 28 years, private, farmer, O'Neal Insenb H. Robinson, 19 years, private, barber, Greenville Nigh P. Robinson, 20 years, private, clerk, Spartanburg, William H. Rowland, private, Spartenburg Ebbie F. Rowley, 18 years, private, student, Greenville Edgar H. Rush, 39 years, private, parpenter, Spartsoburg Thed G. Saston, 30 years, private, merchant, Walterboro William Steele, 19 years, private salesman, Greenville, John Shioman, private, Spartanburg Arthur R. Shockley, private, Spartanburg Berry C. Sloan, 19 years, private, farmer, Spartaphurg Claud P. Smith, 21 years, private, farmer, Woodruff William Sinor, private, Spartanburg William T. Thomes, private, Spartanburg Bishop P. Thomason, 43 years, private cotton buyer, Greenville lames Turner, 19 years, private, mill hand, Sportenburg McDaniel Vaughan, 43 years, private, wood turner, Greenville Moultrie E. Voiselle, private, Union Henry H. Ward, 23 years, private, carpenter, Augusta, Ga. Lon, R. Ward, private, Greenville Zebulon West, private, Spartanburg

Leonard A. Whitmire, 18 years, private, student, Greenville Augustas D. Kuykendall, 26 years, private, brickmason, Flat Rock Wake Shaver, 19 years, private, decorator, Spertanburg James Waters, 19 years, private, farmer, Enorge Edward Neighbors, 10 years, private, express, Moores Harley L. Rogers, 20 years, private, millhand, Enorge Charles P. Lanford, 18 years, private, farmer, Woodruff Robert Carlson, 18 years, private, carpenter, Spartanburg Thomas Tingley, 18 years, private, salesman, Spertanburg Bruce Miller, 23 years, rejuste, machinist, Charlotte, N. C. William C. Reid, private, Spartenhurg John L. Richards, private, Galfney Anselm S. Miller, private, Greenville Keith D. Bristow, private, Spertanburg Gary R. Vaughn, 24 years, private, farmer, Greenville John M. Clenn, 23 years, private, weaver, Piedmont

### NAMES OF MEN IN COMPANY B. SECOND RECEMENT SOUTH CAROLINA VOLUNTEER INFANTRY SPANISH-AMERICAN WAR Organizad in Greezville, S. C.

Called the Hammon Rifler William C. Strrine, 27 years, Captain, lawer, Greenville Richard L. Dargan, 23 years, 1st. Lt., clerk, Greenville Theodore C. Stone, 23 years, 2nd, Lt. merchant, Greenville Augustus M. Deal, 21 years, 1st. Sergesut, student, Blacksburg Christie I. B. DeCamra. 19 years. Om. Sct., student Granville loseph E. Leach. 20 years, sergrount, clerk, Greenville William P. Ligon, 20 years, sergeant, clerk, Greenville Clande M. Crawford, 23 years, sergeant, laborer, Richardsonville Robert E. Houston, 18 years, sergeant, student Gramville Henry Thompson, 22 years, corporal, laborer, Lowell, Mass. Randalph W. Shannon, 20 years, corporal, farmer, Camden John D. Tatn. 23 years corporal carpenter. Gallney Heary G. Carroll, corporal, Bennettsville Robert H. Pollard, 24 years, corporal, farmer, Laurenburg Henry P. McLendon, corporal, Camden Warren P. Crenshaw, private, Greenwood Charles P. McGregor, private, Pacolet Joseph N. Caussee, 24 years, private, farmer, Conway Robert M. Wray, 27 years, private, farmer, Blacksburg Adam H. Jenkins, Jr., 32 years, private, Greenville William H. Capell. 18 years, private, laborer, Gresoville Nathaniel C. Carson, 18 years, private, lineman, Greenville William M. Carter, 18 years, private, student, Columbia Beverly P. Cobb, 23 years, private, farmer, Blacksburg James Cobb, private, farmer, Blacksburg George W. Dyer, private, Walhalla Richard Evett, private, Greenville James O. Clenn, 24 years, private, farmer, Newbury Walter W. Goudelock, 23 years, private, laborar, Pacolet George Hathcock, private, Bennettsville John P. Hill. 21 years, private, weaver, Asheville Charles W. Hudson, 20 years, private, tinner, Atlanta, Ca. John M. Jeter, private, Santee Jumph A. Johnson, 19 years, private, farmer, Charleston Thomas O. Lee, private, Camden Robert Ligon, private, Greenville Fred T. Logan, private, Atlante, Ca. Robert H. Lupe, 20 years, private, student, Creenville Peter J. Mack, private, Columbia Ernest L. McCall, private, Bennettsville George B. McCombs, private, Columbia Stammore Y. Morris, 24 years, private, framer, Prosperity

J. T. Nalley, private, Easley

James S. Norris, private, Briggs Edward, B. Parker, 23 years, private, laborer, Columbia William Platt, private, Columbia

Frunk Y. Sammons, private, Greenville

Samnel C, Sessions, 16 years, private, clerk, Columbia William R. Sprouse, private, Blacksburg Iames P, Strong, 23 years, private, laborer, Gaffney

James P. Strong, 23 years, private, laborer, Gaffney George D. Suttles, 21 years, private, laborer, Greenville Charles H. Terry, 20 years, private, farmer, Greenville

John H. Tork, private, Greenville Thomas M. Wakefield, private, Andrews, N. C.

Albert P. Ward, private, Georgetown Milton A. Ward, 18 years, private, weaver, Greenville

John W. Ware, 20 years, private, farmer, Abbeville Harley West, 18 years, private, clerk, Greenville Jamer L. Whitnen, 21 years, private, farmer, Abbeville

Wylie T. Wood, 21 years, private, weaver, Gaffney Johnsthan Byers, 19 years, private, farmer, Blacksburg Brook Vasteding, whate, Bennetteedle.

Brooks Easterling, private, Bennetsville Alter T. Holley, 18 years, private, laborer, Augusta, Ga. Lening P. Lyde, 21 years, private, farmer, Orangeburg Beng, H. Littlejolan, 22 years, private, weaver, Danville, Va. Samuel E. Mabery, 39 years, sergeard, musician, Jonesville

Robert M. Mecks, 19 years, sergeant, lineman, Greenville William J. Varner, 20 years, corporal, farmer, Spartanburg Joseph Alford, private, Ashboro, N. C.

Herman P. Aull, 20 years, corporal, farmer, Newberry Joseph N. Autibus, 19 years, private, plumber, Charleston, McPherson B. Brooks, 19 years, corporal, clerk, Ninety-six

Francis M. Couper, private, Easley Arthur Cockerel, 23 years, private, laborer, Richardsonville Osum M. Curetton, 23 years, private, student, Greenville Walsom J. David, 23 years, private, machinist, Columbia

Thomas M. Dantzler, 18 years, private, farmer, St. Mathews Thomes T. Davis, private, Pelser John Davis, 24 years, private, lineman, Augusta, Ga.

John D. Dunaway, 42 years, private, laborer, Spartanburg Afken Duncan, private, Piedmont

Jane Estridge, 20 years, private, laborar, Columbia Olio Fratieri, 39 years, private, laborarihi, 5: Mathewa William W. Fuller, 25 years, mergant, bracher, Longmires William F. Gooden, 25 years, private, clerk, Orangbung Carlon B. Golffat, 57 years, private, clerk, Orangbung Carlon B. Golffat, 57 years, private, yeaver, Piccular B. Golffat, 57 years, private, yeaver, Piccular S. Golffat, 50 years, private, factors, 24 years, private, factors, Coperville William Honey, 25 years, private, factors, Coperville

Archie P. Howie, 18 years, private, clerk, Columbia
Fred E. Johnson, private, Bennetty-ille
Paul H. Jonnet, 18 years, private, Railroad Employee, Columbia

Paul H. Joyser, 18 years, private, Ratiroad Employee, Columbia

Charles M. Jessen, 18 years, private, bookkeeper, Charleston Ethel H. James, private, Greenville

Theodore G. May, 18 years, private, blacksmith, Charleston Wade P. Mills, private, Columbia

William C. McAbee, 19 years, private, laborer, Spartanburg William M. Moody, private, Pelass

Lawrence Powell, private, Augusta, Ga.

Gary F. Rose, 20 years, private, laborer, Columbia John F. Ritter, private, Walhalla

Jeff Smith, private, Greenville

Ceurge A. Sloace, 22 years, private, printer, Columbia Eugene E. Stone, 19 years, corporal, laborer, Gressville

Miliam Thomas, private, Pacolet Leonard H. Whitehead, 23 years, private, laborer, Gressville

James A. Walker, 21 years, private, agest, Orangeburg Arthur B. Zeigler, 21 years, corporal, carpenter, Blackville

John W. Charteen, 19 years, private, farmer, Anderson Ossie Childers, 23 years, private, laborer, Greenville George Ford, 23 years, private, mason

John Green, private, Landrum

John Green, private, Landmum Thomas G. Hawkins, 21 years, private, laborer, Anderson John Hosey, private, Greenville

Ben A. Patterson, 20 years, private, farmer, Cherokee Falls William H. Price, 21 years, private, flagman, Garlandville, Ga.

Texas L. Scott, private, Kingstree Thomas M. Scott, private, Pelmer

James R. Taylor, 35 years, private, weaver, Union

James R. Taylor, 36 years, private, weever, Union Oscar W. Williamson, 28 years, private, clerk, Greenville

# GREENVILLE: A BASE OF BOTANICAL ACTIVITY

## C. LELAND RODGERS

The natural beauty of Creenvelle County, South Carolina, and its surroundings is a fitting place to attenuiate an interest in botany. Its rolling topography spares us the monotony of extensive stretches of the sameness. Fields, ravines, alopes of different exponures, high ground, ow ground, swamps, lakes, bedrock, mountains, and piedmont are all close at hand. Each, with its own ecological characteristics, supports a distinctive flora, individualistic in its living composition as well as its attraction to botanists.

Weather also favour this region with a long growing season and an abundance of rain. The nearby bline Ridge Mountains we the highest rainfall in the eastern part of the United States. Many nature lowers have long appreciated the land sligplay of flowering shrubs and showy hards that thrive in such an environment. From all ower the country people come to participate in anumal examsions in the Blue Ridge and other parts of the Southern Appalachians.

The deciduous forests of the Southern Appalachians contain more species than deciduous forests bordering them. This is taken at ovidence that plants survived here during the recent ice age after which they dispersed into contiguous areas. Such a center is not only interesting because of its rich floratistic content but also because it is a reservoir of phytogeographic and evolutionary close.

Within a half-day drive of Greenville are such diverse and intensing places as the beach and dune areas, coastal plain, sand halfs, picomond, and mountains. Within these areas are many islands of beauty, both natural and formal, set aside for public pleasure.

Some of the formal gardens of the Low Country have been popular since colonial days. The beauty of their flowering shrubs is accented by the Spanish moss that drapes the stately oaks and somber corresses.

The maritime forest, a thicket of live oaks and associated plants forming a fringe along the coast, has a wind-sweet appearance due to the oceanic winds and sall spay. The future of this picturesque forest is threatened as the strand is commercialized. A small but characteristic sample of it is preserved in the Myrde Beach State Park.

The mountains in particular have many protected areas more less in their natural state. The Great Smootly Mountain National Park, established in 1940, attracts more visitors than any other aational park. At the present time naturalists are resisting efforts to build reads into some of its wildeness areas. Mt. Mitchell, the highest mountain east of the Rockies, is congested with visitor at certain times of the year, particularly in the fall when the leaves are turning. Natural forests, especially the Fugah Forest, have both boatty and accessibility to large centers of population. The Blue Ridge Parkway traverses other areas of unusual splendor.

Nearby, the large Keowee-Little rivers project, covering more than 100,000 acres, will be developed by the Duke Power Company into a power, lumbering, and recreational complex This acreage has been and continues to be extensively exploited. Recently I observed lumbering operations in a visgin forest on the Thompson River. The noisy buzz of a chain saw followed by the crashing sound of falling giants of oaks and poplars is in sharp contrast to the beauty and screnity of the day before. What was once closed in greenery is open and scarred. Bulldozers have defaced the surface, falling trees have crushed and broken the undergrowth, and discarded lans and tops have cluttered the ground. On the positive side, the power company is cooperating with wildlife managers in a conservation program. Perhaps this great natural asset, which was previously enjoyed only by the most rugged adventurers, will be accessible to the general nublic.

The day will surely come when other natural areas will be preserved. Now is the time to set aside acreage of park-like pines on the Coastal Plain, scrubby oaks on the glistening sand of the Fall Line, and runns and bays in the Carolina Bays.

The Carolina Bays in the Low Country are intriguing natural gardens having an enigmatic origin. Viewed from the highways they look rewampy and unineviting; from the sir they have large egg-shaped outlines oriented in a north west—south east direction, the broadest end neurest the sea. Although some have said that the bays originated from a meteoritic shower, others are attempting to find a more satisfactory explanation.

#### THE CHANGING LANDSCAPE

Rapid industrialization and population growth are forever changing the fince of Greenville County. Some of the clear sparking streams enjoyed by the previous generation are now too polluted to support fish. Some of the better-known wild nichas have been smothered by introduced weeds or obliterated by new roads and developments.

Although numerous plants have been introduced locally, four in particular have widespread distributions and often-times very damaging consequences. The Japanese boneysuckle is widely distributed at elevations below 2000 feet. Ravines and bottomland once filled with wild flowers are often thickets of boneysuckle. Kudzu was extensively planted when the county was filled with cotton farms. Being in hilly country, some farms were so badly eroded that kudzu was planted in gullies and on abandoned fields to stabilize the soil. Now the plant is a real nuisance, even covering the tops of trees. Johnson grass, a coarse grass by nature, is difficult to eradicate from farm land. The most conspicuous recent introduction is camphor weed (Heterotheca subaxillaris [Lam.] Britt. & Rusby), introduced around Spartanburg in the early 1940's and around Colbert, Georgia, in 1945, Since its introduction, camphor weed bas spread throughout South Carolina. This is the yellow-flowered weed so conspicuous in fields during the late summer and fall

## LOCAL PLACES OF INTEREST

Despite the loss of many beauty spots to the changes of time, foremvillans are still belense with accessible, interesting locations. Especially along the Blue Ridge encarpment, outcrops of bedrock, deep mysics, spathing streams, and hardwood forests provide opportunities to ecity plants in relatively undisturbed situations. Among the more interesting locations are the Table Rock-Pinnacle Mountain area, Casarra Head, the Dirmal and Raven Citif Falls, Oil Camp Creek Road, Jones Cap Road, Gap Creek Road, Glassy Mountain, and around the oil Poinsett Bridge.

## PLANTS HAVING LOCAL IMPORTATY

Certain plants are of special interest because of places or people that identify them with upper South Carolina. Some of these are well known to local historians and gardeners.

Shortis golacifolis T. & C. is endemie to the Southen Appalechians and concentrated in South Carolina along the inbuturies of the Koowee River. It has a very restricted distribution in Gersient and North Carolina. André Michaux discoverent the plant on December 8, 1788, apparently near the junction of the Horsepistors and Tozaway Rivers. Today Shortis is especially abundant in Horsepasture Gorge. Maps of the section of Pickers and Occo-Counties under development by Duke Fower Company indicate that Shortis will not be seriously disturbed.

Clethre ocuminate Mirku, white alder, was probably discovered by André Michaux on June 15, 1787, mare the Tugalo (now Tugaloo) River. This is a shrub of the Family Clethraceer found along stream banks in the mountains from Georgia to West Vigginia. It may be seen in the mountains of Generalife County.

Lonicera flava Sims was first discovered by Covernor John Drayton about 1798 on the south side of Paris Mountain. He called it Lonicera lutea caroliniensia, Yellow Carolinian Woodbine or Honeysuckle. He said, "I have so called this flowering plant; ft not being noticed in any botanical book, respecting this state. It is the climbing species, but rather shrubby. Bearing bright yellow blossoms, extremely elegant and fragrant: in form and appearance much like the English honeysuckle. It grows in a warm southern exposure, on a Rocky precipice of Paris's Mountain in the Greenville district." This plant is still found on the south side of the mountain as well as in a number of other locations in upper Greenville County. It is by no means confined to this locality, being found as far west as Oklahoma, Arkansas, and Missouri. From a Paris Mountain site John Fraser later collected a specimen which was used by Sims when be described it and gave it the name Lonicera flava, the name presently in use. Both Albert Sanders and C. Leland Rodsters refer to this plant in articles published in Botanical Cardening in Greenville, 1962.

Pointsettia is a common name given to some species of euphorbias in bonor of Joel Robert Pointsett, the same man who built the stone bridge now known as the old Poinsett Bridge. In addition, his name is given to other local structures or organizations. He is identified with the poinsettiae because he introduced them from Mexico. Wild poinsettiae of any type are zure or nonexistant in this county. The only ones I have seen are persisting around an old homeste in the Mountain View Community.

A proteste codes (Iuniperus communis L. var. depresses Punh) is reported on Punis Mountain in Colum and Tottens' Former of the Southeastern States. This plant reaches its southern limit in South Carolia, where Paris Mountain is perhaps its only location. Color and Totten do refer to a site in Albert County, but this piece is not mentioned in the more recent Coulet to the Vestalar Flow of the Carolinas. The South Carolina location (or locations) is a completable distance from the merret ones known in North Carolina. Thus far, I have not succeeded in relocating the clump reported on Paris Mountain.

## EARLY BOTANICAL EXPLORERS

Among the early botanical explorers who visited the Up Country of the Carolinas were William Bartram, Andre Michaux, and Asa Gray. At the time of their explorations, the country was wild and difficult to penetrate.

William Bartram, the well-known Quaker naturalist, wentured into the Cheroloe Country of the northwart corner of South Carolina in 1775. On May 10 he crossed the Savarnah, River and returned South Carolina headed for the Cheroloee trowns of Sentences (Sencea), about a mile below the present site of Cleroson University, and Korowe (Kerowe), about a stateon miles to the north. Both willages were on the Korowe River.—Sentica on the east bank and Korowe on the west bank. The Village of Korowe was just across the river from Fort Prince George, Bartram celled the Sencea Biber and its tributaries; but Korowe River.

Bartram's impressions of places in Pickens and Oconec Counties show his appreciation of country so similar to our Greenville County, Of the town of Keowe, ha said:

Keowe is a most charming situation, and the adjacent heights are naturally so formed and disposed, as with little expense of military architecture to be rendered almost impregnable; in a fertile vale, at this season enamelled with incaraste fragmat strawbernes and blooming plants, through which the beautiful river meanders, sometimes genity flowing, but more frequently agitated, gliding swithly between the furtiful strawberry basis, and the strawberry basis, and the strawberry basis, such as a various distances by high fulle and movetains, and the strawberry basis of the strawberry leaves, as a set to every basis of the strawberry leaves, as as to overlook and shadow it, whilst others more lofty, superb, misty and blos, majestically mount far above.

Time and again he refers to the struwberry and its fruits, which must have impressed him greatly.

Magnolis fraseri Walt., the Umbrella Tree, was discovered in 1775 by William Bartram. He described the tree from the location of Falling Croek, now Martin Croek, which is near Clayton, Georgia. In recounting the experience he said:

This exalted peak I named mount Magnolia, from a new and beautiful species of that cleibrated family of flowering trees, which here, at the cascades of Falling Crosk, grows in a high degree of perfection, for although I had noticed this curious tree several times before, particularly on the high ndiges between Sinica and Keover, and on the high ndiges between Sinica and Keover, and on the high ndiges between Sinica and Keover, and on the high notice of the several sinical section of the several several section.

I observed it in flower, but here it flourishes and commands our attention.

Bartram gave it the descriptive name of Magnolis coniculate but delayed so long in publishing his description that Walter's mane won priority. Michawa also noticed the same magnolis twelve years later in the same general locality (Kiwi) and called it Magnolis hastotis. This magnificent magnolis of the Southern Appalachians has large deciduous, amirculate leaves.

His description of Occome (Oconee) environs could just as well be Greenville County. He writes:

Now at once the mount divides, and direlent to view the ample Occorne vale, encired by a versath of uniform halls; their swelling bases clad in cheefful verdure, over which issuing from between the mountains, plays along a glittering river, metadering through the mead-own, which orcening at the upper end of the vale, I began to ascend the Occorne mountain grow States above, to ascend the Occorne mountain grow States above, to ascend the Occorne mountain grow States above, the total control of the state of the states of the occor o

bills, extremely well timbered with the following trees: Quercus intories, Querc. elbo, Querc. vabrus, Frazinsa exceletor, Juglans hickory, various species, Ulimus, Tilis, Acer seccherium, Morus, Juglans nigra, Juglans oliba, Annona glabra, Robinia pseudocacaia, Magnolis acuminati, Ascoulas spicetica with many more, particularly a proper of Idunia new to me, bough perhaps in his Nat. Hist. Caro. This beautiful flowering tree grows twenty, and thirty feet high, with a cooked leaning trunk, the branches preed greatly, and wreath about, some almost touching the ground; however there appears a singular pleasing widehea and freedom in its manner of growth, pleasing widehea and freedom in its manner of growth, with heavy compound panels of one or plat coloured flowers, michai were are presented and with heavy compound panels of one or plat coloured flowers, michai were well as a present the coloured flowers, michai were a present and the present flowers, michair a wreath of beautiful pinanted leaves.

My next flight was up a very high peak, to the top of the Occome mountain, where I rested; and turning about found that I was now in a very clevated situation, from whece I enjoyed a view inexpressibly magnificent and comprehensive. The mountainous wilderness through which I had lately twavered down to the region of Auguits, appearing regularly undulated as the great comtion, the undulation agendually depressing, yet when the peak the undulation agendually depressing, yet of tile on a roof: the nearest ground to me of a perfect full green, next mere glucours, and heatly almost as blue as the ether with which the most distant curve of the horton seems to be blended.

André Micheux was a botanical collector sent by the French Covernment to the New World to seak economically useful plants. He came to Charleston in 1287 and made it his base of operations for more than two years. From Charleston he made excursions island and to the Bahamas and other islands. It was no one of the inland trips to the Comeo-Frickens territory that he discovered Shorits galacfolic T. & G. (1788) and Clethra accuminate Micha. (1787).

At Charleston, Michaux maintained a botanical nursery, the site of which is near the Ten Mile Station on the Southern Rail-way, for the propagation of plants Here he keep promising American plants for shipment to France and introduced other plants that southry, Among the plants he brought to this garden were ginkgo (Cinkgo bioba L.), Japansse varnish-tree (Firménicouphantantifolis (L.). Maxili, and minmos (Albisis julibrication for the plants of the plants of

ram). All three plants are still around, but minous is especially abundant. Michau: is also credited with informing the Allegheury settlers about the use of ginneng by the Chinese people and showing them how to prepare the American species for the Chinese market.

Michaux's son Francois André, a noted hotanist himself, was a companion to his father on some of his trips and assisted him in his numery. He returned to America in 1801 to dispose of the nursery and its plants.

The noted botanist Ass Grey, father of Grey's Manuel of Botany and the one who together with Torrey named and described Shoring galacticities T & G., made an exploration into the Southern Appalachians in 1841. At that time the country he vicited was a virtual wilderrest penetrated only by peths and trails. Travel was primarily by foot or beneback. Grey get as far south as Grandfather Mountain in Ashe Country, North Carolina, and Rean Mountain on the Tennessee-North Carolina bearing.

## GREENVILLE BOTANISTS

Besides the pioneers who made collecting trips into the higcountry of the Carolinas, several Gressrollians have made not worthy contributious to botanical science. Included is a short biography of those who are closely tied to Greenville County either because they were born have or because they make their homes bere now. They are Wede T. Batron, Hidden T. Cox, Charles P. Daniel, Paul L. Fisher, William C. Grimm, Rex. E. Kerstetter, Harriet A. Lipscomb, Nora E. Mullens, E. Gibbs Patton, Donald D. Ritchie, C. Lellard Rodgers, and James B. Shuler, jr.

From 1926 until his death in 1944, Greenville could daim Dr. Summer A. Ives, a Furman professor, as one of its outstanding botunists. He is still remembered affectionately by many of the older people and by his students. He esempetically promoted garden-club projects and established the now-abundance abroretum located in the old Furman campus. He started a collection of plants that is the nucleus of the present herbarium at Furman University. Two of his publications, "The Vascular Flants of Greenville County, South Carolina" (1944) and "Vascular Flants of Horry County, South Carolina" (1952) are of local interest. Dr. Ives influenced a number of his students to enter the botanical profession. Dr. Ritchile writes that he was "brought to botany by

S. A. Ives at Furman." Wade Batson and C. Leland Rodgers also give credit to this great teacher for stimulating their interest in plants.

## BOTANISIS NOW IN RESIDENCE

Resident botanists in Greenville County are Paul Fisher, William Grimm, Rex Kerstetter, Nora Mullens, Leland Rodgers, and James Shuler. From this group have come scholarly publications of local and national interest.

Paul Fither is a plant physiologist and economic botanist. He has had wide experience in government service and has to hid credit a number of publications. His interest in plant diseases, food processing, seed garmination, and conservation attracted the attention of a local radio station where he was appointed director of its farm program. In this especity he presented "Farm Service Center." His snapic publications are on fusarium with of tomators, seed garmination, and nutritional studies. Dr. Fisher succeeded Dr. Ives at Farman University. Within the last year Dr. Fisher has taken the lead in having a natural area preserved on the new Furman campus. This preserve will be invaluable as a teaching laboratory. He has also obtained the gift of a large greenhouse for the Biology Department at Furman.

William Grimm is well-known for his publications on trees and shubs. His most recent book, Recognizing Natice Shrubs (Stackpole, 1968), received very favorable reviews. Since there are only a few books on shrubs, this particular work fills a real need and, because of its quality, should be well received. Since William Grimm is a skilled flustrator, his books are especially attractive. Arr. Grimm has been painting wild flowers for a number of year. This fine collection of paintings should eventually be published in book form. Other books by Crimm are The Book of Trees (Stackpole, 1965), The Book of Shrubs (Stackpole, 1967), The Study of Flowers Made Simple (Doubleday, 1962), and Familiar Trees of America (Harper & Row, in press). Mr. Grimm has been a teacher, researcher, and pair haturalist:

Rex Kerstetter is a newcomer to the local botanical community. He is a plant physiologist at Furman University. His interests are plant tissue culture and auxin physiology.

Miss Nora E. Mullens, a Furman professor, has interests in several areas of biology. In recent years she has made important contributions to the Floru of the Corolinas. Miss Mullans and Leland Rodgers have reported 191 new county records this year and found saveral plants that are rare in the state. Together they are exchanging plants with the University of North Carolina. Upon completion of the project the Furman Herbarium will have a specimen of essentially all of the seed plants that grow the Carolinas. As curator of the Furman Herbarium, Miss Mullans is actively accumulating and diling specimens.

Leland Rodgers has published several papers of a floristic or ecological nature from studies made locally. In 1982 his revision of the Ives' "Flora of Greenville County" (originally, "The Vascular Plants of Greenville County, South Carolina") was published in Botanical Gardening in Greenville (1962), the second volume of two historical booklets of happenings in Greenville County. An earlier work, "Vascular Plants of Table Rock Mountain, South Carolina," was published in Cartanea, journal of the Southern Appelachian Botanical Club (1955), Two publications of recent interest were "Survey of Vascular Plants in Bearcamp Creek Watershed" (with Roy E. Shake) and "The Vegetation of Horsepasture Gorge" (1985). The locations upon which the latter papers were based are on the Blue Ridge escarpment and are presently under development by Duke Power Company. On these locations, Shortia is most abundant. As a college professor, Leland Rodgers has also published teaching materials. His textbook in biology was published this year and another book of an educational nature is in press.

James Shuker is especially interested in nature study and devotes full time to writing and learning. He has a wide interest in both animal and plant life. He has made a study of local orchite and has discovered locations of several plants rare in the county, Joy, as he is affectionately known, is shilled in anarre photography. He produces film strips and other flustrative naterials for educational use. Some of his photographs are included in Well Fluorers in Color (Harper & Row, 1985), Wild Fluorers of the United States, Toutheostern States (McCrow-Hill, 1987), wild Fluorers of the United States, Southeostern States (McCrow-Hill, 1987), wild Fluorers of the United States, Southeostern States (McCrow-Hill, 1987), wild Fluorers of the United States, Southeostern States (McCrow-Hill, 1987), wild Fluorers and the World Around Hampton (Bobbs Merril, 1980). His South Carolina Birds of the Foothills (1989) is written for local enthusiats. During the last few summers, Jay has been a naturalist in Grand Teton National Park. Before that, he was a summer naturalist on the Blue Ridge Parlways.

## CREENVILLE BOTANDIN LIVING ELSEWHERE

Grenville-born botanists in residence elsewhere are Wade Batson, Hiden Cox, Charles Daniel, Harriet Lipscomb, and Gibbs Patton. All have relatives here and return frequently for visits.

Wado Baton, Profissor of Biology at the University of South Carolina, has a long record of interest in plants. He is an expert on the Juncaceae (rush family). At the latast meeting of the South Carolina Academy of Sefence be described a new species of Juncace discovered by him in South Carolina. Dr. Batson's book, Wide Flowers of South Carolina (LIV), of S. C. Presa, 1964), Couliais beautiful color photographs of many native plants. Dr. Batson's began studying plants around his bome in upper Greuchel County and expanded his field of interest in southern plants, seemedable those in South Carolina.

Hiden Cox is now Coordinator of Research and Professor of Biology at California State College in Long Beach. He is a former Executive Director of The American Institute of Biological Science. Dr. Cox bas been bonored by being selected as a fellow in AAAS and received a distinguished citation by NASA. His contributions to journals have been many, sepecially in the fields of science education and public science policy. In the field of science education and public science policy. In the field of botany his inferests are primarily is nanatomy and morphology.

Charles Daniel, now teaching at the Georgia State College in Milledgeville, was recordly at Furman University. He and his family were close to Furman for a number of years. At one time he made a collection of woody plants for High Point College. His current interests concern adulation effects on secondary secession. Charles Daniel has published a number of papers on this mulject including "Study of Succession. In Fields Irradiated with Fast Neutron and Gemma Radiation" (Radioecology, 1983) and "Direct and Indirect Effects of Short Term Ionising Radiation in Old Field Succession" (Exological Monographs, 1988).

Harriet Lipscomb is receiving her doctorate in botany from the University of North Carolina. She has worked on a species of Funzium associated with tulip popular cankers anatomical studies of Phryma leptostochys L.

Gibbs Patton, Professor of Biology at Wofford, is closely identified with this area. Dr. Patton's publications have been both

ecological and educational in nature. At the present time he is actively studying shrubs in their native labitats. Besides studying them in nature, he has accumulated a collection now transplanted on the Wofford campus. Dr. Patton has been especially active in trying to conserve natural gress.

Several other botanists have strong ties to Grozuville but were born elsewhere. Those coming to mind immediately are Gouge Christenberry, Louis Williams, and Donald Bitchie. Dex. Christenberry and Ritchie specialize in fungi and Dr. Williams in alfac.

Donald Ritchia, who calls himself a Grossvillan, is Professor of Biology at Barnard College of Columbia University, New York. His work is nationally recognized. In addition to his publications on fungi, he has coauthored College Botany. Dr. Ritchie has had the homor of being a Fullright Lecturez.

Because Dr. Ritchie's love for botany is revealed so clearly in a note he sent to me, I want to quote it in full:

Until I went on one of the Furman summer expeditions, I never considered working with plants in any serious way, but after I got into botanical pursuits as a fulltime occupation, I looked back and saw I had had an interest in plants for as long a time as I can remember. Some plants impressed me as objects of curiosity before I started school, so that I have a sharp recollection of such minutiae as the triangular kernels in the little red flowers of smartweeds, the soft pith in goldenrod stems, the slithery seeds in catalpa beans, the scratchy stems on the sensitive Shrankias, the velvety bud scales of blokories, the fuzz on kudzu vines, the flexibility of peach branches. I knew many plants by sight without having any names for them, for most of the books I could get my bands on were for the New England area, and i nored the southern species. At Furman, Dr. Ives opened up a new view to me, not only by the summer expeditions he took to seashore and mountain, but locally in the Greenville region, and I spent many a Saturday, either alone or with him, prowling along the banks of the Saluda or up Jones Gap or even by what Professor Cilpatrick called the mellifluous Reedy. He knew the flowering plants, mosses, algae, and the various odd small groups such as quillworts and liverworts, and encouraged his students to hunt things for themselves. Only after I left his tutelage did I become interested in fungi, a group of plants that has held my attention ever since. Now,

after seeing the floras of many other regions, I still think the plants of the southeastern United States are more various and alluring than those of any other temperate land.

#### TODAY AND THE FUTURE

In this generation the Southern Appalachians attract investigators from far and wide. A steady stream of biologistic come into Highlands, North Carolina, where they make the Highlands Biological Station their base of operations. Many of the investigators have concentrated their study on the Blue Ridge escarpment that faces the south between Hendersonville and Highlands.

With all the talk of population growth and industrialization expected within a short time, botanists and others are feeling an urgency to set axide large tracts of land for public use. The section of the excarpment between Highlands and Hendersonville just mentioned is not only botanically interesting but serves as the mediaters for two neservoirs in Generville County and for the large power and recreational complex under development by Duke Power in Concese and Fickens Counties. Each of us in our own way must be alert to further opportunities to protect valuable water, recreational, and biological resources.

## BIBLIOGRAPHY

Coker, W. C., 1911. "The Garden of André Michaux," The Journal of the Elisha Mitchell Scientific Society.

Coker, W. C. and H. R. Totten, 1945. Trees of the Southeastern States. University of North Carolina Press, Chapel Hill.

Davis, P. A., 1956. "Type Location of Shortia Galacifolia", Castanea 21: 107-114.
Dupree, A. Hunter. 1959. Ass Gray. The Belknap Press of Harvard University

Press, Cambridge.

Harper, Francis, 1958. The Travels of William Bartram. Yale University Press.

New Haven.

Keever, Catherine, 1955. "Heterotheca latifolia. A New and Aggressive Exotic Dumhant in Piedmont Old-field Succession," Ecology 36: 732-739.

Meriwether, Margaret Babcock, 1943. The Carolinian Florist of Governor John Drugton of South Carolina, 1786-1822. The South Carolinian Library, Columbia.

Michaux, André, 1889. "Journal of Michaux, André, 1776-1902," Proceedings of the American Philosophical Society, (Philadelphia) 28: 1-145.

Radford, A. E., H. E. Ahles, and C. Ritchie Bell, 1964. Guide to the Vasculor Flore of the Carolinas. The Book Exchange, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill. Rodgers, C. Luland, 1955. "Vascular Plants of Table Rock Mountain, South Caroline," Cartenee 90: 133-143.

Bodgers, C. Leband, 1969. "Ives Flore of Greenville County," Botanical Gardening in Greenville, The Furmen University Bulletin, N.S. 10: 27-80.

Rodgars, C. Leland, 1985. "The Vegetation of Homepostare Corps," The Journal of the Elicine Mitchell Scientific Society, 81: 103-112.

Sanders, Albert N., 1962. "Early Botanists in the Grexnville Area," Botenical Cardoning in Cresmodile, The Furman University Bulletin NS. 10: 7-12.

## EARLY GREENVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENTS

Charles Wilson

Fire and people do in this agree They both good servants, both ill masters be.

Fulke Greville

The origin of fire protection in the City of Greenville is lost in antiquity. Probably the first fire fighting was accomplished by bucket brigades, using water obtained from the village pump.

Several fire prevention measures were passed by the Town Conseel more than one hundred years ago, It is interesting to note that to 1865 an ordinance "against permitting soot to accumulate in chinnies [sig!" was passed. In January 1846 two gantiemen were halled before council for violating this law. Both were fined \$500 and costs.

The problem of fireworks is not new. It also plagued our ancestors. In 1853 a law was passed that probabilited any "person or persons to sell, enchange, batter, give or in any other manner whatever dispose of in the Town of Greenville any fixe crackers to say person whatever under a penalty of not more than \$50.00 for each offense." It was further provided that "any person who shall hereafter purchase or procure any fire crackers and use them in the Corporate Limits of the Town of Greenville, if a free white in the Corporate Limits of the Town of Greenville, if a free white person shall on conviction thereof be fined a sum not to exceed \$50.00, and if a slave or free Negro to be whipped not exceeding thirty nine laster.

Open fires were a hazard then, even as now. In 1860 a law was passed that prohibited "kindling fires in any of the lots, streets and squares of the town for hog killing purposes."

The first official reference to the fire department was made in 1851 in a presentment from a citizens committee to the Town Council, recommending "a change in the fire department." The nature of the desired change is not mentioned. Whatever the problem, it was apparently taken care of because the matter was not pressed.

During the years 1851 to 1857 all seems well with the fire department. At least there was no complaints registered with the Wardens and Intendant. At the meeting of the Town Council on June 7, 1857: "Petitions of fire engine company and C. O. Elford. Esq.," were laid upon the table, However, Warden McKay offered the following resolution: "Resolved that the Clerk of the Council be required to call a meeting of the Citizens of Greenville on Saturday, June 13th, for the purpose of discussing the matter of raising money for the purchase of a new fire engine and providing the town with water." The source of water is not mentioned and neither is the fire engine until May 3, 1859. At that time "a netition was received from the Greenville Fire Engine Company for an appropriation to purchase a new fire engine. On motion of Warden Williams it was ordered that the Intendant be appointed to meet with a committee on the part of the fire company and concur with them on some definite plan in reference to the purchase of a new fire engine for the use of the company." One month later. June 7, 1859, "a petition was received from the Greenville Fire Engine Company, On motion of Warden Williams it was resolved that the Town Council appropriate the sum of \$300.00 towards the purchase of a new engine - provided the fire company raise the remaining sum of \$116.00, and after the engine shall have arrived, and in the event the present hose cannot be used the Town Council will make a suitable appropriation for that purpose."

Unfortunately, the type of engine is not mentioned. However, in the horse-drawn steamers were not in general use prior to 1855, considering the price of the engine and the doubt expressed concerning the use of existing hose; in all probability the engine was hand drawn. It is also interesting to note that Alex McBee was Intendant at the time of this purchase. We might well consider this gentleman, together with Warden Williams to be the fathers of our department.

It is interesting to speculate what event or events caused renewed interest to the firs service. On March 18, 1859, a special meeting of Council was called "to adopt some measure whereby to ferret out the perpetratory of the recent attempt to burn the houses of our citizens." The following regolution was adopted. "whereas in view of the recent first which have occurred in the Town of Grenoville, and the more mount attempt on the carriage factory of Messrs. Gover, Cox, Markley & Company, together with the assault with firearms upon the watchman of the firm — Resolved that the Intendant of the Town Council of Greenville be suthorized to since a proclamation offering a reward of \$500.00 for the apprehension and proof sufficient to convict the person or persons who attempted to set on fire the carriage factory of Messxx. Gover, Cox, Markley & Company on the morning of March 11, instant." The calpits must have been brought to justice. In March 1890, Mr. T. C. Gover made application for the reward Mr. T. C. Kilburn also claimed the money. Coxideration of but postions was postposed and we do not know which claim was boonered.

The abundant water supply enjoyed by our city today, may cause doubts that such was not always the case. Prior to the installation of mains, the chief source of water for fire fighting purposes was Reedy River. Beyond the banks of the stream, large underground storage cisterns were utilized. When needed, suction hose was dropped into the cistern and water numbed to the fire. Cisterns were located at the intersection of Tackson (now S. Laurens St.) and W. Broad St., near the Mansion House on S. Main St. and at the Windsor Hotel at Main and Washington, There were, of course, many others but their exact location has been lost. In 1896 a serious difference of opinion arose between the City Council and the Parls Mountain Water Company. The City contended that the four-inch mains were not adequate for fire fighting purposes and refused to pay any more rent for fire hydrants until the matter was remedied. An amicable solution was reached when the water company agreed to increase size of maine

From these most humble beginnings, the fire department made steady progress in both quantity and quality.

Old records above that on January lat, 1894, the following companies were in service: Lee Fire Company, Neptune Fire Company, Alert Real Team, Ploneer Hook and Ludder, and the Alert Fire Company, By 1899 four more companies were listed Buncombe Street Company, Floor Hook and Ludder Company, Palmetto, and Greseville Hose, No. 1. Periodic reports to City Council state that the fire department was in sood condition.

In 1896 some dissension arose about the pay of the firemen and "Alderman Richardson moved to amend the oversight by paying each company \$20.00 provided they call for it."

Lack of communications proved to be a serious problem for many years. In the early days the strongent-lungd men in a neighborhood were designated as "fire-callers." The most renowned of these fire-callers was one Lattimers, howove as "Martin from The Creek." Upon discovery of a fire it was reported to one of these generalmene, he would shout the location of the fire. The news would be picked up and relayed into the fire companies, sentry fashion, by those newer to the source of high. The dicity bell would then be rung. In an old book of regulations the manner of ringing the bell is preserted:

Ordinary fire alarms will be given by ringing the city hall bell rapidly a number of times and then slowly stiking the number of the ward. On first alarms from wards Nos. one, two, three and foru, all companies stationed in those wards will at once respond, and the West End company will not come out untol notified. On first alarms from wards Nos. five and six, the West End company of the company in the Reat End will not come out untol notified. When the fire is extinguished, notice will be given by slowly ringing the End will not come out untol notified. When the fire is extinguished, notice will be given by slowly ringing the city hall bell seven stokes, upon which notice all companies on their way to the rewill return to their raspective houses. A general alarm will be a second alarm, given by ringing the bell rapidly for several minutes and thus slowly affixing the number will immediately go to the fire with all spend, as well as any company not already supmoned.

The ringing of the old bell continued until the mid 1939's. Telphunes were mentioned in connection with the fire department in 1896: "Alderman Richardson moved that the City Council pay J. L. E. Jones \$10,000 a year for the services of his phone for the information of the police and fire." The first fire telephone number was thirty-one, this number remained the alarm number until the advent of the dial system. "Oil Thirty-Ois" reported some of the most spectucular fires to our diyl's history.

About the turn of the century, it was strongly recommended that the city install an automatic fire alarm system. This continued to be a recommendation every year until 1911 when Chief Ligon

reported that "more than half of the system had arrived and was in storage at the fire house." Due to a problem concerning the equipment and court extion that was initiated by well-meaning but maguided citizens the system was not installed at this time. We remained without an automatic fire reporting system until 1947. For many years, Greenville enjoyed the obbinus honor of being the largest city in the United States without such devices.

By 1800 Gressville was getting to be quite a city. The volunteer system of fire fighting was rapidly becoming outmoded, but the City Directory for 1801-08 gives a roster of the location of all volunteer companies, their equipment and officer personnel with J. O. Cauble, Pire Chief; E. R. Smith, First Assistant Chief; J. W. Duncan, End-Aart. Chief, and Dr. W. J. Bramlett, Secretary, Alert Real Company No. 4 was stationed at 755 Pendleton Street, Ward One Red Company No. 4 st 814 Buncombe Street. Greenlie Hook and Ladder Company No. 1 at 114 W. McBee Avenne. Greenlie Hook and Ladder Company No. 1 at 114 W. McBee Avenne. Cremille Hook company No. 1 at 118 McBee Avenne. Nepture Red Company No. 3 was at \$55 S. Main Street, Palmetto Hook Company No. 9 was at \$45 S. Main Street

It is not possible from existing records to name all the Chief Officers that served the volunteer fire department. From an old letter, we are able to state positively that Joseph Allen, Patrick Henry Reily, John C. Kirkpatrick, A. B. Williams, Bob Haynes, and J. O. Cauble served with distinction. There were others but they are lost to our report. It would be impossible to name all those that served as volunteers in the ranks. In 1914 the annual meeting of the Volunteer Firemen's Association was held. A list of those attending is to be found at the end of this paper. Who were these men? They were the leading citizens of the community. and they were the nobodies. They were the wealthy merchants, and they were the lowly clerks. They were mill hands, retired soldiers, butchers, grocers and street brawlers without visible means of support. They were a cross section of the city. They were also "nature's noblemen," with a sincere desire to serve their fellowman. They served well and faithfully and because of them Greenville is a better place.

The first paid Fire Department reported for duty on January 1, 1802. Chief of the new department was Riley Rowley who was assisted by Rowley Smith. Assigned to the Greenville Truck Company were Miller Goodlett as Foreman. G. C. Com as Driver. and Mack Farkins, Robert Ligon, and William Mosely as Firm.

Mention of the General Fire Hone Company were Rowley Smith as Foreman, B. F. Sherman as Driver, and Kafer Simpos M. A. Ward, and Laurence Cerny as Fremen, In addition to these two full-time units, two volunteer companies were retained until 1905.

Chief Rowley stated that "ne dinking and no card playing would be allowed by him while the men were on duty." He made this emphatic by saying "that any man that takes a drink while on duty is fired." This seems reasonable since men were working twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. Chief Bowley reported that the telephone company would have the fire phone installed within a few days. On January 3, 1002, the pall fire department made it's first run. The moles stack fell at the Green-ville that the company were high in their praise of the new system.

The department continued to grow and in 1909 Chief Rowley reported that he had fifteen men, seven horac, one two-horse buck and equipment, one stemer, there two-horse how segars one hose reel and a large amount of small equipment, including liftly feet of small rope. One of the more spectatual free fought during Chief Rowley's administration was in the Gressville Supender Factors, in the Caulle Building on North Mas Street.

In November of 1909 a Webb Hose Wagon was put in service, this being the first motorized equipment of the department. It was driven by M. R. Phillips, to whom goes the know of being our first engineer. On one of the first runs of the motor truck it became stuck in the mud on North Main Street. After it had remanded in the quagonier for some time, the firement finally took the advices of bystanders, "got a horse," and rescued their vehicia.

Ligonic Rowley resigned in 1910 and was succeeded by R. J. Ligon. Chief Ligon immediately recommended the purchase of additional motor equipment. Progress in this direction was made and in 1913 the fire department had acquired a second motor bruck. The number of horses was reduced to five. From newspare accounts it appeared that the horse was still the most reliable transportation, in several instances the motor bruck were out of Service with stripped gears, broken crash that's, and just plain

stuck in the mud. Chief Ligon was also interested in purchial himself a roadelare to answer askarns. In December of 1913 he had a young askernan denoustrate a Stutz roadster with near disasterous research. We are told that at they passed the Ottarny Hotel the Chiefs hat Rew up in the six and didn't conde owner for nearly a block. The run from McBee Avenue headquare to Stune Avenue was made in less than two minutes. Chief Ligon served the deepartment until Issaany 18, 1918.

J. G. Scott was our next Chief of Department. He served until 1921. The load at this time was proving too difficult for the hance to continue to give efficient service. In 1919 two Aherus-Fox motor-drives, platen-type pumpers were purchased. Delivery was made in August, 1918, and he remarking fire horses were diminsted. Thus ended the most thrilling chapter of the fire service. These magnificent animals would literably run until they dropped. We are forcusate to know the names of the last horser in service. Mack and Jerry were at Echols Street, Red Bird and Joe at West End and Prince was at Headquarters. Their names should most certainly not be omitted from our honor roll. Will the advent of the motor trucks and the act to f the horses we bring to a close this early history of the fire department.

Epilogus: We no longer hear the soft whicker of Mack and Jerry nor the nervous stamp of Prince. The pungent odor of leather and the sweet small of clean straw is absent. The oil lamps have caused to cast weed shadows on the wells, the voice of "Martin From The Creek" has been stilled for many years. Yet, on nights when the wind rattles the windows and the sleet pells in the street, when the rookie is told this is a "night for a good one," you feel that someone, unseen, but very concerned is present. The bell trays, feel thit the floor with a thomp, the traditional cry of the firemen that has echoed through our station houses for almost a country reverberants from wall to wail: "LETS COI" "CET OUT!" "BOLL EM!" Then you know that you were not alone, they are all theres Mack, Jerry, Prince, Ligon, Rowley. They are there bocause they never really left. An honest fireman is never for from his haar.

If Prometheus was worthy of the wrath of Heaven for kindling the first fire upon earth, how ought all the gods to honor the men who make it their professional business to put it out.

## ROSTER OF THE LAST VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT

Joel A. Cook	C. L. Boss
R. H. Kennedy	C. T. Seculia
John G. Green	J. T. Blantingum
S. Mauldin	E. A. Smyth
R. J. Ligon	W. F. Martin
L. C. Ferguson	J. O. Cunble
Thomas Ross	W. P. Asbury
W. S. Turner	R. E. Fork
T. B. Butler	J. E. Handerson
W. H. Irvine	W. A. Hunt
J. R. Richardson	F. B. McDex
W. H. Houston	R. J. Rowley
John B. Marshall	L. P. Hillion
A. B. Williams	O. M. Goodlett
John Gazo	W. H. Pool
Williams Goldsmith	W. A. Seybt
Phillip Hees	J. Z. Phillips
A. R. Shumate	E. W. Wyatt
G. T. Willia	Y. L. Revis
H. A. Dargan	James F. Mackey
Chas, Halsey	J. E. Halcombe
Alonaa Iler	H. Endel
R. Y. Hellems	John Garraux

J. M. Steel

W. Mills MODERY

## APPENDICES

#### REGISTER OF

## HISTORICAL RECORDS IN THE GREENVILLE, S. C. AREA

GREENVILLE, S. C. AREA

Since March, 1991, the Society, and its predecessor Historical Records Committee have equifit to locate, register, and encourage the preservation of records pertaining to familiate and businesses of Generolile County, Below are descriptions of the forty-six collections registered with the Society as of January 1, 1988, compiled by Dimm D. Davis, chairman of the Historical Records Committee. Additional collections will be added to the Register as they are reported to the Society.

- In compiling the Register, the Society utilized an edaptation of the procedure developed by the Joint Committee on Historical Manuscripts of the Society of American Archivists and the American Association for State and Local History for their national register of manuscripts. The procedure used is as follows:
- Persons wishing to register historical material with the Society contact the Chairman of the Historical Records Committee. He will provide a standard form for the compilation and description and will assist in its preparation, if desired.
   Each collection is given a name, either that of the family involved.
- or that of the collector, whichever seems appropriate in each case.

  3. As the registration forms are received, each is given a Registry Num-
  - 4. Each collection entry shows the following:

ber and is indexed.

- a. The Registry Number and the name of the collection.
- b. The degree of availability of the collection to researchers:
  - "Open" indicates that the collection may be used by qualified researchers by arrangement with the custodian.
    - (2) "Restricted" indicates that the collection may be used only under restrictions established by the custodian.
    - (3) "Closed" indicates that the collection is not available at time for research.
    - (4) "GCHS" indicates that the collection has been contributed to the Society and is available to qualified researchers in the archives of the Society.
- c. In parenthesis, the name and address of the custodian as filed with the Committee.
- d. A short description of the collection as reported including the persons, organizations, places, and subjects primarily represented in

R. The degree of detail in the description varies according to the detail given on the registry form.

5. The index lists only names, citing the Registre Number of the collection. Detail as to the material available on the person indexed can be given only by the custodian of the collection.

#### 1. ANDREA FAMILY COLLECTION

Restricted (Leonardo Andres, 4804 Device Street, Colombia, S. C.)

Family portraits, discress of Laurendo Andres from 1915 to 1981, and family letters to August Andrea from 1835 to 1865. This collection also includes a history of the Andrea and allied families with conies or abstracts of legal records pertaining to the Andrea, Green, Holtzriaw, Smith, West, Richey, and Cdreath families.

# 2. THE WILLIAM CHANDER BEACHAM COLLECTION

(Mrs. Emily B. Taylor, 107 Sherwood Court, Apt. 1, Greenville, S. C.) Family photographs, photographs of Gressville, letters to William Charder Beachem, and broken files of newspapers from 1014.

3. THE CEORGE W. EBAUCH COLLECTION

Open

Onto

(Laura Ebaugh, 311 Pettioru St., Gressville, S. C.) Personal records of David Chericoweth Ebensh, early records of the Music Club of Creenville, Greenville Welfers Agencies, County Council of Counmunity Development, professional screpbooks of Laura Smith Ebaugh, surspbook of Mrs. George Sirrice (suffram movement in Greatwills 1885-1981). and collection of sheet music including Confederate imprints.

## 4. THE FURMAN FAMILY PAPERS

Restricted

(James B. Duke Library, Forman University, Greaville, S. C.) Extrasive collection of manuscript material including papers of Richard Furman and James Clement Furman and allied necess. For full description contact custodial institution.

## 5. THE GOODLETT FAMILY COLLECTION

Open

(Claud Bernard Goodlett. 60 S. Main Street, Travelers Rest, E. C.) Portrait of William and Nancy Goodlett, photographs of Judge Spartson D. Goodlett, Tandy John Goodlett and wife, Dr. Benjamin F. Goodlett, Annie A. Goodlett, a complete history of the Goodlett family from pre-Revolution, Dr. Benjamin F. Goodlett's plantation (Traveler's Rest area) records from 1918 to 1818, and supporting papers.

## 6. THE GRADY FAMILY COLLECTION

Open

(Miss Lidie Grady, 908 Augusta Road, Gramvilla, S. C.) Unlisted materials including family portraits and charts of the Barle and Grady

#### 7 THE CHARLES & HARD COLLECTION

Open

Miss Elizabeth Hard, 803 Arlington Avenue, Greenville, S. C.)
Family photographs; family letters; nanuscript sketches of people, events, family history, and battle descriptions; some music, an account of the Joint encampment of the Sunter Guards, July, 1679, scattered file of Charleston Neus and Courter, May 11, 1877—July 20, 1879.

## 8. THE LILLIE HART COLLECTION

Open

(Mrs. Lillie Hart. Route 1, Travelers Rest, S. C.)

Nine letters from S. T. Cooper (a soldier at James Haland) to Mrs. Rebecca
Cooper, 1862-1864: oblatation records of Samuel Stiles (later Styles) at

Traveler's Rest including the original land grant and the will, platt, and appraisement of the estate (12-10-1802) made on Stiles' death.

9. THE JAMES WILKINSON JERVEY, JR., COLLECTION Open

(J. W. Jervey, Jr., Route 7, Greenville, S. C.)

Family portraits including works by Sully and Frazer, family photographs, a diary of Sara Celestia Mills (1865), and poetry and travel accounts (1955-1958) by J.W. Jervey and J.W. Jervey, Jr.

 THE JAMES M. McGEE COLLECTION . Open (Miss Lutic McGee, 208 Ridgeland Drive, Greenville, S. C.)

Family Portraits and non-inventoried family papers.

UTHER M. McBEE COLLECTION Open
(Luther M. McBee, 203 Augusta St., Greenville, S. C.)

Manuscript sketch of Vardry McBos, family history and family tree of McBee Family.

12. THE HENRY B. McKOY COLLECTION

Open

Open

## 13. THE JOHN LANEY PLYLER COLLECTION

(Mrs. John Laney Plyler, Route 3, Roe Ford Road, Creenville, S. C.)
Portrails of Chancellor Waddy Thompson, Mrs. Waddy Thompson, Waddy
Thompson, Jr., Mrs. John Robinson Earle, James Williams; family photograph album, 1860-1860; and other items.

### 14. THE MARSHALL PREVOST COLLECTION

(Mrs. Marshall Provost, 1 Washington Place, Greenville, S. C.)
Collection of Murchall Provost measure(etc.

# 15. THE HATTLE CHOICE SCHRODER COLLECTION Restricted

Mrs. Hattis Chotes Schrode, 103 Capen St., Generific, S. C.)
Extensive collection of Choice faulty neutrals including photographs, letters,
plantation and legal firm letters. Divins include William Costee (3) 1801-1805. Letters of Joseph Costee (2) for
1800 and William Choice (3), 1801-1805. Letters of Joseph Costee (3) for
Canicolectate Army and William Choice (4) while in New Jacing Spanish-American War. Amurated poptry written by members of fassily Genome of Circulard, Blassingaran, Poulow, Choice, Bonas, Sions and related fundies.

Plantation recent for Tullylors (Flustation (Coronalli, Costry) 1803-Legal records of William Choice (8), William Choice (3), and Jeffreno Choice.

## THE CHARLES E. THOMAS COLLECTION Restricted (Charles E. Thomas, 200 Februlew Avenue, Alta Vista, Creenville,

South Carolina )

Extravive collection of family portwist, diurias, pournal, letters, professional and business records (including Betsus Plantistion on the Sastes to 1825 and the Thomas Company of Ridgessy, S. C. from 1870 to the present), needled and religions (pournals, and family legal records from 1750, Protriats Include New Edward Thomas, 1825-1840, and plan Pryer Thomas, M. D. 1825-1850.

Correspondence is the "thousand" of latters include prefusional and business correspondence with Valentian Most. Famils Pryer Protrict, 1950 Bellium;

Thomas Walker as well as the Thomas and related familian—Payer, Contriber, Health Rankowough, Allan, D'Opiny, Oping, Canter, Thomas, 748, Bellium;

# 17. THE MILDRED WHITMIRE COLLECTION Restricted (Mrs. B. T. Whitmire, 311 Buscomble St., Grecoville, S. C.)

Numerous photogosphe of Mechre issuily and Constrila scena and generalizes; clary of Michelle Catter Brown (Mr. Achbe Bell Brown) of the Civil War and Beconstruction periods; better from Mr. Weldy Thougass, variety helices, little family Jan. Wholly Thougass, aspection of Washington; estenative collection of Washington; estenative collection of Washington; estenative collection of Washington; particularly their position, and others; channel allection of Richard Pautr material including play stocks; construction butter fromly material including skeletion of members of gentle centers butter fromly material including skeletion of members of gentle centers and photogonia from Names a resolution grant particular particula

## THE ARRINGTON COLLECTION Open

(Mrs. John W. Arrington, Jr., 10 Clerendon Road, Greenville, S. C.)
Portrait of S. S. Crittenden, suther of a history of Greenville sud of Christ
Church, letters of Malcolm Daniel Grahan to his wife while he was a prisoner

of war in the War Between the States, and an extensive collection of books relating to Greenville County and South Carolina.

## 19. ROBERT ADGER BOWEN FAMILY COLLECTION

(Robert Adger Bowen, 8 Easley Street, Greenville, S. C.)

146 personal letters 1860 to 1886, including Civil War Letters to Alice Boozer of Greenwood and letters from battlefield. Collection of poems by Robert Adger Bowen.

## 20. JOHN SCOTT-SARAH McCULLOUGH FAMILY COLLECTION

Group picture 6 sons of John Scott 1891. Photograph of Furyay Presbyterian Church, Risharkan, Ireland, Letter from Sarah Scott to John Scott, her husband, April 14, 1848. Family record of John Scott and Sarah McCullough.

## 21. DR. C. B. STONE FAMILY COLLECTION

(Mrs. C. B. Dawsey, 310 W. Earle Street, Greenville, S. C.) Receipts showing sale of slaves. Revolutionary sword belonging to General

Wm. Cunningham (Tory). Saucer belonging to Francis Marion. Cuo and saucer presented by LaFayette to a cousin. Receipts of Dr. C. B. Stone, 1852. Old Bibles and family letters.

#### 22. WILLIAM, DAVID, SPARTAN AND BEN F. GOODLETT FAMILY Open COLLECTION

(Mrs. C. B. Goodlett and other relatives, Travelers Rest, S. C.) Plantation records of Dr. B. F. Goodlett, Also medical records, Land grant,

Bibles, legal papers. 23. PROF. GEORGE A. BUIST FAMILY COLLECTION

(Mrs. George Rigby, 333 Jones Avenue, Creenville, S. C.)

14 family photographs. Family correspondence. Edgefield Chronicle 1903 describing marriage of Dolly Dugas (Andrea Dorothy) to William Wallace Sheppard, 2 pages "The Festical" Christmas eve 1867, Family Bible, Family tree of Henry Buist 1690-1786. Newspaper clippings. Leather bound book of sermons by Edward Tonge Buist, D. D., of Charleston, 1829. Receipts and household expenses. Invitations, reports, magazine articles concerning Furman University 1902 through 1931. Catalogue of Laurensville Female College 1860. 2 original pencil sketches by Dr. Davis Furman, July 16, 1902. Original sketches by Mills Steele, while a student in High School in Greenville, 1930.

## Open 24. T. CHARLES GOWER COLLECTION

(T. Charles Gower, 112 Ridgeland Drive, Greenville, S. C.) Greenville City Directory 1901.

25. JOHN CHARLES AND WIFE, ELIZABETH CARRISON AND SON. Open

Open

Open

Open

JAMES CHARLES AND WIFE, MARTHA ASHMORE FAMILY COLLECTION

(Mrs. John Charles, Augusta Bond, Greenville, S. C.)

Confederate Vateron, June 1896; November 1896. Civil War canteen. 9 con-

Confinderate Vateras, June 1899; November 1890. Civil War custren. 3 confinderate hills, 8500.00 and 8100.00. 1 family portrait. I family letter, Civil War, and family Bible. Will of Sarah Charles, mother of John Charles, and wife of James Charles, of Surry County, N. C., 1877.

20. CHANCELLOR WADDY THOMPSON FAMILY COLLECTION Open

(Mrs. Clarence B. Gapan, 241 Hampton Avenue, Geonville, S. C.)
Shetch of General Waddy Thompson, published in "The Libertrian" Domuber, 1985. Farulty history, 4 articles, written by Henry T. Thompson, published in Greenville Nenos, April 36, May 3, May 10, and May 17, 1831.

17. CHARLES A. DAVID FAMILY COLLECTION Restricted

(Locuis S. David, a ros., 17 roy St., Groewilla, S. G.)

Femily Album 1800-1902 Distry of Louis S. Drovid 1801-1802 Nemeptor
anticles and cartones drawn by Mr. David 1804 through 1934, contained in 10
volumes; a series of ST articles Croewardle of Grif published in Generalle
News, 1805-86. Ils articles by C. A. David in American Magazine 1808 through
1808. Book by C. A. David, How to be Mayon on Mohing a Toe, 1830.

 JAMES MAYSON ANDERSON FAMILY 1706-1955
 (History of the family compiled by Edward L. Anderson, 4625 Detree Road, Columbia, S. C. and on file with Greenville County Historical Society.)

150 family pertraits. Approximately 100 family letters. Also Rev. Edward Tongue Buist family records.

29. EUGENE ERNEST WELLS AND CAROLINA DUPRE WELLS FAMILY COLLECTION

Excent Eugens Wells, 130 East Tallahls Drive, Generolfs, S. G.)
Dagserrordyne and photographa, per-Criff Was-19th and 50th contary.
Cellection of family and business letters, including feltweef Patterns Chamber Interest Company and Patterns Chamber Arterist Chamber Pre-Civil War correspondence of Caroline Wale Riber, Generaley of Viginia, Pre-Civil War correspondence of Caroline Wale Riber, Generaley combodies, Copy of Outh of Allegiance to U. S. Government after Criff Wer, never than, Files of Generalite Republican July 18, 1286 though August 23, 1888; The Mountaintener, Jinouary 17, 1899 and January 10, 1830. Generalite Monthlesser January 18, 1850.—The Advantage of the Copy of Copy

30. CAROLINA THEATRE HISTORY 1933-1963 Open

(Mrs. H. T. Lashley, 713 Crescent Avenus, Greenville, S. C.)

A collection of autographed photographs of celebrities of the entertainment world; also includes local amateur entertainment programs.

## 31. IOSEPH H. EARLE COLLECTION

GCHS

Memorial addresses of United States Senator Earle, March 4, 1897, to May 30, 1897, contained in a volume which was presented to Greenville County Historical Society by Mr. and Mrs. William L. Brightm, 401 Pettigru Street, Greenville, S. C.

## 32. DIXON D. DAVIS COLLECTION

CCHS

Callection consists of following natural contributed to the Society by Diam. David, 618 McDaniel Avenue, Genwellis, S. C. Bigszphiele Directory of the United States Congress from 1774 to 1941 Souvenir Edition of Thirteenth Division flatt remoin bald at Centerville on September 39, 1910, Map of Creativ Generalist issued in 1521. Memorial Addresses in the U. S. Congress Congress of the Congress of

PEDEN FAMILY GENEALOGY, Revised Edition 1800-1980.
 GCHS
 This values presented to the Society by Mrs. Life P. Sprowe, Route 1, Box 176, Foundain Inn. S. C. Merch 15, 1965.

#### 34. THRUSTON FAMILY COLLECTION

Open

(Miss Edyls Thruston, Blue Miss Drive, Lochwood Heights, Greezville, S. C.). Portreits, B. Susan Were Sacon Thruston, wife of Richard Thruston, Thomas Barbalda Thruston, son of Richard and Susan Ware Succo Thruston, Amide Barbalda Thruston, doughter of Goorge B. Bush. These poetrists were painted by On the Commission of the Commis

Family Album, Contains photographs and deguerreotypes.

Family Letters. Includes one from a Philadelphia, Penn. brokerage house to Annie B. Thruston, December 16, 1606, advisting it had shipped in har, by express, \$500 in gold.

Neuropapers. Miscellineous copies of Greenville Neue, Confederate Vataren, Verselles (Ky) Statesman and Southern Churchman.

Music. 2 bound volumes sheet music published in early 1870's.

Scrop Books. & compiled by Mrs. Thomas Barkedale Thruston.

Smith. Governor and Commander in Chief, July 19, 1895.

War Records. Original commission of Richard Thruston as a 2nd Lt. in U. S. Army, signed by President James Madison, July 23, 1812.

Army, signed by President James Madison, July 23, 1812.

Land Grants. To Susan W. Thruston signed by President Franklin Pierce,
October 18, 1883: Land Crant to William Thruston, signed by John Drayton.

Land Deeds. 7 from 1818 to 1869.

Miscellaneous documents. Early church history; Furman University, Oceowille Female College, and Chicura College. Confederate Army rationing records. Public School Records, 1871-1875 and Greenville Military Institute 1881.

Account Sooks, 1866-1867.

# 35. MRS. W. S. (BETSY BOWEN) MULLINS FAMILY COLLECTION Once

(Mrs. W. S. Mullins, 110 Wilderness Lane, Greenville, S. C.)

Femily Records Book (bound leather volume) 1854-1864. School takton receipts Furman University, Odd Fellows School, Greenville, S. G., and Green-

ville Female College. Duncing feas, 1857; receipts for womens' wear.

Confederate Items. War tax assessment 1882, including "Poor Tax of \$21.75."

Prices of yard goods from Batasville, Leather for shoes.

\*\*Neuroparez. Scattared copies of Charleston Delig Courier, 1870; The Columbia State, 1913, Charlotte Delig Courier, 1909, and New York Journal, Dacamber 4, 1897. These have articles on Jefferson Davis, Confederate Women, and Bishop Ellison Capers and South Carolina Beminides.

Land Crentz signed by William Moultrie February 16, 1786, and March 6, 1786.

Writ of Enjoinder. Vardry McBee vs. Andrew Laftin and T. W. Hampton, January 20, 1847.

36. MARY SIMMS OLIPHANT COLLECTION Open
(Mrs. A. D. Oliobant, 107 James Street, Generalis, S. C.)

Cartoons. Originals by Charles David.

Paris Mountain, Papers and notes by Dr. J. Warren White.

Mimographed pamphlots of Revolutionary War Soldiers of Abbeville, S. C. b.
Annie Walker Burns.

THOMAS T. G., ELLEN, AND MARY POWELL
FAMILY COLLECTION
 (Misses Ellen and Mary Powell, 704 Hampton Ave., Committee, E. C.)

Family Letters. Private Journal of Thomas Stephen Powell 1891-1809. The original in South Caroline Library, Columbia, S. C., and a copy in Gramville County Historical Society archives.

Tax Receipt. 1 dated 1861.

Original Apprenticemenship Indeniurs of Thomas Powell to Rice Washrough, "Brass Joinder," signed at Bristol, England. August 7, 1802.

 WILLIAM P. Z. F. NEVES FAMILY COLLECTION Open (Mrs. Arael M. Hawkins, 102 Pine Street, Green, S. C.)

Civil Wer Latters written by Alsey Albert Neves, his daughters and friends to John and Wash Neves who were stationed on James Island, Charleston.

39. ROBERT WRIGHT ANDERSON FAMILY COLLECTION Open (Mrs. R. LeBoy Anderson, 301 Bancombe Road, Travelors Best, S. C.)

Photographs. Anderson Home, Travelers Best, prior to 1885; pugils of Tigerville School 1896; Bank of Taylors 1904 and Kendrick & Walter Sure, Taylors, early 1900. Letters and Postal Carde, 1873-1898.

Business Intology, Tax Receipts, and related paners, 1850-1890.

Condedarate Records. Certificate of Stock #2365 Confederate States of

America, Jamesry 1, 1863 for \$100.00 to George Anderson.

Family Biblis of R. W. Anderson; scrap books and journal of Mrs. Jane
Inovskom Cilracth 1890.

40 R C MARKLEY FAMILY COLLECTION

GCHS

Cons

(Presented to the Society by Mrs. Grace Barbour, Rural Route 1, Box 970. Greenville. S. C.)

Collection of seventy (70) business letter heads, receipts, etc. 1909-1903.

41. DANIEL TOWNSEND SMITH FAMILY COLLECTION

(Mrs. George A. Adams, 38 Mt. Vista Avenus, Gromville, S. C.)

Family Letters 1838 to 1930, includes a condity market of Civil War paried.

Flantation records 1858—account books, etc.

Neuropeners, Kind Words printed in Oreenville 1868.

Music. Songs and Hymna 1815-1830 and Confederate songs.

Legal Records. Deeds of slave sales; prices of goods 1860-1885; railroad costs of transportation in reconstruction period.

Diories, Daniel Smith, 1869-1900; Mrs. Pavas, 1851-1870.

Family Photographs and Daguerreotypez. Adams, Mason, Shapeon, Smith, Townsend, and Taylor.

Foreity History of family of Adams, Mason, Simpson, Smith, Townsend and Taylor.

Taylor.

Miscellinacous. Account of Yankes investors of Smith Plantation (Woodlands) on America Road. Minutes and programs of bistorical societies in 1890.

48. IOHN IACKSON MeSWAIN COLLECTION

GCHS

(Mrs. Serah McSwain Gurley, 210 Montclair Avenue, Northgate Heights, Creenville, S. C. contributed these materials to the Society.)

Photograph Greenville County Court House, front view with portion of "Mansion House" in background. Probable date before 1910; Group of Confederate Veterans.

Neuspaper: Greenville Piedmont, March 31, 1819, containing story of Butler Guards in Weld War I. Greenville Nesos, April 1, 1919 cemtains official register of Butler Guards as constituted when shapped on the Pocahonias from 5t, Nezalre, France.

Miccellansosa. Water Commission of Greenville handball saking votors to condemn Peris Mountain Water Co.

#### 43. BUTLER FAMILY COLLECTION

Open

(Misses Laura and Mary Butler, 208 Bulst Avenue, Crecaville, S. C.)

Fortroits: Elizabeth Jones, by Guerry, about 1865; William Logan.

Photographs of early Creenville. Croup pictures Spanish-American War; Soldiers of Co. A, 118th Infantry. World War I; Camp Sevier, 1918. Diarios year 1800.

Family History of Logue Legare.

Scrup Books. Mary J. LeCare, 1859; and Elizabeth Jones, 1854.

Letture. Civil War, World War I, and World War II.

Miscellaneous. Receipts from 1850 to 1890, including Confederate Tax Receipt.

44. CAPTAIN WILLIAM CHOICE FAMILY COLLECTION Open

(Mrs. Hattie Choice Schroder, 130 Capore Street, Generallie, S. C.)

Photographs. William Choice, Josse Cleveland and General John Westfield
Blassingsome.

Diaries. William Choice, Esq. April to July 1830.

Memoires of Captain William Choice, Co. K. Sth S. C. Infestry, C. S. A.

Letters. 10 of William Choice, Jr., written during service in Spanish-American War, April 15 to December 29, 1898.

Plantation Records of Choice Family Tullytown Plantation.

Legal Records and law papers of William Choice, born Oct. 24, 1798, died June 27, 1877.

Fomily Histories. Bollings, Choice, Cleveland and Blassingune Families.

Cometery Survey of William Choice and General John W. A. Blassingame.

45. THOMAS CASWELL AND CAROLINE CURETON
JOHNSON FAMILY COLLECTION

SON FAMILY COLLECTION Open
(Mrs. D. L. Johnson, 113 Tindal Ava., Contorille, S. C.)

Portruits. 2 of Thomas Careed Johnson and Caroline Cureton Johnson pulnted by Duniel Wheaton shout 1830.

Other Records: 3 certificates of Membership in Corenhook Journeyman Coopers Society: one clared One. 11, 1810 tuned to James Singuan, Number 1818, one Insued 21, 1804, Insued to Thomas Singuon, nucleor, one based April \$5, 1810, intrued to Thomas Singuon, nucleor, one based June 19, 1811 reading "These Greenhook Wiches Society cuttly that Singuon wife" was admirted to the Society Fixture port card of

Reedy River falls showing scaffolding around the amoistetick of Camperdown Mills under construction (no date).

Generalogy, M/S, on John Campers, Sr. Lindley Family, Matthew Strapes

Genealogy, M/S on John Cureton, Sr., Lindley Family, Matthew Simpson family (from 1885), and Henderson family (1796).

# 46. ELIZABETH HARD COLLECTION

GCHS

(Miss Elizabeth Hard, 803 Arlington Avenue, Greenville, S. C., contributed the following Stems to the Society.)

Necespapers: Scattered issues. Charleston Nones and Courter, May 11, 1877--July 26, 1879.

Books, Rölle and Materical Sketch of 10th Rogt, S. C. V., Army of G. S. A. (1981-1985). Remissioners with sparsher and addresses of R. F. Perry (1989). Wm. Henry Pracett, Memorial of Gan. J. Johanton Petitgress (1970). The Southern Magazine, November, 1874, Transactions of the Southern Histerical Society, January-December, 1874. August Kohn, Cotton Mills of South Carellas (1997).

#### INDEX OF NAMES

The numerical citation is to the Registry Number of the collection containing material concerning the person listed. This Index includes Registers 1 through 46 (Issuary I, 1988).

Y rischeffer an (Juneau), T' 1640).	
Name of nerson	Boist, E. Somers23
or family Registry Number	Buist, Rev. Edward Tongs . 13, 28
	Buist, Emma
Adams Family	Buist Flora A 93
Adams, Mrs. George A41	Buist, Flora A
Alexander, Elias	Buist, George, D. D
Allen Family	Buist, Henry
Alston, Lemuel J	Butler Family 17
Anderson, Edward L	Butler, Behethland
Anderson, James Mayson 98	Butler, Bebethland Foote Moore 17
Anderson, Robert L. (Grace) 39	Butler, Miss Lauca
Anderson, Robert Wright 39	Betler, Miss Mary
Andrea, August I	Butler, General Mathew C 17
Andrea, Lennardo 1	Butler, General William 17
Andrea, Leonore 1	
Andrea, Louise 1	Cantey Family ,16
Arrington, Mrs. John W., Jr 18	Carpenter Family18
	Carson. Mrs. C. A
Bacon, Henry	Carson, Mrs. Eliza W. L38
Barbour, Mrs. Grace	Chambers, Edward Patterson 29
Beacham, William Chandler 9	Charles, Elizabeth Garrison 25
Bellinger Family16	Charles, James O
Bellinger, John	Charles, John
Bennett, Sion	Chandler, Mrs. A. S
Berry, William Augustus19	Choice, Eva Lodshaw15
Blassingame Family 15	Choice, Jefferson
Blassingame, General John W. S. 15	Choice, Josiah
Bouner Family	Choice, Captain William
Bowen, Robert Adger19	Family Records
Brandon, Col. Thomas	Choice, William (1) 18, 44
Brighem, Mrs. William L., 31	Choice, William (2) 15, 44
Browne, Mildred Carter (Mrs. Archie Beall)	Choice, William (3)15, 44
	Choice, William (4) 15, 44
Bryson, Congressmen	Choice, William (5) 15, 46
Joseph R 38	Cleveland Family 15, 44

Cleveland, Mrs. Mary H 15	Jervey, J. W Jervey, James Wilkimm, Jr
Conner S T 18	Jervey, James Wilkinson, Jr !
Couturier Family	Johnson, Caroline Cureton 46
Couturier Family18 Crittenden, S. C18	Johnson, Mrs. D. L
Curningham, Robert 17 Cureton, John. Sr 45	Johnson, Thomas Caswell 41
Cureton, John, Sr 45	
D 1) 00 1 1 1 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	LaFayette, Marquis De
David, Charles A	Landrom Family
David, Louis S	Landrem, Mrs. C. M
David, Louis S	Lashley, Dolorus
D'Oules Francis	Lewis, Colonel Fielding 25
D'Oyley Family	Laurentville Female College 83
Dugas, Dony23	Lewis, Charles
Earle, Mrs. John Robinson17	Lindley, Family
Earle, Senator Tomph H 31	
Earle Family	McBes Family
Earle, Senator Joseph H	McBee, Luther M
Ehtugh, George W	McBee, Vardry 11, 17, 38
Ehaugh, Laura Smith	McBee, Vardry 11, 17, 35 McBee, William P
Edwards Family17	McGee, Jaures M
	McGee, Lutie10
Furmen, Alester G 4	McKoy, Henry B 18
Furman, James C	McKey, William Berry 13
Furman, Richard C	McSwain, Congressmen John Jackson
Purman University	Maxwell Family
Gaillard Family18	Marion Francis 67
Gaillard David Creecus 92	Marion, Francis
Gaillard, Theodore 15	Mason Family
Gapes, Mrs. Clarence B 96	Mills, Saru Celestra 9
Goodlett, Annie	Mills Sedwich 8
Goodlett, Dr. Reniamin IP 5 00	Mott. Valentinn
Goodlett, David .5 22 Goodlett, Nancy	Mulling, Mrs., W. S.
Goodlett, Nancy	(Betsy Bowen) 35
Goodlett, Tandy John	Murphy, Solomor 35
Coodlett, Spartan David5, 99	
Goodlett, William5, 29	Neves, William P. Z. F 38
Gower, T. Charles	mini a se como
Grady Family 6	Oliphant, Mary Simone (Mrs. A. D.)38
Graham, Malcolm Daniel	(MITE A. D.)
Gutary, Saran McSwam43	Pearis, George
Hard, Charles F 7	Dearle Hickard
Hard, Elizabeth	Perry Reviserin F18
Hort Liffite #	Perry, Oliver Hamed, Com 21
Hasell Family 18	Payre Family 16
Hasell Family 16 Hawkins, Mrs. Ansal M. 38	Peyre, Thomas Walter16
	Plyler, John Laney
Hite Family	Plyler, Mary Thompson Earle 13
Hite Family	Poinsett, Joel R
	Porches, Francis Payre
Jenkins Family 41	Poulton Family
Jervey, Aleita Wood 9	Powell Family
Jurvey, Helen Smith 9	Prevent, Marshall
Jervey, James 9	Pleacer, Similaria

Riley, Caroline Wade	Thompson Family 17 Thompson, Waddy 13, 26 Thompson, Mrs. Waddy 13, 17 Thompson, Waddy, Jr. 13 Townes, Mrs. Heavy E. 7
Scott, Sarah McCallough         30           Scott, John         30           Scott, Sue         30           Stmoour Family         41, 45	Townsend Family 41 Thruston, Miss Edythe 34 Tyler, Family 41
Simpson, James	Usher, Francasia
Sloan Family	Walter, Thomas
Smith, Reuben         1           Spring Fazzily         16           Sproum, Mrs. Lile P.         33           Steele, Mills         23	Wella, O. H
Stiles, Samurel	Whitmire, Mildred (Mrs. B. T.)
Taft Family 16 Taylor, Emily 8 Thomas, Charles E. 16 Thomas, Rev. Edward 16	Williams Family     17       Williams, James     13       Williams, Julia     15       Winslow Family     18
Thomas, Edward Whittingham . 16	Wyatt, Anderson, S. C I

# MEMBERS OF THE GREENVILLE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY

SEPTEMBER 1, 1968

(Charter members of the Society are denoted by the arterisk, Addresses are in Greenville, S. C. unless otherwise noted. Numbers in parentheses are telephone numbers, area code 803).

\*Adams, Mrs. George A., 38 Mount Vista (239-2058) Aiken, James B., 6A Lewis Village (235-5182), 29605

Alexander, J. Mason, Poinsett Highway (232-4247) Alexander, Mrs. J. Mason, Poinsett Highway (232-4247) Alford, Neill H., Jr., University of Virginia Law School, Charlotterwille,

Va., 22901

Alford, Mrs. Neil H., Jr., University of Virginia Law School, Charlotterville,

Va., 22901

Alford, Mrs. Neil H., Sr., University of Virginia Lew School, Charlottesville,

Va., 22901 Allison, Dr. H. M., 907 Pendleton Street (232-1892), 29601 Allison, Mrs. H. M. (Elizabeth W.), 907 Pendletm Street (232-1892), 28801 Anderson, Mrs. R. L., 301 Old Buncombe Road, Travelers Rest, S. C.

(834-3346) "Apperson, Mrs. G. P. (Mary McAlister), North Perker Road, Route 7

(235-1607) \*Arrington, Mrs. John W., Jr. (Cornelia)-LIFE MEMBER-10 Clarendon Avenue (232-1262)

\*Asbury, Abner D., 400 Overbrook Road (232-0124) \*Asbury, Mrs. Abner D. (Isabel), 400 Overbrook Road (232-0124)
Asburore, Mrs. Russell C., 602 Crescent Avenue (233-7968), 29601

Bain, Mrs. H. O., 9 Randall Court Apts. (232-1789), 29609 \*Barnes, Mrs. Frank, 102 James Street (232-1944), 29609
\*Barnes, Romayne A.-LIFE MEMBER-412 Crescent Avenue

\*Barnes, Romayon A.—LIFF MEMBER-412 Crescent Avenue
Barnes, Mrs. Romayon Guilet A., 342 Gressent Avenue
Barnes, Mrs. Romayon Guilet A., 342 Gressent Avenue
Barnes, Mrs. Roy (Zene Chapman)—LIFE MEMBER—Exatgate Villago, Apt.
D., 1023 Herichmon Street S.E., Grend Inglied, Ballego 4668
Beattle, Mrs. Marshall (Rudh)—LIFE MEMBER—lack The Photoset Horel
GGS-36211, 2020 LIFE MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wy, 7023-4690, 3001
Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig. 2024-6690, 3001
Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS-4610, 1001

Beattle, Mrs. Sameel M.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—30 Wordlawn Wig.
GGS

\*Beattie, William H.-LIFE MEMBER-4 Woodland Way Circle (232-4825)
\*Beattie, Mrs. William H. (Frances)-LIFE MEMBER-4 Woodland Way Circle (232-4826) Black, Mrs. Hoke B. (Ruth), 213 McDaniel Avenue (232-3058)

Blackwell, Dr. Gordon W., 68 Kensington Road (248-4250), 29609 Blythe, Lauriston H., 2 Heather Way (233-8541) Blythe, Mrs. Lauriston H., 2 Heather Way (233-8541)

Blythe, Mrs. Laurston H., 3 Heather Way 1933-29541 Formar, Mrs. 1, Earl, 11 2 Ein There (235-2562) Bouzer, Mrs. Stilney E., 14 Wedgewood Drive (306-8465) Bouzer, Mrs. Stilney E., 14 Wedgewood Drive (306-8465) Bozeman, Bill B., 215 Sweethers Read (244-24566) Bozeman, Mrs. Bill B., 215 Sweethers Read (244-24566) Bozeman, Mrs. Bill B., 215 Sweethers Read (246-24566) Bozeman, Mrs. Bill B., 215 Sweethers Read (246-24566) Bozeman, Mrs. Bill B., 215 Sweethers Read (246-24566) Bradley, Miss Eula, 224 E. Fair Avenue (238-2664) Bradley, Mrs. Eula, 224 E. Fair Avenue (238-2664)

Brockman, Mrs. H. L., 100 Marchant Street, Green, S. C. (877-4069) Bryant, Mrs. Carlyle, 22 McDaniel Court, 29605 (235-4655) Bryson, William J., 127 Howell Circle (244-4641)
Bryson, Mrs. William J., 127 Howell Circle (244-4641) Bryson, Mrs. William J., 127 Howell Circle (244-4641)

\*Buck, Mrs. Anne Lee Sims, 107 James Street (282-396)

Bulord, Mrs. J. G., 105 North Avenue, Greer, S. C. (877-4419)

Bengess, Affred F., 208 Week Prisi, Broot (262-160), 2090

\*Burnett, Mrs. Jense M., Jr., 213 Carnille Avenue (235-3389)

\*Burnett, Mrs. W., (Jessé S., 2) E. E. Park Avenue (233-3339), 2090

Burtt, Mrs. R. C., 111 Mount Vista Avenue (233-3339), 2090

Butch, Mrs. R. (Sword, 111-LIPE MeMBERT—700 Spring Mill Toad,

Villanova, Pa., 19085
\*Butler, Miss Laura, 208 Buist Avenue (233-8520), 29609 Butler, Miss Mary Legare, 208 Buist Avenue (23'L8520), 29609

\*Campbell, Mrs. Carroll A. (Annie Williams C.), 50 Woodvale \*Campbell, Mrs. Carroll A. (Annie William C.), 59 Woodvale Carpenter, Mrs. J. Lewis, Sr., OMPrie B.), 412 Fetting Streets, 2008. (Carpenter, Mrs. J., Lewis, Sr., OMPrie B.), 412 Fetting Streets, 2009. (Chaudher, Arthur S., 48 Holmes Drive (2044-443))
Chaudher, Arthur S., 48 Holmes Drive (2044-443)
Chaudher, Chyde A., I Webster Street, Slater, S. C. 20693
Chumley, Chyde A., I Webster Street, Slater, S. C. 20693
Chumley, Mrs. (2049 A. I, Webster Street, Slater, S. C. 20693)
\*Cleveland, Mrs., I. R., 40 Rockwood Drive (2077-2313)
\*Cleveland, Mrs., W. C., Sr.—SUSTAINING MEMBER—IS Lewis Village

(232-3025)

\*Clinkscales, Mrs. C. C. (Bertie H.), 111 Aberdeen Drive (244-3087)
 \*Cochnan, Daniel West, Route S, Paris Mountain (232-4057)
 \*Cofer, Mrs. Alice Riddle, App. 99, Williamsburg Manor (233-0544), 29807
 \*Coleman, Mrs. S. L. (Caroline S.), Fairview Road, Fountain Inn, S. C. (882-2421)

\*Gollins, Mrs. Elizabeth Perry (Mrs. L. B.), 514 Pettigru Street (235-8154)
\*Golk, Mrs. J. Murphy, Apt. 527, Clemson House, Clemson, S. C.
\*Courtenay, Mrs. Margaret Beattle, 14 William Street, 29601
Cox, Miss Mary, 316 W. Stone Avenue (232-1283)

\*Craig, Mrs. Kirk R. (Margaret N.),17 Sherwood Court Apts. (233-5790)

\*Crawford, Mrs. Mary Foster, Edgefield Road, Greenwood, S. C. \*Crigler, M. Bothwell, 828 Parkins Mill Road (233-3004) \*Curgler, Mrs. Bothwell (Vignias P.), 828 Parkins Mill Road (233-3064) \*Cunningham, Mrs. Marie C., 27 Walnut-Overbrook (233-1728)

\*Daniel, Mrs. R. N., Sr. (Evelyn Pack), 102 W. Prentiss Avenue (234-9391) Davis, Dixon D., 618 McDaniel Avenue (233-0628) Davis, Mrs. Dixon D., 618 McDaniel Avenue (233-0628) \*Davis, Mrs. T. G. (Jean McPherson), 425 Crescent Avenue (233-6781)
\*Daviscy, Mrs. C. B. (Agnes Stone), 310 W. Earle Street (239-6245) "Dawiesy, Mrt. C. B. (Agnes Stone), 310 W. Earle Street (239-6) Deal, Mis Agnes, Davenport, Agrictions (232-1110), 28901 Doddridge, Mrs. D. S. (Helen), 35 Essex Court, 28909 (235-7776) "Drike, Mrs. H. Beaumonde, 201 W. Prentits, Avenue (233-6185) Dunson, John C., 120 Penn Street (233-2525) Dunson, Mrs. John C., 120 Penn Street (233-2525) Durham, Dixon K., Liberty Life Ins. Co., Landrum, S. C. Dysart, Mrs. J. O. (Agnes B.), 20 W. Earle Street (232-7210)

\*Earle, Joe H., Jr., 357 Riverside Drive (233-4271) \*Earle, Mrs. Joe H., Jr. (Choice S.), 357 Riverside Drive (233-4271)
\*Earle, Mrs. M. D., 319 Grove Road (232-8834) \*Earle, Mrs. O. P. (Minnie Gwinn E.), 18 Pinckney Street (232-6367) Easley, Miss Katherine, 107 Manly Street (232-1093)
Easley, Miss Mary Alta, 107 Manly Street (233-1093)
Ebaugh, Miss Laura Smith, 311 Pettigru Street (233-3773)

Rills, Fred W., Jr., Sans Souci Flower Shop, 29000 (236-6089) Ellis, Mrs. Fred W. (Joyce), Route 7, Creetwood Drive, Paris Mountain (233-1423)

Evins, Mrs. Wayne A., Box 19, Travelers Best, S. C. 29890

Farmer, Robert E., 15 Manly Street (239-4344), 29601 Pawcett, Miss Helen, 127 Bennett Street (232-3394) 29601 Feltner, Miss Ann, 701 McDaniel Avenue

Fermier, Aliex Ann., 101 McDaniel Avenue
Ferwell, Mrs., John, 321 Belimont Avenue (202-6550)
Fewell, Mrs., W. S., 22 Finckney Street, 20001 (202-2753)
Fyrm, Mrs., Fissile C., 21 Finckney Street, 20001 (202-2752)
Fyrm, Miss Jean M., 210 W. Main Street, Taylors, S. C.
Flyan, Miss Jean M., 210 W. Main Street, Taylors, S. C.
Folk, Mrs. Robert E., Pinsberoof, 8891 Cecenville Hawy, Spactarburg, S. C.

29301

\*Funderburk, Sapp, 417 Belmont Avenue (B33-8535), 29801 \*Funderburk, Mrs. Sapp (Frances Norwood), 417 Belmont Avenue (B33-8535), 29601 Furman, Mrs. Alester G., Jr.-LIFE MEMBER-6 Woodland Way Circle

(233-1424), 29601

\*Furman, Alester G., III, 40 W. Avondale Drive (232-886) \*Furman, Mrs. Alester G., III (Mary Simms Oliphant), 40 W. Avondale Drive (232-8866) Furman, Dr. Thomas C., 226 Riverside Drive (235-8770)
Furman, Mrs. Thomas C. (Dorothy), 228 Riverside Drive (235-8770)

Gallivan, James F., 517 McDaniel Avenue, 29807 (238-3967)

Galloway, Miss Jean, P. O. Box 2048 (233-3636)

Gaildway, axiss Jean, P. C. Box 2010 [233-3527] Gamble, Mr. J. B. S., 314 Randall Street (233-3597) Garrett, Mrs. Evelyn, Box 3976 [233-3439], 29808 Garrett, Mrs. Evelyn, Box 3976 [233-3439], 29808 Garrett, Mrs. D. H., Oak Hill Farm, Route 2, Fountain Inc, S. C. 29844 Garrett, Cordon, Oak Hill Farm, Route 2, Fountain Inc, S. C. 29844 Garrison, Charles H., 802 McDaniel Avenue (235-1303)

Gilreath, John H., Route T. 2401 Poinest Highway (239-4815)

"Gilreath, Mrs. John H. (Fannie A.), Route 7, 2401 Poinsett Highway, (239-4815)

\*Goodlett, Mrs. Claude (Mildred W.), Box 73, Travelers Rest, S. C. (834-3714)
\*Goodlett, Mrs. Rose W., 123 W. Earle Street (232-1498)
\*Gower, T. Charles, 112 Ridgeland Drive (232-7863), 28901

Gower, Mrs. T. Charles (Kathryn), 113 Ridgeland Drive (833-7663), 29801 Greenville Museum of Art, 106 DuPont Drive, 29601 Griffin, Walter, Jr., 28 Woodland Way Circle (235-1837), 29601 Criffin, Mrs. Welter, Jr., 2B Woodland Way Circle (235-1837), 29001 Guess, Dr. J. Decherd, 200 E. North Street (232-3828), 20001

\*Hard, Miss Elizabeth N., 803 Arlington Avenue (235-1028) \*Hardy, Mrs. Hattie D., 10 Williams Street (232-3889)

Hawkins, Mrs. Ansel M., 102 Pine Street, Greer, S. C. 29651 Haynsworth, Mrs. Clement F., Ir. (Dorothy M.), 415 Crescent Avenue (232-9534)

\*Haynsworth, Mrs. Madeline B., 17 Clavendon Avenue (832-1397) Henderson, Miss Junelle, 18 Ashley Avenue, 29009 "Hewell, Marion M.-LIFE MEMBER-Akamont Road, Route 3, Pasis Mountain (235-1732) \*Hewell, Mrs. Marion M. (Clara), Altement Road, Route 5, Paris Mountain

(235-1732) "Holland, Mrs. Wade H., Hillandele Circle (233-9878) Hollis, Dr. L. P., P. O. Box 2402 (233-8786) "Holmes, Miss Harriette, 106 Perry Avenus (233-7711)

\*Houston, Mrs. R. E. (Harriet H.), 411 E. Washington Street (235-4456) \*Humphreys, Mrs. W. C. (Ramath Allen), 104 Broadus Avenue (232-5504) Hunt, Mrs. Paul, Route 4, Box 742, Travelers Rest, S. C. 28690

\*James, Mrs. Harriet F., 116 Newman Street (239-1190)

Jervey, Dr. Jack W., Route 7, Box 326, Jervey Road (232-8820) Jervey, Mrs. Jack W. (Allie W.), Route 7, Box 326, Jervey Road (232-8820) Johnson, Mrs. Charlie G., 9 McCall Street (235-2901), 29601 Johnson, Mrs. D. L. (Mary A. McPherson)—LIFE MEMBER-113 Tindel Avenue (232-5594), 29805

Johnson, Dr. L. D., 306 Chantilly Drive (244-4915)

Johnson, Mrs. L. D., 306 Chantilly Drive (244-4915) Johnson, Mrs. Harold A., 305 Elizabeth Drive (244-6416), 29607

Jones, Katherine M., 111 Perry Avenue (233-8167), 29801
 Jones, Mrs. Middred Otr, Sara Cossett Home, 27 Conestee Avenue, 29
 Jones, Mrs. Roy D. (Dorothy McBee), 8 Sewanee Avenue (244-5178)
 Jones, Mrs. W. W. (Elizabeth N.) Reund Pond Road (244-1899), 29807

Kaminer, Mrs. E. M. (Mary Hull), 238 Pine Forest Drive (239-4779), 29801
 Kays, J. C., Ir.-LIFE MEMBER-117 Capers Street (232-3398), 29805
 Kilgror, Dr. Donald C., Ir.-LIFE MEMBER-119 Rockingham Road (277-5115), 29807
 Kilgore, Mrs. Donald C., Ir., 129 Rockingham Road (277-5115)

Kutzner, Mrs. Henry W., 2711 Old Buncombe Road (233-5531)

Lamar, Howard H., Jr., Box 1449, 29602 Lamar, Mrs. Howard H., 20 McPherson Lane (239-7866) \*Lashley, Mrs. Harold T. (Delores C.), 713 Crescent Avenue (233-9853)

Lesesne, Dr. J. M., Erskine College, Duc West, S. C. 29629 Lindsay, Mrs. E. J., 210 Aberdeen Drive (235-2312) Lindsay, Mrs. J. Robert (Helen M.), Prevost Apts. (235-2043)

\*Little, James B., 32 Heather Way (235-5809), 29905 Lowe, Mrs. J. Fletcher, Roper Mountain Road (233-4889) Lowndes, Wm. D., Route 3, Easley, S. C. (233-3280) Lowndes, Mrr. Wm. D. (Anna H.), Route 3, Easley, S. C. (233-3280)

Magill, Arthur, Her Maiesty, Mauldin S. C. (233-8897) Magill, Mrs. R. V., 103 W. Stone Avenue, 29609 Mahon, Brown, Box 2348, 29602

Mahon, Mrs. Brown, 308 McDaniel Avenue (232-4254) Mahon, Miss Elizabeth, 101 W. Prentiss Avenue (233-8589)

\*Marion, Andrew B., 4 Traits End (232-7905)

\*Marion, Mrs. Andrew B. (Evelyn C.), 4 Traits End (232-7905)

Marsh, Mrs. Kenneth H. (Blanche), 118 Seminole Drive (239-6555)

Marth, Mrf. Aemiet 11. (Blanche), 118 Seminole Drive (239-6555)

(Blanche), 119 Seminole Drive (239-6555)

(Blanche), 129 Ferganon), 13 Jedwood Drive (239-015), 29907

\*McSlee, Mrs. Hunlis B. (Ava Ferganon), 13 Jedwood Drive (239-015), 29907

\*McSlee, Mrs. Hunlis B. (Ava Ferganon), 13 Jedwood Drive (239-015), 29907

\*McSlee, Mrs. Warder, T. (Lula Reed), 16 Lavinia Avenus (232-6990)

\*McGlea, Mrs. Varder, T. (Lula Reed), 16 Lavinia Avenus (232-6990)

\*McGlea, Mrs. Varder, T. (Lula Reed), 16 Lavinia Avenus (232-6990)

"McKoy, Henry Bacon-LIFE MEMBER-308 McIver Street, Box 953 (232-9017)

McKoy, Mrs. Henry Bacon, 308 McIver Street (232-9017), 29001 \*McPherson, Ralph, Box 248, 29602

\*McFherson, Mrs. Raiph, 204 Elsie Avenue (238-5513) Merrill, Miss Mildred, B2 Davenport Apts. Mins, Fred L., 18 E. Lanneau Drive (232-2228) \*Mitchell, Stephen D., 104 Atwood Street (232-2865)

Monroe, Mrs. James C., 117 Rock Creek Drive, 29605 (232-4129) Moore, James P., 421 McIver Street (235-3058) Moore, Mrs. James P., 421 McIver Street (235-3058)

Moore, Otis P., 401 Belanont Avenue (338-7813) Moore, Mrs. Otis P., 401 Belanost Avenue (338-813) Mooree, Mrs. James C., 117 Rock Creek Drive, 30005 Mulligan, Mrs. W. B. (Sudie W.), 2803 E. North Street Esta. (344-0818)

\*Morris, Mrs. G. Farman (Elsie Hayanworth), 315 Caucant Avenus (233-8429) Norris, Jack H., 10 Victory Avenue (238-2344) Morris, Mrs. Jack H., 10 Victory Avenue (238-2344) \*Morris, Mrs. Virginia, N. Parker Boad, Rente 7 (233-8280)

Norwood, Ben K., Jr., Box 734, 29608 Norwood, Mrs. Ben K., Jr., 139 Abardeen Drive (\$35-8814)

Odall, Mrs. A. T., 701 McDaniel Averoce (335-1154)
\*Olphant, Mrs. A. D., (Mary Simes), 107 James Shret (138-1963)
O/Netll, Belton R., Rox 30077, Sasion A., \$2603-6777)
Owens, D.P. Henry Circly, 13 Classicon Avenus, 25000 (232-4446)
Owens, D.P. Henry Circly, 13 Classicon Avenus, 25000 (232-4446)

Owens, Mrs. Henry Grady, 13 Clarendon Avenue, 29000 (233-2445)
"Owens, Mrs. Ollin J. (Loulie Latimer), Route I, Iemo, S. C. 29063

Pauglin, Mrs. R. Burnett (Ruth B), 12 Cohms. Street 255-5869, 19905
parkin, Cluston A. Route S. Righews 183, Earley, S. C. 28640
parkin, Cluston A. Route S. Righews 183, Earley, S. C. 28640
parkin, Chutton A. Route S. Rightwey 184, Earley S. C. 28640
park, Mrs. Hardel, 597 Artifactor, Anomea (233-1844)
Patton, Emeri-Life MEMBER—Percey Road, 28906
Seco., B. H., T., 118 Syrd Boucheard, 28905 (235-1765)
Seco., B. H., T., 218 Syrd Boucheard, 28905 (235-1765)
Seco., B. H., T., 270 MeVer Street (233-8844)
Patron, Parkin S. R. S. Syrd MeVer Street (233-8844)
Patron, Parkin S. R. S. Syrd MeVer Street (233-8844)
Patron, Parkin S. S. Syrd MeVer Street (233-8844)

\*Pasics, Mrs. Roger (Ette W.), 201. Grescent avenue (330-01-5).
Pearce, Dison F., 207 McVers Treet (230-645).
Pearce, Mrs. Dison F. (Ishell B.), 207 McVers Treet (330-641).
Pearce, Mrs. Dison F. (Ishell B.), 207 McVers Treet (330-6314).
Pearce, Mrs. John L. (Beatinez Denis), Roer Fard Rosel, Route 3 (246-0505).
Pearch, Mrs. John L. (Beatinez Denis), Roer Fard Rosel, Route 3 (246-0505).
Pearch, Mrs. John L. (Beatinez Denis), Roer Fard Rosel, Route 3 (246-0505).

Potter, Mrs. W. T. (Virginia Allen), 702 E. Washington Street (239-9749)

Povers, Mrs. W. T. (Virginia Allien), Tül E. Washingtire Street (Raba-Shorm, Mrs. W. H. (48) Centrust Avenus (Bal-1485), 28005 "Pervort, Mrs. (Christie C. (Iran D.), 10 Recontrib. Way (2825-0077) "Prevort, Mrs. (Archael I. Virginia Terror (2825-0077) "Prevort, Mrs. Marchael I. Virginia Terror (2825-0078) Prince, Miss Leila McDuffie, 20 N. Carden Cirole, 28007 (230-7420) Prince, Miss Leila McDuffie, 20 N. Carden Cirole, 28007 (230-7420) "Prono, Mrs. A. H., Calboun Torovers (2327-780)

Rabb, J. Mac, 10 Pine Forest Drive (235-9234), 9901.
Rabb, Mrs. J. Mac, 10 Pine Forest Drive (335-6234)
\*Revex, Mrs. T. B. Julia Smythe), 120 Tindal Avenue (233-3283)
\*Reid, Alfred S., 133 Alpine Way

Reynolds, Miss Hannah E., 200 Lavinia Avesse (239-1405), 29801 \*Robertson, Miss Christine, 495 Mein Street, Apt. 94 LA, Oeange, N. J.

POTOSO
ROPOSO
RO 07050

Sanders, Mrs. Albert N. (Elizabeth Barron), 441 Longview Terrace (235-3021), 29605

\*Sanders, Albert N., 441 Longview Terrace (335-3031) \*Schroders, Mrs. Hattle Choice, 130 Capers Street (333-8190)

\*Seyle, Miss Agnes, 14 Lawton Avenue (233-0683)

Seyle, Miss Mary A., 14 Lawton Avenue (33-0-683) Shennan, Mrs. John B., Hillandale Circle, Route 9 (235-6117), 29609 Shockley, Mrs. Callie B., 325 W. Main Street, Taylora, S. C. (244-1825)

Stockley, Wr. Callie S., 335 W. Main Street, Trylon, S. C. (244-18)
Shaker, B. J., Jr. & Michwood Lane (232-548)
Lane (232-549)
Lane (232-549)
Simkin, Jumes H., 615 juncati Drive (232-549)
Simkin, Jumes H., 615 juncati Drive (232-649)
Simkin, Afric T., 10 Woodband Wuy Carles (232-649)
Simkin, Juncati T., 10 Woodband Wuy Carles (232-6490)
Si

Tailey, Mrs. C. H., 22 E. Tailelah Drive (233-8842), 29505
Taylor, Mrs. Gordon (Frances C.), 135 Wedgewood Drive (232-2720),

"Special Control of the Control of the Control of the Control of C

Walter, Robert J., 110 Highland Drive (287-2003), 39905
Walter, War. Robert J., 110 Highland Prive (283-2004), 39905
Walter, War. Robert J., 110 Highland Drive (283-2004), 29905
Walter, War. Robert J., 110 Highland Drive (283-2004), 29905
Water, Mr. Andre Belle P. (Mr. E. E.), 1 Clastron Drive (246-3275)
"Watson, Richard F., Ir., 121 James Street (283-7329)
"Watson, Richard F., Ir., 121 James Street (283-7329)
"Watson, Richard F., Ir., 120 James Street (283-7329)
Wedensyer, Mrs. Henvy-SUSTAINING MEMBER-3 Benavembre, 29007
Wedensyer, Mrs. Henvy-SUSTAINING MEMBER-3 Benavembre, 29007
Wedensyer, Mrs. Robert J., 120 James Robert (283-2003)
Wedensyer, Mrs. Robert J., 120 James Robert (283-2003)
Wedensyer, Mrs. W. John (273-204)
Welborn, W. Fach, 1001 Parkin Mill Road (293-7404)
Welborn, W. Fach, 1001 Parkin Mill Road (293-7404)
Welborn, Mrs. W. John (273-204)
Welborn, Mrs. W. John (273-204)
Welborn, W. Fach, 1001 Parkin Mill Road (293-7404)
Welborn, W. Facher E. (Ellasheb D.), 39 E. Tallalob Drive (233-2009)

Wells, Mrs. Eugene E. (Elizabeth D.), 139 E. Talluloh Drive (233-9996)
Wells, J. Mac, 401 Buncombe Street, 23601
Westervelt, Mrs. Melvín C. (Strah Conyers), 601 Byrd Boulevard (233-2253)
Whitaker, Mrs. Franca Strader-Life MEMBER-BA Warrenton Apartments, Baltimore, Maryland

- Maltimore, Maryland Whitmire, Mirs. B. T. (Midhred E.), 311 Buncombe Screet (232-6265) - Williams, James T., Box 60, 1 Week Setch Street, New York, N. Y. 10019 - Williams, John S., Route T., Foodbills Read (266-2871), 20079 - Wilatripottom, Bert A., 203 Shannon Drive, 29607 - Winterbottom, Mrt. Bert A. (Jems), 203 Shannon Drive, 29007

\*Withington, C. C., 19 Clarendon Road (239-5008) \*Withington, Mrs. C. C., 18 Clarendon Road (239-5008) Wolford, Mrs. Jame, 415 N. Main Street, 39801 Woods, Mrs. Perry, 2008 McPherson Lace (233-6009)

Zimmermen, Sam B., Jr., 203 Byrd Boulevard (236-3968), 29605

TOTAL: 16 Life Members, 14 Patron Members, 6 Sentaining Members and 270 Regular Members for a total of 306 members in good standing.